



DON'T WAIT FOR A COLONIZER TO TELL A GOOD STORY ABOUT YOU.



BB

Ð

ÜSKÜDAR UNIVERSITY PRESS - 84



www.uuyayinlari.com

ÜSKÜDAR UNIVERSITY PRESS - 84

INVISIBLE CHAINS

Enzo Ikah

Editor

Fatma Özten

Graphic Design Bülent Tellan

ISBN: 978-605-9596-91-6

Publishing Certificate Number: 69591

Year of Publication: 2024

Print Number: First Edition

Contact Information

www.uskudar.edu.tr – yayin@uskudar.edu.tr Phone: +90216 400 22 22 / Fax: +90216 4741256 Altunizade Mah. Üniversite Sokağı, No: 14 Pk: 34662 Üsküdar / İstanbul / Türkiye

In accordance with the Law on Intellectual and Artistic Works, the publication rights of this work belong to Üsküdar University. All rights reserved. It can be quoted by showing the source. No part of this book may be reproduced in any form, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording or any information storage or retrieval system, without the written permission of the publisher. The responsibility for the content in the book belongs to the author.





DON'T WAIT FOR A COLONIZER TO TELL A GOOD STORY ABOUT YOU.

CONTENTS

PRESENTATION	9
INTRODUCTION	11
PREFACE	17
CHAPTER I	19
THE EARTH	21
NO JUSTICE IN THE JUSTICE SYSTEM	26
DEMON-CRAZY	27
THE SUPREMACY OF THE UNITED NATIONS	42
THE SILENCE OF HISTORY	47
DAMNING RACIAL PHILOSOPHIES	49
HISTORY	57
ENEMIES OF HUMANITY	59
THE EMPIRE OF DEGRADATION	81
THE WHITE GAME	85
KEMET (BLACK LAND) EGYPT	86
EUROPEANS LIE LIKE THERE'S NO TOMORROW	
BLACK & WHITE PSYCHOLOGY	91
MELANODERM AND LEUCODERMA PIGMENT	92
CHEDDAR MAN: DNA SHOWS EARLY BRITON HAD DARK SKIN	94

WHY ARE THERE SO MANY ANCIENT EGYPTIAN STATUES	
WITH BROKEN NOSES	
EMBELLISHMENT	
CHAPTER II	
RELIGIONS PRESENTED AS THE TRUTH	
THE UNIVERSE	
FAITH AND DOUBT	
THE MYTH OF NOAH'S CURSE	
LANGUAGE	
THOUGHT AND IMAGINATION	
RELIGION (REVISITED)	
THE IMPOSING IMPOSTER	
THE HOUR OF TRUTH	
CHILD ABUSE IN THE CATHOLIC CHURCH	
WITCHCRAFT AND SORCERY	
CHAPTER III	
AMONGST US AFRICANS	
WE MUST DREAM FOR AFRICA	
THE ELEPHANT THEORY	
SPECIAL THANKS	
REFERENCES	

"Until the Lion tells the story, the hunter will always be the hero, but when the lion will tell his own story, the story will no longer be written by the hunter."

PRESENTATION

Enzo Ikah was deeply moved by the celebration of Africa Day on May 25, 2022. As he reflected on the importance of this day, he felt an intense desire to write a book that would condemn the abuses and atrocities committed against the martyred people of Africa. Enzo is a true son of the continent and a passionate advocate for its people. He believes that colonization is nothing but the enslavement of one nation by another, and that Africa must chart its own course. Enzo is committed to the cause of bringing future generations back to the fold, and he believes that only by acknowledging the truth can we move forward toward a brighter future.

Enzo Ikah has performed in numerous concerts, events, TV programmes and conferences about Africa and has been actively involved in Üsküdar University since 2022 in collaboration with Prof. Dr. Havva Kök, Director of the Strategic Research Centre

INTRODUCTION

This book is dedicated to Paul, the Congolese boy soldier who showed me the way out of the jungle once upon a time...

I don't wait for a colonist to tell a good story about me, which is why I start searching for my freedom before my daily bread.

Those who hate you hate themselves as well without any reason.

Above all, destiny's mysterious inequalities shock all reason. Nevertheless, the pearl of the divine inhabits our conscience, loudly proclaiming that the infinite justice reserved for everyone beyond this life, thus rendering absolute equality. Many people think the opposite of poverty is wealth, which makes no sense to me, for as far as I know; we cannot justify the poverty of Africa, which is the largest rich continent in the world, by an absence of wealth.

In that case, we may say that **the opposite of poverty is not wealth**, **but justice**.

Nonetheless, not only is it dangerous to relate a single story of the African continent, but its development in general, as well. Especially only when stories we hear about Africa concerning hunger, war, disease, HIV and Ebola make us apathetic.

While humanity's cradle of DNA, civilization and knowledge is Africa, one of the latest and richest continents, and home to a third of the world's wealth, it is comprised of a total of 54 countries of numerous cultures, tribes, societies constituting extreme diversity. The continent has gone through a multitude of historical processes, with various forms of social and political organization. So, then why do we expect to take a reductionist approach and view the continent as a whole, as monotonous story?

People should at least 'think' more about what we share and the messages we disseminate because we're the ones making history today, so what image will we leave behind for future generations?

Nothing is more painful or disappointing than finding oneself in a country whose regime institutionalizes racism, a regime that proceeds on the assumption and practice, "**People should be judged by the color of their skin and not by their content.**"

Meanwhile, we're saying we don't want a world of domination with whites over blacks or vice-versa but rather simply the domination of equity, equality, dignity, and justice to achieve peace.

Let's face it, if we want peace in the world, we need to be honest with ourselves.

"In the fight against freedom, we don't face others, but rather ourselves. In fact, what distinguishes the liberated from the free is that the liberated have always been the master in their minds, as they no longer think of their former masters, preferring to confront their troubles in the context of autonomous subjects who no longer define themselves in reference to those former masters.

The time has come to no longer think of what ways we're comparable to anyone, in what ways we're superior, and in what ways we were first, as this motive has already been accomplished by previous generations. In essence, today's generation has to write its story that connects firmly to the present and with regards to oneself, whereas this story requires an historical approach that is more critical and oriented toward African societies."¹

¹ Prof. Ibrahima Thioub (Cheikh Anta Diop University / Dakar, Senegal)

PREFACE

INVISIBLE CHAINS

Looking back on when I was a little nappy-headed seven-year-old boy in my native village of Kiombia, Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC), my grandmother Agnès and I encountered a very sick baby elephant lying on the ground, still breathing on the other side of our sweet potato field. Feeling sorry for this calf, my grandmother wanted to do everything she could to save it. She gathered the local young people and got them to lift the animal onto a cart called '*pusu*' and bring it to our village.

She then put some spicy pepper in the elephant's mouth, resuscitating him using purely traditional leaf smoke techniques. After tearfully opening its eyes, Agnès gave it some fresh milk to drink, which I had milked from one of our goats I had nicknamed *mia capra*, which means 'my goat' in Italian.

I remember that *Capra* was the first gift from my Grandpa Emile when I returned to the Congo from the Vatican/Italy, at the age of five after my father, who was the pilot of the President of Zaire (present day Democratic-Congo), Mobutu, and my mother, who worked as a stewardess, perished aboard the same aircraft, which was sabotaged when I just was four months old.

I asked my grandmother why didn't you chain the calf? She replied

that it was not useful. I asked again, curiously this time, "Why don't you want to tie it down?" That's when she explained the Elephant Theory to me.

My dear readers, I know that you're all also curious to know what this Elephant Theory is all about. You will get my answer at the end of this book.

CHAPTER I

I beg you, this book is not a lawsuit against the West, so please don't take it too personally, as the words I use on occasion can be riveting. It helps to have an open mind, as some people embrace tunnel vision with their dogma while they confront the hypocrisy and contempt of today's world.

I know that while some people don't want to acquire new information, they also don't want to hear anything new that goes against the grain of their beliefs. In other words, it can be akin to a performance that is practically ambiguous to their way of thinking.

Now if we return to the heart of problem, which is quite extreme, none of us was around when the historical events transpired. So, we need to rely on the writings of contemporary authors. Therefore, most of those who interpret them do so according to their understanding, whereby they validate their knowledge in accordance with the logic of the theme addressed. That's why there's a lot to get lost in, but I'm also obliged to conduct analyses according to what I understand.

Miraculously, the African continent is not poor, but there's a science behind all this, and the economy in particular. There's a strictness to which we're all enslaved for the benefit of a specific group of people, as well as a science behind the designation of Africans as 'sub-human.'

I think the Devil has grown old and is already in retreat, but he harbors no regrets as Westerners do a better job than him.

The objective is not to see how whole countries become powerful, rich or developed, I will say officially "yes" but nothing has unofficially changed.

I repeat, we do not want a world of domination of whites over blacks or blacks over whites, but simply the domination of equality, dignity and justice in order to achieve peace in the face of injustices committed past and present. Illegality is not the fruit of modernity; violence and corruption are the trademarks of so-called civilized people who uphold evil's veto. In other words, we find only spoils of wars and the Viking's soul, without any archaeological trace of their civilizations in their museums.

The reasons why they still illegally hold more territories that don't belong to them in the eyes of the U.N.

They claim the right as authors of slogans and phrases like "Long Live in a Free World and Freedom" and "Long Live Democracy, Constitution, Morality" and "In God We Trust Forever."

But their hearts are far away from those slogans! They dress themselves in lambskin with the heart of a cobra.

Sure, sometimes the truth stings, but many of us need to hear it, even if it hurts. Knowing the causes leads to a better understanding of its consequences.

Through this work, I also take this opportunity to remind Africans that in this fight that has led us on the path to liberation and victory, I know that we will win. As many of us today are convinced of victory, we cannot achieve our goals if we fight in a disorganized order. But through this book, I also address rather scathing criticisms to certain notable African personalities.

Let's not forget that a person whose memory has been deleted will never be able to find their way back home. I'm against the miserable mentality our colonists have bestowed upon us. I admit that we have no morals; the entire continent is being destroyed by African leaders who sow disunity by ensuring that the best interests of the West come first. In short, we need to start thinking in the mindset of "**All for one, and one for all.**" **After all,** we will never be able to rebuild Africa if each grain of sand refuses to participate in the creation of bricks to build the house of Africa. In order words, our continent can only be strong with through unwavering unity. **We are obliged to either blaze a new path or else**

find an unexplored path.

As many of us still accept the unacceptable, folding our arms as we wait for Heaven's salvation via the West, my fellow Africans must also uphold our part of the responsibility in the fight to revive Africa.

With this same attitude and those kinds of mentalities, our situation won't change, "And no man puts new wine into old bottles; else the new wine will burst the bottles, and be spilled, and the bottles shall perish."¹ But they put new wine into new bottles, and both are preserved. Don't be like people who are beaten even before marching off to battle.

I encourage you that we don't need to be afraid of death; death is inevitable, and even if we live in the short term, people never live in the short term. The young man walks faster than the old one but the old one knows the way, the one who planted a tree before dying, he did not live in vain.

I'd like to take this opportunity to convey my gratitude to Dr. Paul-Fokam of Cameroon. Thanks to him, I have today a much clearer vision of the global economy through his works.

Have we already asked my fellow Africans this simple question? How can we face these plagues that have stymied Africa for almost 500 years, knowing that the International Monetary Fund (IMF) is a doctor who has applied a single prescription for all diseases since July, 1944? This socalled 'treatment' or 'aid' is the instrument that Westerners utilized to demand payment of their compensation for all the wars of independence they lost since 1960. The biggest problem is that we still don't know the due date of the ransom paid with of raw materials, nor do we know the full amount due. It means they're holding our present and future ransom by means of their economic actions of the past and we remain their hostage.

THE EARTH

The Earth is an organized system that is about 13.8 billion years old.² But, interestingly enough, a certain group of powerful people attending conferences at Davos or Bilderberg is trying to destroy this system that deems a normal year 365 days, 24 hours in a day, 60 minutes in one hour and 60 seconds in one minute by changing the planet's fragile ecosystem.

¹ Luke 5:37 (King James Version)

² Rice, D., "Universe is 13.8 billion years old, scientists confirm", USA Today News, https://www.usatoday.com/story/news/nation/2020/07/15/age-universe-13-8billion-years-scientists confirm/3287409001/

The Sun rises and sets on time, the Moon goes through the phases on time, and the constellations move through the heavens on time.

The problem is that how can you introduce disorder into what is already ordained?

The interesting thing is that we as humans all share the same planet with the animal, plant, and insect kingdoms. While we've gained immensely from this, think just how much humans are embedded in the fabric of the planet. We consume plants and animals and live with them as well.

We contract diseases from plants and animals.

Plants and animals contract diseases from each other.

Plants and animals eat each other; this is life's viscous circle.

Because we have distinctive classifications, humans are not animals, even less, plant life.

Because we walk upright with our arms swinging free from locomotion, and ending with a hand to form a grasping tool; we humans differ from plant and animal species.

Humans also have two energies to thrive. *Instinct*, common to metamaterial beings, as well as *Intelligence*, which allows them to free themselves from the bonds of instinct and live as they see fit.

They have a mammalian anatomy similar to apes because they were born from a mammalian womb. The comparison ends there.

Do you seriously think that we have the luxury of being indifferent to the fate of these creatures with which we share the same planet, this planet that our activities currently endanger?

For instance, how could we know that seemingly defenseless bees have a major role in the planet's ecosystem if **Albert Einstein** didn't come up with the assumption, "If bees disappeared off the face of the Earth, man would only have four years left to live?"

The only challenge left is to seek a way to create conditions so that we humans and other creatures can all live well on Earth, whether in the East, the West, the North, or the South. We humans are committed because we are all equal under the sun. If someone tells us we aren't the same, I can't disagree because of differences coming from our backgrounds, culture, etc. Besides, tell me who can escape inevitable death?

Mother Nature has structured everything, and all is linked by

principles. For instance, there must be Day and Night, Man must copulate with a Woman to produce a child, the principle of the sun, rivers, and oceans which cause rain to water the Earth, etc.

Mother Nature does nothing by chance; there are real reasons why lions are indigenous to Africa, tigers indigenous to Asia, polar bear indigenous to the Arctic Circle, etc. Global warming automatically goes against their nature.

There is an African quote that says; "All trees in the forest are not the same." Therefore, we only have diversity if we believe in the plethora of life in the forests and seas. So why should we be afraid of diversity amongst humanity, when instead it's something we should be celebrating.

Whiteness vs. Blackness is something totally political.

We must be disgusted with the violence and killing that's going on around us. If an animal kills a human being, it's considered sad, but if another human kills a human being, it's unbelievable. We have to make a special effort to consider each other as peers, as sisters or brothers.

Also, the Earth we all live on today was once a single continent called *Pangaea*. Humans eventually spread out over the continents, then came the nations, most of which were born through conquest and colonization between the strong and weak. According to the geometry of space, Earth is round. It cannot be represented as a sphere on a flat surface without distortion. In fact, it's said that all world maps are projections of each point of the globe on a flat cylinder, which means all the maps of the world are deformed.

If you examine the Mercator projection carefully, you'll see that Europe is drawn much larger than it actually is. Europe, while South America has an area of 17,840,000 km², South America is almost two times bigger than Europe and its 10,000,000 km².

The landmass of African continent encompasses an area of $30,370,000 \text{ km}^2$ (11,7000,000 km²) — enough to fit in the U.S., China, India, Japan, Mexico, and many European nations combined. But if you carefully analyze the projection of Mercator, it will appear that South America and Russia with its combined total of 17,098,242 km²) are larger than Africa, which is not true.



The Geradus Mercator projection



"The world has enough for everyone's needs, but not everyone's greed" Mahatma Gandhi

We produce enough food to feed every person on the planet, so why is it we're still hungry?

Just because a group of individuals want to monopolize everything and leave the remaining lot of humanity in misery, nobody will be able to succeed in wreaking havoc that Mother Nature has been staging since the Earth was created approximately 4.5 billion years ago.

One of these individuals in question is **Vladimir Putin**, who in October 2022 said in an interview, the basis of which I completely agree with although I'm not pro-Russian but rather pro-human and pro-peace. "I feel that the former European colonial powers have kept the paradigm of colonial philosophy alive at the expense of others. They can't get rid themselves of this paradigm in their everyday tangible politics, so it's time to put an end to it and draw the necessary conclusions here in a much more civilized way."

Generally speaking, while there's no anti-Western front, we would prefer a separation between the Western and the non-Western world.

Not only does the Ukrainian conflict represent a territorial and regional problem, it also poses a redefinition of the new world order, which obviously will not be according to Putin. In response to Putin's claim, China's Ambassador to France, **Lu Shaye** was interviewed by France's TV5 program <u>Monde Info</u> to state that while the world order is currently dictated by Western hegemony, and particularly the US dollar, it was time to rebuild the global system of internal relations.

In my opinion, all the carnage that we witness throughout the world today stems back to the first holocaust in human history, which began in the 1490s against the indigenous Amerindian inhabitants of North and South America.

The population of the Western Hemisphere declined by as many as 130 million in build the American Empire. Books such as <u>American</u> <u>Holocaust; the Conquest of the New World</u> by historian David E. Stannard, and <u>A Little Matter of Genocide</u> by Prof. Ward L. Churchill / University of Colorado contain detailed information regarding the dramatic decline of the indigenous populations of the American continents.

According to a team of British geographers from the University of Leeds and University College London, the '**Little Ice Age**' that accompanied the

genocide of 90% of the Amerindian population, which continued until the late-19th century, gave rise to the reforestation of nearly 140,000,000 acres, an equivalent to the surface area of France."

There's a **Latin expression," homini lupos est** ("One man is another man's wolf"). This is something I don't agree with, and the reason is thus;

A wolf hunts only to feed his own, without hatred, greed, or bad intentions. Men and their hounds have decimated the wolf to the point they've become endangered. There is so much humanity in the eyes of wolves, but so much hatred in the eyes of humans. In other words, Man is not a Wolf, but rather, Man is just a Man; Man is a degradation of the wolf, which is gentle with other wolves.

I find that with all the disastrous scenes that are occurring in the world on a daily basis, there are plenty of lessons of wisdom to be learned.

Whether you're rich or poor, or somewhere in between, always keep in mind we are all homeless, whoever and wherever we are, we strive to have material lives. In the end, we're all still trying to go home.

NO JUSTICE IN THE JUSTICE SYSTEM

Just because something is legal doesn't mean it's right, or that it shouldn't be punished.

I can quote just a very simple example to understand the state of a free world with free acts and also free trade.

Cigarettes that are legal kill more people than illegal ones.

Ironically, on the part of the capitalism world, I see sensitive, intelligent people smoking cigarettes, while the Surgeon General ordered cigarettes producers to print not-so-subtle warning labels on the box that "Smoking Kills" and is hazardous to your health since the late 1960's.

Don't misunderstand me; even though I've never smoked a single cigarette my whole life, I'm not against smokers, but here I just want to present the facts of capitalist world.

Why do they sell them?

Why did they convert the illegal to legal? To ruin people's health?

Is it for the general good or greed? Is there anyone who can answer these questions?

Through this work, I've learned that each of us is worse off than the worst thing that we've ever done; **that the opposite of poverty isn't wealth, but rather justice.**

The character of our nations isn't reflected upon how we treat the rich and the privileged, but we how we treat the poor, the disenfranchised and condemned.

"Our system has taken more away from this innocent man than it has the power to give back."³

It is said that before treating a wound, it must first be located, so allow me to get into the crux of the matter, starting from the source, and thus could very well be the root of the world's problems.

The United States has always been a nation at war. After declaring its independence on 4 July 1776, this country has never been at peace for more than 20 years over a history of nearly 250 years.

It all started with the **first holocaust in human history** in the 1890swith the indigenous inhabitants of North and South America called the Amerindians.

DEMON-CRACY

I also dedicate this book to self-proclaimed masters of democracy with their so-called mission of going about civilizing and teaching other people about the subject, while those who have the memory know that these masters have never been to the so-called School of Democracy, they don't know what democracy is. It is a very serious matter in order to deem Westerners as Democrats.

If it's the strongest democracy they talk about, then how is it they managed to bring such utter chaos into the world?

Since the Greco-Roman times, true democracy never existed in the so-called 'Cradle of Democracy' per se. In other words, I'm referring to the participation of all in the true sense of the etymological word 'democracy;' the status of freedom granted not only to the few, but to the entire society. I vehemently insist that if 'democracy' means 'the participation of one and all,' there would've been absolutely no slavery of any sort in Rome and Greece. Case in point is the fable of Androcles and the Lion.

³ Stevenson, B., "Just Mercy; A Story of Justice and Redemption", *One World Publishing*, 2015

In taking the example of ancient Greece and Rome as the so-called cradle of democracy, you need to know exactly what we're referring to. if we look at the democratic judicial court system back then, democracy was a matter strictly reserved for free men, in other words, the owners of slaves.

So, let's ask ourselves this question; How can a man who owns slaves be free? How can someone who is the owner of a fellow creature and denies his humanity can consider himself free. In my opinion, he is sick, and even more of a slave than those he has enslaved. Plato and Aristotle were free because they owned slaves; it was a minority of self-proclaimed free men who invented what was called "Demo" in Greek. This excluded the enslaved or foreign segments. On the contrary, the majority of those living in the city wanted nothing more than to liberate themselves from the xenophobia and slavery that was their fate.

It's not me, it's the Westerners themselves who have been saying all these years their birthplace was Athens and Rome.

History is full of abuses and blunders by the Greeks and Romans, so what an irony for democracy to thrive with democratic slave owners, racists and xenophobes who chained slaves. Two millennia have passed and we still have self-declared democrats in the 21st century continuing to preach these predatory practices. Who is this serious man who can follow the model of their regime?

I often hear the word 'democrat,' who makes 'democracy,' and when they bombed Vietnam, Cambodia, the cities of Hiroshima and Nagasaki, Yemen, Afghanistan, Iraq, and Libya back to the Stone Age. After all, those bombing sorties were always conducted by the military forces of the democrats in the name of democracy, right?

While you view Easterners as **autocrats**, you've conveniently forgotten there are only '**lobbycrat**' states in the West today. In reality, the word 'capitalism' has done away with the word '**demos**' (the majority), replacing it with '**lobby' (minority pressure group)**!

Everyone plays chess on the world board, that's nothing new under the sun. The arrogant player thinks his opponent will resign. This is a despicable level of intelligence. When in fact, committing horrific acts of violence in order to defend so-called values that are violated elsewhere is nothing more than making innocent people suffer for nothing.

The U.S support of the Ba'ath coup "was part of a broader imperial ambition to establish a network of subordinate political units," and

constituted one example of a series of coups worldwide, including those in Iran (1953), Guatemala (1954), Congo (1960), Cuba (1961), Vietnam (1963), and Indonesia (1965).⁴

List of Assassinated African presidents

In general, the series of coups in Africa orchestrated by America and the West started with the assassination of Patrice Emery Lumumba (Democratic Congo / 1961), Sylvanus Olimpia (Togo / 1963), Kwame N 'Nkrumah (Ghana / 1972), Haile Selassie (Ethiopia / 1975), Marien Ngouabi (Congo Brazzaville / 1977), Thomas Sankara (Burkina Faso / 1987), Samuel Doe (Liberia / 1990), Melchior Ndadaye (Burundi / 1993) Machel (Mozambique / 1986), Juvenal Habyarimana (Rwanda / 1994), Laurent Desire Kabila (Democratic Congo / 2001), João Bernardo Vieira (Guinea-Bissau / 2009) Muammar Qaddafi (Libya / 2011), Idriss Déby (Chad / 2021). This is the list of presidents who were eliminated by Western powers simply because they chose to side with their people.

The truth, as former President of Ivory Coast, Felix Houphouet Bouani once said, "Whoever takes Africa will dominate the world, and become the master of the world's raw materials."

That means either he develops these raw materials for his economy or he prevents these raw materials from reaching his rival's camps.

If we understand very well, Africa has to remain underdeveloped or quasi-developed, and finally, to ensure the development of the West by feeding it with all the raw materials required for its development, progress, and ultimate happiness, for free.

So, without further ado, they subjected this continent to brutal colonial domination by conducting a series of humiliating and everlasting wars.

From around 1990 onwards, medical practitioners began injecting HIV (AIDS) via a so-called vaccination with the goal of exterminating Africa's young population. Those doing the injecting declared that Africa was dying and that it was going to disappear off the face of the map with this HIV. Whilst this propaganda left Africa in a perilous situation, there are 1,419,355,170 people inhabiting the continent as of 16 December 2022, with the population to rise to two billion by the year 2040. Yes, we managed to survive, it's sad of course, Africans were obliged to cower during the AIDS scourge. All in all, I firmly believe that Westerners wouldn't even have survived all that we suffered for naught.

⁴ Saleh, Z., "The Human Cost of U.S. Interventions in Iraq: A History from The 60s Through The Post -9/11 Wars", *Watson Institute Brown University*, October 13, 2020 https://watson.brown.edu/costsofwar/papers/2020/IraqHistory

The door remains ajar, and we can't close it; they couldn't finish their mission, and that's why we can't finish our story.

While chicks suffer from the nighttime chill, the one who ate their mom gives them rice during the day. So, let me ask you, is the killer of their mom still a nice guy because he can help her chicks?

In the same vein, after killing someone the night before, is a murderer who spends a fortune on the most expensive coffin the next morning trying to cover up his crime, or is he just being denigratory?

Today is a good day to revert back to the reason; tomorrow will be too late for the West to repent for its sins.

Lest we forget, regardless of whether we submit to slavery, we bend to colonization, or we fight neo-colonization, today we still desire to live our lives in a dignified manner.

And we have a duty to remind you, my esteemed Africans, that our mission as humans is to make this world a better place for every living person.

We are the generation that has to change things; we must be leaders of ourselves by remaining ourselves. History has taught us that when you lead yourself, you cleanse yourself so much that you can't be a good leader.

At the banquet table of civilization, we have to make a choice to remain a feast for the West or not, we also remind you of their choice.

Henry Kissinger has claimed, "America has no permanent friends or enemies, only best interests." I don't disagree, but if it's the case it means that generally in international politics, there are no friends, there are only concurring interests. So, when the supposed Far Eastern autocrat says, "No!" every time to business he doesn't view in his best interest, then why does it become NATO's business?

While throughout history, people have drawn their own conclusions unfettered in order, to ensure the future of their people and security.

Why **Deux poids deux mesures** "Two weights, two measures?" In other words, the West is playing both sides simultaneously as the "**arsonist and firefighter.**" Let me explain here; before you start a war, you make up rumors with a series of false flag propaganda to stir things up, and also so you can act like a fire extinguisher with your death squads against those so-called dictators who bother you with the same treatment.

As it's often been said, the same causes produce the same effects.

Destroy countries, plunder their natural wealth, blow up heads of state that don't obey, etc. and it's always the civilian population that pays the price.

You create accusations in the name of Lobbycracy. So, in order to provide you with a few examples, allow me to quote once more two wars that I personally followed.

Despite widespread opposition from the international community, the United States launched a war in Iraq based on unwarranted accusations in 2003, according to statistics from the Watson Institute for international and public affairs, as few as 180,000 - 200,000 and as many as 2.4 million Iraqi civilians were killed. Coalition forces also used depleted uranium and white phosphorus munitions in Iraq, seriously endangering the environment and people's health. **In the NATO** attack on **Libya** in 2011, the minimum number of people that have been killed was 150,000 and the maximum was 360,000.⁵

The majority of wars orchestrated by the West over the years manifested 90% of unknown civilian war victims, a third of which are children who had nothing to do with your greedy motives.

While every human being is sacred, is not a feeling but is a conviction, life is sacred and has to be conserved, preserved, celebrated and doesn't deserve to be wiped out in vain.

Power concedes nothing without a demand, which it never will and vice-versa.

I see that there is a difference, it's more objective, rational, and proper analyses have been conducted, all because you thought Europe was strong and even untouchable, whereas, today it's the opposite. Putin is not a madman, and even less the mental patient you claim, and above all, he's not at all stupid, and he's certainly not the only one in the international political arena today.

It was Saddam Hussein and Muhammed Qaddafi yesterday, and the U.N. knows who will be next.

We want everyone to be able to be cognizant without being obliged to

⁵ Nicholas J S Davies, "How Many Millions Have Been Killed in America's Post-9/11 Wars? Part 3: Libya, Syria, Somalia and Yemen", *Consortium News*, April 25, 2018 <u>https://consortiumnews.com/2018/04/25/how-many-millions-have-been-killed-in-americas</u>

follow a particular blog or trend, such as QAnon.⁶

As far as Africa is concerned, we Africans are above all African languages, we are neither French-speaking nor Russian-speaking. The Congo itself, for example, has 250 languages and today we defend our interests, where is the harm?

What is rather legitimate, Africa's new generation portrays itself in a more positive light at the United Nations than in previous decades. References harkening back to the days of corrupt leaders, badly won and disorganized elections, etc., are avoided whenever Africa is brought to mind.

For example, if we want to use these criteria with Ukraine, Volodymyr Zelenskyy was on the Panama Paper list. I believe many things could be disputed when it comes of the Volodymyr Zelenskyy administration, but when the conflict perpetrated by the West between Russia and the Ukraine flared to the point of war in February, 2022, they swallowed their moral considerations and political ideologies to intervene in favor of Ukraine. On the obverse side of the coin, whenever similar situations occur in Congo, Somalia, etc., for example, the initial reflex of the international community is, "They're badly elected people, they have no legitimacy, and they're corrupt."⁷

The strange situation that exists today is that Macron and the UN want to influence all African countries to become pro-Ukrainian, with no question of remaining neutral in the face of what he calls the invasion of Ukraine by Russia.

Emanuel Macron must not be an imbecile in the true sense of the word, but I wonder how Ukraine reacted politically when Ruanda attacked the DRC, or when the jihadists attacked Mali and Burkina Faso?

While we've never heard Ukraine's political voice in any conflicts involving African countries, why do Westerners want to sell us to Zelenskyy?

Since when did he become a super angel? And may the matter of the Panama Paper list become a Biblical passage and all African Christians

^{6 &}quot;QAnon", *Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia*, Wikimedia Foundation, 9 January, 2024 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/QAnon

⁷ Vadim Kamenka, "Ukraine: Volodymyr Zelensky piégé par les pandora papers", *l'humanité news*, 7 October, 2021 https://www.humanite.fr/monde/ukraine/ ukraine-volodymyr-zelensky-piege-par-les-pandora-papers 723110

must answer in unison, "Amen!" This, while some media outlets confirmed his plot with the one who was chased out as head of the German Ministry of Defense, namely Ursula von der Leyen due to a major corruption scandal.⁸ Today, von der Leyen is the head of the European Commission, the same organization which is drowned in all sorts of arms trafficking as they get € rich as intermediaries while innocent people die as collateral damage.

In terms of the number of countries directly involved, the Russian-Ukrainian conflict is a minority conflict in Europe. The Minsk Agreements were signed in 2014-2015 that would've ensured a ceasefire as well as dialogue between the two sovereign states of Russia and Ukraine. While these agreements were signed with the support of France, England and Germany, why weren't they implemented?

So, if we look at this issue merely as a minor issue, why didn't you call on the African countries to be part of the conflict agreements in 2014-2015?

Nobody talks about the circumstances surrounding the 2,500 NATO mercenaries that Putin plucked out from a cave. With a spy mission, you're congratulated if you succeed and you're no longer recognized if you fail. Everyone knows that it's not Ukraine, but rather Europe and the US that is fighting against Russia, as Ukraine could never hold out for more than a week by itself in front of the Russian Army. So, it's NATO that is fighting in Ukraine in the name of Ukrainians who are ready to fight until the last drop of blood. In my opinion, if Western powers don't put an end to this egotistic, it will inevitably become the final European conflict of all time.

So, Mr. Emmanuel Macron, while Africa isn't the European continent and although this conflict has international ramifications, is it really up to Africa to take a stand for Ukraine and NATO? Are you feeling alright, sir?

The simple question we have to ask ourselves is; Why are all the countries and so-called powers that feel oppressed by the US siding with Russia?

These circumstances can be the consequence of all the injustice and indirect colonial domination wrought by the Western hegemony. We are all victims of these circumstances; we're licking wounds from all the brutality and are licking our wounds out of humiliation, our faces wrinkled and our tears perpetual.

⁸ Newsroom, "Pfizer, Ursela Von Der Leyen, and €35 billion corruption", *Modern Diplomacy*, 21 October 21, 2022 https://moderndiplomacy.eu/2022/10/21/pfizer-ursula-von-der-leyen-and-e35-billion-corruption/

Today Russia has China, India, Iran, Southeast Asia, Africa and even Latin countries on its side, so your policy is wrong. Here's a friendly word of advice to all nations that are still blindly following the US. Either take a step back, or the more you obey the more you will lose, it's that simple.

You're entering the war economy and forgetting all about social assistance, wages, and purchasing power. How are we going to extricate ourselves out of this economic dilemma?

Shall we all just sit around and wait to be nuked to death or shall every human venture into the streets to protest an end this war and be able to eat and live?

This is why the new African youth will be leaving this mainstream logic. We decide to make a radical change for ourselves.

The African youth is becoming increasingly cognizant.

When imperialism becomes a right, it's our duty to resist.

African people feel it is almost unbearable even for all of humanity, but there is a French expression that goes like this, **"Autres temps, autres mœurs."** (Other times, other manners.)

It must be recognized that colonization paints a portrait of the culprit as being a type of repugnant, vulgar, arrogant moron.

Africa is the depository of the ammunition of knowledge, especially those that our ancestors erected in the Nile Valley.

A contribution of some new knowledge is needed in order to deem this scientific evolution of ours as the first and foremost way to progress as a species.

There is a problem of racism among Westerners, but I feel compelled to remind you of this;

1. The pyramid featured on **the US 1 Dollar** bill doesn't exist in the West because it's an **African Pyramid**.

2. When Egypt's first pharaoh, **Narmer** created his dynasty in 3100 BCE, he created "**is neb inchem**," meaning **'White House'** or **'White Limestone.'** The first president of the US, **George Washington** resumed the same concept of America's White House when he laid the first cornerstone in 1792, with the name 'White House' made official by the 26th President, **Theodore Roosevelt** in 1901.


On the left, the national amblem of the USA; on the right, the amblem of Ancient Egypt



On the left, Abraham Lincoln; on the right the Ancient Egyptian pharaoh Ramses II



On the left, the award of The Oscars held in the USA; on the right a statuette of Ptah

How long shall you keep killing our mothers, fathers, sisters, brothers and children in the name of Western **Demon-cracy**, **Weapon-cracy** or **Demo-Crazy** while we stand aside and look.

Or do you really think that killing children and innocents means freedom for you? My answer is; it's cheap but it's not free.

You saying that you're the best instructor, but all your courses are comprised of the same lessons, and you ask students things in your exams that you never taught.

My dear West Professor, I remember when you taught me that philosophy is a critique of pure reason, according to the famous philosopher **Immanuel Kant**.

My philosophy as a good student at the University of Sorbonne was to keep talking to the powers that be; most of those powers being the ones who planned to kill me and send me into exile 15 years ago, so that I don't awaken the spirit of my people.

My esteemed Professor West, I'm glad to inform you that today, after realizing your universities taught only absurdity with tactical brainwashing lessons, that could make me pro-West and poison my whole life as well.

If I graduated university, it's because of the interest Professor West showed in my studies.

"Everyone is a genius but the school destroys the creativity of the students by making them machines to understand and not innovators. But if you judge a fish by its ability to climb a tree, it will live its whole life believing that it is stupid." Albert Einstein

Now I understand that your lectures were neither in the interest of my people nor of my own.

I also know that you're aware that an educated population is a productive society and a healthy population is a productive and enjoyable society!

That said, creating wars to pin down other nations? That makes me recall the words of Jamaican political activist Marcus Garvey, "If he can steal your salary, he'll also deprive you of the education that would enable you to understand that he's stealing your salary from you."

The famous Nigerian singer, Fela Kuti was right all along to sing, "Teacher Don't Teach Me Nonsense." Now I'm glad I grasped that meaning early as I'm sure my grandchildren won't be taught a lot of nonsense.

According to you, no one has the right to choose free will; the world under your patronage must have a single party politic that will defend West interests.

You want to organize the world but you can't even manage to put your own house in order; most of your children are indicted in mafia and corruption cases. You don't have any respect for your wives, no harmony in your family and society, and you're despised in your neighborhood because of your domestic violence.

And after all that, you'll be the world's superior instructor to tell others what to do. Well guess what? The well-ordered charity drive begins at home.

1. How many **Silvio Berlusconis** do you have as head of your nations? Did you forget the scandalous affair of **Bill Clinton** and **Monica Lewinsky**?

2. Every day we see your feminists denouncing images of women presented as mere sexual objects.

They believe these images harm relations between men and women and the result in promoting a culture where an attractive physique is, for women, the only path to success.

"Big breasts, narrow hips, and being always available: it has almost become a dictatorship because television, newspapers only present this model of woman," laments Lorella Zanardo, author of Il Corpo Delle Donne, an article regarding the image of women in the media.⁹

"The image of a strong, emancipated woman is struggling to emerge here, even though there are plenty of women of this type in Italy." and also the rest of the Western countries.

3.What did the son of French President, Francois Mitterand, Jean-Christophe Mitterrand, who was advisor for African Affairs between 1986 -92 at the Elysée Palace do? He is said to have used his influence to 'open the doors' to the Angolan regime of President José Eduardo Dos Santos, who was confronted with the UNITA Rebellion. A Russian equipment sales contract was signed in 1993 for \$47 million by Falcone with Angola. Two years later, an amendment, signed by Falcone and his partner, Arcadi Gaydamak, brought the contract to \$553 million!¹⁰

4. How is it that former German Defense Minister, Ursula von der Leyen was fired in 2019 for corruption only to be reinstated as Head of the European Commission in the same year? Furthermore, she was accused of plagiarizing a doctoral dissertation that she wrote 25 years earlier.¹¹

It's the exact same for arms merchants to sit back and watch countries tearing themselves apart to liquidate their goods.

That proves that you aren't models to follow, quite simply because you aren't worthy.

The problem is how could somebody who was posted as the Head of European Commission and found by their people to be incompetent nationally and internally properly manage global affairs? Let's face it, charity begins at home.

"Do not judge others. Be your own judge and you will be truly happy. If you try to judge others, you are likely to burn your fingers." Mahatma

⁹ Hornby, C., "Des Italiennes manifestent contre le machisme et Berlusconi", BFMTV News, 11 Feb, 2011 https://www.bfmtv.com/international/des-italiennesmanifestent-contre-le-machisme-et berlusconi_AN-201102130005.html

¹⁰ Dubois, C., "Le fils Mitterrand écroué hier soir", le Parisien, 22 December, 2000 https://www.leparisien.fr/archives/le-fils-mitterrand-ecroue-hier-soir-22-12-2000-2001843297.php

¹¹ Vogel, G., "German defense minister accused of plagiarism", Science Insider, 28 September, 2015 <u>https://www.science.org/content/article/german-defense-</u> <u>minister-accused-plagiarism</u>

Gandhi

It's time for the Non-West to educate the West because blacks have viewed whites as their oppressors for so long, and whites have viewed blacks and others as criminals. We must educate each other about our cultures and come together in the end.

Why does everyone who is against your ideology have to be automatically classed and declared as a criminal or terrorist?

What does the word 'terrorist' mean to you, angels or first-class citizens of the world?

If you can't find the true meaning of your actions, let me find it for you; 'imperialism' is the Siamese twin of 'terrorism,' they both sow terror.

You're only cleaning blood for blood, justifying violence with violence.

Indeed, none of your military operations can make the world a better place; you're only disrobing St. Peter to dress St. Paul.

Indeed, while nobody has the power to stop time, the nuclear weapons you glorify will bring about consequences that will prove be disastrous for us humans. Nevertheless, even that won't stop our Sun from rising the next day as usual.

We've reached the end of the criminal agendas you've orchestrated and staged like Hollywood movies or theater plays that destroy and cost human lives for naught.

As I sing in my song <u>Haymatlos</u>, I say, "While the lion kills just for food, Man kills just to demonstrate his superiority and this is the difference." When Kissinger claims America doesn't have permanent friends or enemies but only interests, this already exposes the state of mind of predators that don't care if its prey has a baby that needs to be nourished; the only thing it cares about is to be fed, that's all!

I remember when **Michael Jackson** left us, all his fans around the world cried. The only person who was thrilled about his passing was the businessman who was the one who sold his family the coffin.

Two Western boys wanted to see which of their two dogs could bite the fiercest. So, they would test them on a black man.

Unfortunately, that day I was the black boy passing by.

They called me and let their dogs loose on me.

War is their business; they're fighting from afar and they're everywhere,

if not physically, by means of spies or corruption.

You provide rebels with weapons, while we're fighting.

They steal our natural resources, while claiming of being shocked to see Africa always at war.

The war in the eastern part of the Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC) began in 1994 and is ongoing as of 2023. After nearly 30 years of horrific crimes and impunity, all the attackers are known, but you, the Western powers, are protecting them.

And all the crimes committed by soldiers of the United Nation's Mission in the Democratic Republic of Congo (MONUC). Since 2003, instead of sticking to their mission of preserving peace in eastern Congo, MONUC forces began impregnating little girls, while everyone involved has remained silent.

While over \$1 billion has been spent to fund the MONUC peacekeeping effort every year since 1994¹², around two million women were raped and **five million kids died between 1995 – 2015** due to inadequate medical services in the war-torn regions of the **Coltan** mines.¹³

What can we say about the club of people ruling this world who see only material wealth and power? Humanity is an embarrassing element for land grabs.

I'm an eyewitness of horrific crimes committed in the region of **Rutshuru** in **North Kivu in Eastern RDC**, where 48 women were raped **per hour**. I even visited the Panzu Hospital, which was founded by **Dr**. **Denis Mugwege** (Nobel Peace Prize and Sakharov Prize recipient), and interviewed him for my thesis on psychology while I was a student at the University of Sorbonne in 2007.

At this hospital, I had spoken with women who were disemboweled, I saw 5-year-old children, and even elderly women who were raped. I also had the opportunity to talk with children soldiers.

After I started to raise awareness in the country about the corrupt Western-backed RDC Government, they tossed me in prison, tortured me, pulled out three of my teeth with pliers, then sentenced me to 10 years in prison without any legal representation. Fortunately, I managed to escape to Turkey. Otherwise, I would already be counted among the dead today.

¹² DRC: Mapping human rights violations 1993-2003, UN Mapping Report https://www.ohchr.org/en/countries/africa/2010-drc-mapping-report

¹³ Bhalla, N., "African wars killed five million sick children in 20 years: study", Reuters, August 31, 2018 https://www.reuters.com/article/idUSKCN1LF2R3/

My government sent me into exile for 15 years without my rights; he preferred that I stop in a country whose language or culture I knew neither, and which gave me no rights. By facilitating its M23 false flag terrorist movement to commit horrific crimes against civilians, the government-backed terror mechanism can be seen as a means of waging war, fought not via opposing military forces on the battlefield, but rather as a law of war that prohibits the targeting of soldiers beyond the battlefield.

Each time a patriotic battalion commander tries to fight against the Ruandan M23 (23 March) movement, the latter will be eliminated automatically, as in the cases of Mamadou-Ndala and Felix Mbuza Mabe, both of whom made significant strides in establishing peace in Eastern Congo.

By targeting innocent civilians, this has become a case of terrorism, and has nothing to do with the so-called claim that it is a civil war involving the Tutsis exiled from Rwanda; the West camouflages itself in the small units in which the predatory external enemy (the West) seeks to oppose, and the one who ultimately wins.

We're not so naïve; we're all going to use math because even if you're smart, math reinforces one's intelligence. In reality, nobody can be stupid forever; Africans are not the imbeciles they pretend to be.

For this reason, I wish to specify the **Ituri** province, in DRC's eastern South Kivu, where an indigenous mammal called the *Okapi* is found. Due to poaching, illegal mining and conflict, there are less than a few hundred of this endangered species. The Congo has a stamp featuring this animal. I made a trip to **Iran** and I saw a depiction of the *okapi* on the facade of the Apadana at <u>Persepolis</u>, where it has been displayed since the reign of the Persian King, Darius II.

While most people think this *giraffid*, which was totally unknown in the Western world until the early-20th century, is of Sudanese or Libyan origin, the habitat of the *okapi* is the Ituri Reserve of Eastern Congo. Concurrently M23 rebel activity in the volatile eastern DR Congo region is threatening mountain gorillas in Virunga National Park and leaving the endangered species vulnerable to poachers.¹⁴

"Change is the law of life. And those who look only to the past or present are certain to miss the future." John F. Kennedy

¹⁴ News Wires, Rebel crisis in eastern DR Congo threatens endangered mountain gorillas, France 24, 22 December, 2022 https://www.france24.com/en/africa/20221220rebel-crisis-in-eastern-dr-congo-threatens-endangered-mountain-gorillas

THE SUPREMACY OF THE UNITED NATIONS

A Global Threat

The UN is an international public law because it is an institution between states and their citizens, but what about the current global reality? Does this world body represent a threat?

Yes, this organization is a major threat; I've been trying to convey the idea that the states must cooperate with each other, hence the need for such an international body not biased with Westernism, aimed at truly connecting nations and putting them in touch.

The point to be underscored here is that the UN and its preceding organizations have been in the palm of Western Powers since the 18th century. Having created then initiated them, the West even formatted them in order to foster their evolution and development.

While all of us know the world is very old and we also know globalization did not emerge in the West, but rather has existed since ancient Egypt, when there was a less robust form of globalization.

Fierce international rivalry as we know it today did not exist in antiquity. If we can talk about the law of marriage, the royalty allied with other royalty generally rested on matrimonial bonds, the glue which made it possible to conglomerate their supreme national interests. Alliances were also forged to foster imperial peace and protect the royal power base.

So, even if we say it was all based on customs and traditions, we can say this legal culture constituted very solid, firm laws.

See even before that towards the ancient and pre-antique world that there were always relations between states and governments. See even in relation to antiquity, there have always been relations between states and these governments.

At this junction, allow me to be more concise. I will say the tenets of the West are based on vanquishing and dominating, but I wish to specify eternal domination, which, unlike the film, <u>The Truman Show</u>, doesn't have an end horizon.

Beginning with a censure of knowledge to put it at its service, the West has been able to gather the intellectual and cultural heritage of the past.

All the past empires and their mechanics of reproduction have been studied and mastered by the West, whereupon it declared, "I will be eternal in my domination and it will be everlasting."

This has been occurring since the early-19th century. For instance, the **Central Commission for the Navigation of the Rhine (**1815), which was and continues to be responsible for regulating the condition of navigation on rivers bordering nine European countries.

As the treatise regarding the norms of data transmission of Internetlike communication that we use today, **the International Telegraph Union** was established in 1865.

Subsequent to these initial technical organizations, we acquired a vocation of the universal political viewpoint and a standardization of international relations that involved all nations.

Thus, these communication projects were forced to confront slavery, colonization, and global decolonization after the two world wars of the 20^{th} century.

Thus, the mark from which international organizations have emerged is consistent with the emergence of the West. In other words, the texts and laws that motivated these organizations to react must have dealt with the slave traders, in other words, with the colonial question. It is plainly seen that the supreme state, the UN, was entrusted with the task of watching over the world, which resulted in the enslavement of other colonized peoples and the plunder of their lands which would enrich the West and subsequently create the perfect storm conditions for its supremacy to dominate. The result was the codification and standardization of various international charters such as the League of Nations (1920 -46) and the United Nations (1945 -) and, later, the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO) (1949 -).

Despite the two world wars and the emergence of China and only the Soviet Union has not changed. Here is proof, when China asked to review the IMF arsenal table, because it wanted to participate. Washington's response was, "No," and what was the UN's response? Silence!

As a Palestinian never betrays a Palestinian, and a Jew never betrays a Jew, the same can be said for the UN, which would never betray America.

I've always been leery of the United Nations, which was established on 24 October 1945. From a dichotic standpoint, it's very concept is humorous, with nations putting their self-interests aside in the hope of building a global community, as they continue to violate articles of its charter, as well as international law for the profit of its financier. It's akin to a bunch of African kindergarten kids holding hands and singing the spiritual tune of yore, **Kumbaya**.

"Do you have rug time?

"I didn't love rug time."

"You crossed the line. We're willing to move past it."

"Criminals are notorious for lies, everything about them is a lie."¹⁵

While the UN is the administrative arm of the US, NATO is its military arm. So, what lies in store after the Russia / Ukraine War? China and the Taiwan question.

Past military matters on the agenda included; NATO's attack 19 March 2003 on Iraq as well as NATO's assault on Libya on 19 March 2011. What a coincidence for these two wars to have started on the same date, 19 March!

If the military alliance called the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO) has indeed presented itself as a messiah of nations since its creation on 4 April 1949, then I'd like you to try to think of a single country that NATO has freed without any imperialist interest, with this same organization repairing the damage its military alliance wreaked upon the bleak landscape.

Nobody despises your freedom, they hate you because you incessantly commit disaster everywhere you find wealth, genocide, and crimes against humanity day in and day out.

Are these the fruits of your so-called modernity? Or is it merely your intention to control the planet's commodities, trading oil, diamond, gold, coltan, and uranium, etc. for blood.

I wonder as other victimized countries shed tears, indeed your citizens have remained criminally silent for many centuries, none of the deafening silence resulting in the countless catastrophes perpetrated around the planet by your leaders in the name of your so-called righteous nations also render you complicit in these crimes against humanity.

There is only one truth, and it's not a case of judicial intent either. **If the failure to assist a person in danger is punishable by law**, then allow me to remind you through this book, that you, the citizens of colonial powers, you are also co-conspirators in all the supreme instances of crimes carried by your states, just as you took sides with the slave trade starting from the 17th century onwards.

¹⁵ Raymond Reddington in Black Movie series

Often you choose the oppressors' side and remain silent because all these crimes benefit your well-being, supposedly called a strong nation, and help the government to falsify the world's history afterward erasing the clues to hide the true version from future generations. Nevertheless, like the truth, history is stubborn. It is akin to the smoking gun, there's nowhere in Hell to hide it once it is revealed.

You and your submissive people, your writers and journalists of the Age of Enlightenment make your leaders wear gloves in order not to leave their fingerprints at the scene of crimes against humanity.

I know many of you might say, "Ikah, it's only a book, I know it won't revive all the causalities of the wars orchestrated by them," but at least I'm writing to denounce the world as we know it, I'm writing to disagree with the status quo.

How many children have remained orphans because of You?

How many women have become widows because of You?

How many families have been left homeless because of You?

How many people become refugees around the world because of You?

How many people have become maimed and disabled because of You?

Lest we forget, life is sacred and everyone has the right to this life, as well as living it in happiness, which is the very reason we came into this life.

Who knows, perhaps one day we'll still have enough faith to live in a world led not by robots, but by humans with a shred of humanity. That's when we'll summons you into real courts to extract real justice.

What the world needs today is to make more love and peace; nowadays humanity should focus on how we can eliminate conflicts, wars, massacres, and demolished property. All we see on TV is violence, and depictions of super powerful weaponry, but what's the point? To annihilate everything generations had achieved for centuries.

The human being is a treasure containing a brain capable of thinking and enjoying the richness of the cosmos.

As I mentioned before, life must be preserved and celebrated every day; it is unique and should be respected in all its totality and diversity.

It's already a known fact that human nature is not perfect, but comprehending the signs of the times is the best asset to eliminate violence, which is the language of the weak. Everything comes to an end; we don't need to keep generating and consuming energy from unsustainable raw materials such as coal and oil in the 21st century, this only keeps us mired in the past. Eliminating coal and oil compels us to move forward.

Do not stand in Evil's way, as there's no Evil bill that will ever remain unpaid.

While we talk about the sacred history of resentment, we are still talking about the world of tomorrow. Until when shall we continue to create humanity from innocent little kids playing together in the garbage dump only to automatically start hating different races and disowning others after they all graduate from the same school with the same diploma?

Did we ever think once how we might be able to stop the viscous circle of injustice amongst the human race?

In this proverbial right-handed world where everybody who's not white is proverbially left-handed, we need to understand that the judicial system, the security apparatus, the scholastic system, the medical system, the financial system, the prison system, all those systems are being used against fellow citizens to oppress and marginalize them.

Generating justice in the justice system can help create a radical ground-up change in every system of the world, and ultimately create harmony for every citizen of the world. In essence, **Earth is our shared home.**

We specify that our struggle is not one of color but of pain; pain that feels a part of the global population, but Africa is shoved aside. We, as Africans are sick and tired of the daily humiliation, asphyxiation, and sentencing without allowing Africa to decide her own destiny.

In my song 'Injustice,' I ask, "What does it mean when you're white you're right, and when you are black, you're left, and you have to step back? If the Sun belongs to one and all, it means no one is illegal on this Earth."

I love this quote from John F. Kennedy, who once said, "Mankind must put an end to War before War puts an end to Mankind."

Change is the law of life; those who look only upon the past or present will undoubtedly miss the future.

"History is obliged to extract as much truth as possible from the clues at its disposal; she does the silliest job in the world, telling puerile fables in a tone of the serious narration."16

Don't wait for a colonist to tell a good story about you. You need to pull yourself up by the bootstraps and search for freedom before having your daily bread.

THE SILENCE OF HISTORY

Once upon a time Africans lived 300,000 years alone and treated humanity as a Queen of the Universe; peace, harmony, love, respect, and equality were the principles of the world's management.

That was exactly the situation in Africa right up until the Berlin Conference (15 November 1884 - 26 February 1885), when 14 Western colonial powers met to supposedly civilize our people, resorting to taking over the continent's management through slavery, a series of endless wars, indirect natural disasters, global warming, racial hatred, extreme violence, corruption, rape and pillaging its wealth to the point of utter chaos.

But silence for Africans was really the best method of resistance to the deafening roar of war and violence carried out by people who indulge in reckless massacres? In other words, silence can be the most appropriate response when words cannot be sufficiently expressed. That's because as silence serves a multitude of purposes, it cuts to the heart of the problem in its diversity; time cures all.

They say Africa's weakness is its silence, but as my grandmother used to say, its response is giving time to time and time will take care of the situation at the right time; yesterday becomes today and today will become tomorrow, but a lie never becomes the truth, as it is the same as a piece of wood. Regardless of how long it stays in the river, the piece of wood will never turn into a crocodile. In other words, the truth doesn't need a lawyer but a lie needs one.

We humans tend to forget that our secrets and lies practicing what defines us.

Whenever the truth bothers us, we lie so many times that we end up forgetting what is there but it is always there, all the lies we tell increase our debt to it, and sooner or later that debt is going to come back and wreak irreparable harm.

This time, the shoe will be on the opposite foot, when the lion starts 16 Renan, E., "İsrail Halkının Tarihi" önsöz, Boston: Roberts Bros., 1896 telling his own story, and you, the hunter, will be reduced to silence, and will no longer be writing the story.

Did lies take the up elevator during the so-called "the Age of Enlightenment," to become ingested like fast-food?

No, fast blood, because as the Industrial Revolution brought 'modernity' and today's technology, we're still kept in total darkness.

The lie dethrones the truth and the hypocrites are the first to prostrate themselves in front of a lying king.

But the lie commits an error similar to the story of "Samson and Delilah," in which the Philistines forgot to check on Samson after they shaved off his hair and chained him up, taking away his superhuman powers. But what happened later on? Samson's hair grew back, which helped him to destroy the Philistine temple. (Bible, Judges 6:6-14).

Although the truth was lost for several centuries through the error of a fake map of **Gerardus Mercator**, the truth eventually found its way with the help of the sundial.

The truth finds lies lying in the cold whenever it's very hot. The truth finds lies in broad daylight lurking in the darkness. The truth is content while the lie is unhappy. Still naked as he dons his new clothes, the Emperor, who has the will to live a long life as all kings wish, is totally depressed. The Truth is always smiling and upbeat despite the lost time and we ask it the reason for its cheerfulness, The Truth replies thusly; "Life is a series of melodies, minor and major, sad and happy; all are notes of life and nobody can live without playing these notes up and down; if there's a time to cry, there's also the time to laugh, so let's reverse the role now."

"... Tomorrow, and tomorrow, and tomorrow, Creeps in this petty pace from day to day, To the last syllable of recorded time; And all our yesterdays have lighted fools The way to dusty death. Out, out, brief candle! Life's but a walking shadow, a poor player, That struts and frets his hour upon the stage, And then is heard no more. It is a tale Told by an idiot, full of sound and fury, Signifying nothing."17

Lest we forget, a forked tongue hurts more than a stumbling foot.

The truth is stubborn, it never yields its path, and will arrive even if it ascends the stairs.

DAMNING RACIAL PHILOSOPHIES

I warn you, this book is a metaphoric stone I threw in the dark. If someone shouts out in pain, it means the stone has struck its target.

Hey, don't take it too personally, as the words I use from time to time can be needling if you don't have an open mind, as some folks are trapped in their tunnel vision with dogmatic minds.

I have much respect for those people who don't want to ingest new information or hear anything about their belief system; for them it can be like a performance that's practically ambiguous to that kind of thinking.

Through this book, I would personally like to pay tribute to **Dr. Thomas Tömer.** Thanks to him, I learned many things, particularly when he said: "A rare quality which unfortunately lacks in the academic world, is the respect for theories that contradict those which one defends oneself, as well as the courage to put his search results in question."

I've written this book to denounce all the science and mechanisms that were put in place to keep Africans in poverty and proclaim that they are subhuman, when we all know this continent is home to half the planet's commodities.

Starting from the following damning philosophy, I also denounce all the hypocrisy and contempt with which the current world thrives upon;

"...Which holds one race superior, and another inferior, is finally and permanently discredited and abandoned. War is everywhere and it will continue until there are no longer first- or second-class citizens of any nation.

There will always be war until the color of a man's skin is of no more significance than the color of his eyes.

That is, there until basic human rights are equally guaranteed to all, without regard to race. This is a war. Until that day, dream of lasting peace, world citizenship, rule of international morality will remain but a fleeting

¹⁷ Shakespeare, W., 1606, Macbeth, Scene V Act V

illusion to be pursued, but never attained. Now everywhere is war."18

The inferior/superior complex isn't necessarily true, but it's almost always true indeed. As inferior people are often unable to view themselves through the prism of truth, they find themselves unable to equal those they naturally hate. Because they perceive their inferiority to them, they alter their so-called superior qualities, and in the process, attempt to attach a negative twist to them.

In this manner, they'll no longer be inferior, and even though they lack those attributes, they'll consider themselves superior because those qualities they lack have now become fraudulent.

As an African of the 21st century, I know it is my destiny that one day my name will be associated with the memory of something great, an unprecedented crisis, the deepest collision of consciousness, a decision confronting all that had been believed, demanded and sanctified in the previous century; that I'm not a man but rather a stick of time-delayed dynamite.

I recommend my readers to read *Ecce Homo* by **Nietzsche**, and the first chapter in particular, which describes the ideal mentality I believe in and that I also deliberately or unknowingly strive towards.

Moreover, when you meet someone who is supposedly "better" than you or have something you want, you can approach them in two different ways. You can either get motivated and even if you'll never be as good as them, the journey itself will make you a happy person, or else you can get depressed, whereas the only thing that'll make you happy is to do something evil to that person. But that momentary lapse of reason will only be temporary as you'll have to live with your miserable self. The decision is ultimately up to you.

Why would they hate someone as good-willed as me? While I know it might seem a bit arrogant to judge others, I also know that while I'm no angel compared to most of humanity, I also know how to be humble.

Frankly speaking, allow me to take this opportunity to say it's what you do to others, but rather how you make them feel. It's because they've been downtrodden in their lives; they've got low self-esteem, therefore they believe the worst in themselves, which only leads them to believe the worst in others.

I'm a downtrodden, distrustful and deficient person, therefore it's easy

¹⁸ Haile Selassie, King of Ethiopia, 1963, *United Nations /* Sun by Bob Marley, in the song "War", 1976.

to fall back into the old thought patterns where everyone appears to be an enemy, but I try my best every day to assume that I'm likable, that I'm defined by my good graces too and not just my flaws, that other people will view me in the same light I try to see them. Essentially, it's putting one foot in front of the other, but in retrospect I can see I've made some progress.

"Humans either have the power to act or else remain passive and do nothing." Prime Minister of Barbados, Mia Amor.

It's because the people on Earth deserve better and furthermore, while our leaders know what's best for their people, they unfortunately choose the worst for them.

While most of us weren't alive during the world wars of the $20^{\rm th}$ century, the consequences of those wars live with us, but we still have the capacity to choose differently.

I therefore call upon the people of the world, not just the leaders but each one of us to hold ourselves accountable and to act on our behalf to save this Earth and its inhabitants. The choice is ours, so what shall we do?

As the unique key to the world's troubles, the West created those ambiguities, viewing them as 'green lights' to dominate the world. And many non-West countries had also adopted this same fake philosophy.

Doing well for selfish reasons doesn't make you decent. On the contrary, it only makes you decent at being selfish.

To live serving what others have produced is to admit their superiority and to admit your inferiority. It's these kinds of comparisons that generally deem black or non-Western citizens to be judged inferior, because the system makes them feel in that way.

I insist, there are many scientific reasons that prove Western policy are based on lies and predatory strategies. This is why the West is confused today as it accuses others of being anti-Western. Nonetheless, all these accusations are wrong, so stop playing the blame game.

Lest we forget, the truth is like surgery; it's painful but it cures.

On the other hand, a lie is like a tranquilizer; it offers instant relief but its side effects last forever. Putting it succinctly, **isn't it amazing to see a plastic tree start producing real fruit, isn't it?**

In my humble opinion, the more people outside the West become pro-

truth, the more we Africans become pro-Africa, and move away from feelings of hatred, too. Case in point, the International Relations Professor at Harvard University, Stephen Walt wrote on the website of the magazine, <u>Foreign Policy</u>: "Endless campaigns abroad unleash a host of political forces-militarism, secrecy, heightened executive power, xenophobia, false patriotism, demagogy, etc., all contrary to the civic virtues on which a healthy democracy depends."

It's crazy to see how people are judged when they're right, and how people are loved when they're wrong, reversed; the innocent become guilty and vice-versa. But the most intriguing thing is that for many centuries, the prey was unable to fathom it was just prey as it continued to caress the predator's fur.

They say "better late than never," as today we become aware of this love that sighs under the weight of oppression. It is our right to defend our interests and face this imperial oligarchy that imposes its hegemony on others.

With a *modus operandi* based on lies, division, injustices, racism, coups, wars, arrogance and irregularities, subjects of non-Western states have endured ill-will treatment and an everlasting tempest of violence, killings and massacres for several centuries.

We're fed up with it, we never want that again, and we demand fair treatment between us humans and a world with its unique race called Humanity.

"When the river meets the ocean, the memories of the river meet the memories of the ocean. These two different worlds have many stories to tell one other!"

Turkish playwright Mehmet Murat Ildan

Can oceans exist without rivers?

Can forests exist without trees?

Can rivers exist without little droplets?

There is a Congolese proverb that says, "It's almost impossible to wash the body with one finger but it's easier with five."

We are the world, we need each other; it's the little effort that every human contributes towards bigger things which counts. This world can never be what it is without you and I. The world is diverse in that it's comprised of a myriad of groups, whereas each group has its values, that is to say, its customs and colors.

Tell me why we like to dine in Chinese, Turkish, Indian, Senegalese, or Italian restaurants?

This is one of the things the world knows how to do best, but when it comes to "other" diversities, we nonchalantly toss them under the rug without letting them get in our way.

Then why are we curious to taste the cuisines of others when we find it difficult to accept or appreciate their culture? To appreciate them without making value judgments on their color, hair, clothes, etc. One of those who feel this way is my sister, writer **Juliette Sméralda** from the Antilles who wrote a book entitled <u>Cheveux d'appoint</u>.

They say a wound must first be found before it is treated. I repeat, nobody will be free while others have been oppressed after so many years of war, calamity, apartheid, racism, and fascism, but there's still no solution, why do you keep insisting with your evil ways?

Indeed, aren't there any other practices outward of tackling others? While maintaining and consolidating its hegemony, the West has resorted to all means; from the outbreak of 'peaceful developments' to the incitement of 'color revolutions' via direct subversion of governments of other countries.

The current Indian Foreign Minister, **Subrahmanyam Jaishankar** so aptly put it when he said, "Europe needs to get out of this mentality that its problems are the world's problems, but the world's problems are not Europe's problems. The bipolar vision that Westerners (mainly the USA) are trying to impose on the whole world is wrong, the idea that if a country does not choose one side, it must surely join the other, is wrong."

I still can't understand how some European media barons can say that anti-French (West) protests in Africa are manipulated by Russia; you have to be modestly vain to reason this way.

I specified this manipulative anti-French feeling was forged by none other than both Sarkozy and later on, Macron when they came to Africa and insulted the African people. He then blamed it on the Russians, who came from Moscow and St. Petersburg to tell Africans to stop accepting Macron's arrogant insults? Even if their moods subsequently changed for the better, they still left irreparable and indelible marks on the African people, who never forget. In short, words uttered in Africa by Sarkozy and Macron humiliated the African people down to the marrow, inevitably leading those who were once pro-French to become fundamentally anti-French because French heads-of-state told them that Africans don't think for themselves. France has too much African blood on its hands and Macron is facetious when he tells Africans he's not there to tell them how to do things. So, the anti-French sentiment, in other words, is the anti-Macron sentiment and it will continue like this.

Henceforth, African states have to become partners of France and not its colonies or slaves anymore, the practice of win-win.

Monsieur Emmanuel Macron, do the world a big favor. Be honest with yourself as Jacques Chirac did before he died and stop being the victim by quickly forgetting slavery and colonialism, and all the mechanisms you manifest every time to keep the African people in poverty?

I ask myself, "Do you bleed like every human being or are you robots?"

Despite their independence, France claims taxes from these colonies, and continues to pile on the pressure. Take the example of Haiti; while it declared independence from France way back on 1 January 1804, that nation continues to pay its colonial-era debt, equivalent to 17 billion euros today. This debt has considerably hampered the development of one of the poorest countries in the world. So, yes, in my opinion, France is a diabolical state.

On 17 February 2010, **Nicolas Sarkozy** became the first French head of state to visit Haiti since its independence more than two centuries earlier. "Our presence here has not left only good memories," then he said ironically, "...The wounds of colonization and, perhaps even worse, the conditions of separation have left traces that are still vivid in the memory of the **Haitian nation...**"¹⁹

In my humble opinion, this is a highly contemptuous statement. I mean, what's the sense of continuing to claim the colonial debt if you recognize the wounds of colonialism?

Do you really think the people of Haiti love your actions?

Haiti is a plain example of what France has been subjecting its other 14 colonies to ...

I said to myself, this anti-French feeling must also be taken at face <u>value. In the en</u>d, we're not attacking French citizens, because we have an

¹⁹ DW News, "La France et ses Anciennes Colonies", *DW News*, 14 July, 2016 https://www.dw.com/fr/la-france-et-ses-anciennes-colonies/a-19400946

incalculable number of compatriots with dual nationality living in France. So, we cannot be systematically against the French as such. But rather, it's their methods of intervention and reports with respect to Africa that we deplore.

In saying that we do not agree with the decisions, all these arguments are legitimately founded, while the French diplomatic choices as well as the insults against the African nations uttered by these two presidents incite us to rally the Africans to unite and say, "enough is enough." If this is what you call "anti-French" sentiments, so much the better, because your actions have become totally unbearable.

Shortly before his passing in 2001, Jacques Chirac confessed, "We drained Africa for four and a half centuries. Next, we plundered its raw materials. After that, we said: they (Africans) are good for nothing. In the name of religion, we destroyed their culture and now, as we have to act with elegance, we are picking their brains with scholarships. Thereupon, we are claiming that the unfortunate Africa is not in a brilliant condition, and is not making elites. Having enriched on its back, we are now lecturing."²⁰

Why don't Africans harbor any anti-Peruvian or anti-Mexican sentiment? After all, aren't they also countries in the world?

To say that all the protest movements against French (Western) policy in Africa are manipulated by the Russians who are clambering to catch up with the West in its backyard of its African zone of influence is wishful thinking.

If we must know something, it is that Africans of previous centuries gave the West another cheek to slap when it had already taken several.

(Love your neighbors as yourself, according to the gospel of Jesus in Mark 12:31.) As especially proper Christians, they don't covet anything on Earth because everything is waiting for them in Paradise.

Unfortunately, this is no longer the case today; it's an eye-for-eye, tooth-for-a-tooth world, and we also have the right to a better life here on Earth before ascending to Paradise.

Indeed, I find it a little easy; the West is already very paternalistic or even racist and considers or presumes Africans would be big kids

²⁰ Jacques Chirac, "l'argent de l'Afrique", 2007

https://www.francetvinfo.fr/monde/afrique/politique-africaine/jacques-chiracnous-avons-saigne-lafrique-pendant-quatre-siecles-et-demi_3633009.html https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xaFmoTxmZng

incapable of thinking for themselves. According to you, Africans need puppeteers to direct and dictate them.

In reality, there is a real feeling fed by the previous failures of the French Army in central and west Africa and, but also by a desire for independence.

There are Western military bases everywhere in Africa; America, German, French, and so on, so the population has a legitimate reason to be angry.

For example, despite the presence of these foreign armies, West African countries like Niger, Mali, and Burkina Faso are currently threatened by Jihadists, and the situation is far from being resolved.

Create conflicts to better plunder the assets; but all Africans today have comprehended everything, it is an open secret that France, England and Qatar are the godfathers of state-funded terrorism on the continent (secret de Polichinelle).

The problem is that everything is occurring simultaneously; it is a sign of the times that portends the end of the reign of the Western Empire.

Don't forget that yesteryear was also the halcyon eras of the Roman and Ottoman Empires; where are they today?

There won't be a stone left on the stone without overthrowing the West. Just ask Jesus Christ, who knew it all so well.

You, the West, are reaping what you've sown!

It's the story of a guy / a company that falls on its luck and as it falls, it repeats itself to constantly reassure itself... "So far so good, so far so good." So, moral of the tale is, "It's not how your fall, but rather how you land that counts."

As for me, I, like so many of my compatriots, am waiting for Joe Biden's administration to implode and take everything with it

During my research for this book, I read many articles and books to support my ideas with scientific approaches. I admit, at first, I refused to read Western writers, because I didn't want to give much credit to people who oppressed my people, but, ultimately, I judged myself as stereotypical or a kind of racist.

I was self-critical, I said I was wrong because there were a lot of Western right-wing conservatives who have stood up, clinging to the idea of 'European classical heritage' to validate their history as superior to others. That said, there are also many left-wing historians.

In this case of James Harvey Robinson, David E. Stannard, Ward L Churchill, and George G.M James, who have done quite a remarkable job to enlighten public opinion in order to recognize history as myth, and make us understand the historiography or the history of the story. Too often, history textbooks reflect the historians' own biases, sometimes unintentionally, resulting in misrepresentations or omissions of history.

For example, in searching the Internet to find George G.M. James' work, <u>Stolen Legacy</u>, I came across the book review on Amazon;

"Therefore, what the West has done by carrying around the heritage of African culture and systematically destroying its traditional values, and other elements, and imposing their culture on us is also considered a mass crime because it is the culture of genocide."

Reading this convinced me to order the book, which arrived three weeks later. That was when I decided not to begin writing the following chapters without having read <u>Stolen Legacy</u>.

The main idea of the book is, "For centuries, the world has been deceived as to the source of the Arts and Sciences; for centuries, Socrates, Plato and Aristotle have been falsely idolized as models of intellectual greatness; and for centuries, the African continent was called the 'Dark Continent' because Europe coveted the honor of transmitting the Arts and Sciences to the world.

It is indeed surprising how, for centuries, the Greeks have been praised by the Western world for intellectual achievements that undoubtedly belong to the Egyptians or the people of North Africa."

HISTORY

Let me reiterate, if we head into the darkness of the extreme circumstances we currently find ourselves, none of us was around when the backdrop of historical events transpired.

We need to rely on the writings of contemporary authors. Thus, most of those who interpret them do so according to their comprehension, validating their knowledge in accordance with the logic of the theme addressed. That's why there's a lot to get lost in, but I'm also obliged to conduct analyses according to what I understand.

History: Is a clock that people use to tell they're political and cultural

icons of the day.

History: Is a compass that people use to find themselves on the map of human geography.

History: Tells people where they have been, and what they have been, what they are and where they are.

History: The most important role of history is to tell people where they still must go and what they still have to do.

"We must never forget that all history is a current event."

Dr. John Henrik Clarke.

Kwame Nkrumah reminded us of we are African, not because we were born in Africa, but rather because Africa is born in us; and I say, not all Africans are black.

Africa is humanity's DNA, everybody carries within us the DNA of Africa's Homo Sapiens who lived over 300,000 years ago; The African is the only one who has diversities of humanity, scientifically we carry within us their genetic hard disk. In other words, the African has the stock of human genetics. These are the statistics:

300,000 years ago / Africans were the only humans on Earth,

60,000 years ago / Africans populated Eastern Asia,

40,000 years ago / Africans populated Western Asia,

6,000 years ago / Civilization began in the Nile Valley.

What's at stake is not to make history but, rather, how we can exhaust elements of reflection in the heritage of antiquity and make these elements of reflection operational, that is to say, how this experience can be put into practice from the start. Next morning, because history is a very important discipline that, oddly enough, doesn't tell the story of the past.

The purpose of this book is not also only to discuss history by remaining in the past, but rather to make history alter the course of history and not to introspect the past to stay in the past. My dears, together, we must try to discover the way to live together with our differences, because the universe is a single-family neighborhood and Earth is our shared and sacred Home.

Therefore, the unity of all life is the source and sustenance of our humanity as well as the unity within us and between us. Thus, we live together as a human community.

"...We all know that people are the same wherever you go There is good and bad in everyone We learn to live, when we learn to give

Each other what we need to survive, together alive..."²¹

There is a quote from Martin Luther King Jr. that says, "We must learn to live together as brothers or perish together as fools."

Therefore, there is only one race, and it's called 'humanity.'

As Western society has led us to believe, the color of one's race is a facetious game that provides people with a false sense of superiority or inferiority. Consequently, repeating the same lies ad nauseam throughout the centuries only serves to falsify the destiny of ignorant people who aren't aware of the risks entailed in accepting this malicious philosophy. Those who created the idea of classifying humans according to the color of their skin know that it's not true, that their intent was to disorient people of the planet with the power of conscience by indelibly branding it into the memories of believers.

Therefore, the race that claims to be superior to humanity, wants Eden to belong to it but with the idea of Africa without Africans is the Caucasian race.

ENEMIES OF HUMANITY

I'm not writing this book to groan and moan, because I know nobody ever chose his birthplace, their parents or skin color.

I say that if evil doesn't come my way for something I did, but for just being who I am, my response shall be, "I'm sorry, I am who I am, I can't change it and I'm proud of it. It's not my fault, it's how Mother Nature designed me."

With this book, instead of mere words, I've also taken this opportunity to put my heart into it and beam an energy field of reflections around it. I learned from the deceased **Omotunde Kalala** from Guadeloupe that one shouldn't prepare a thesis just for the sake of the thesis, because energy fields are like a home game, they can't be played away.

Through this work, I want to take this opportunity to pay tribute to

²¹ Wonder, Stevie & McCartney, Paul "Ebony & Ivory", Tug of War, 1982

our valiant warrior, Prof. Omotunde Kalala, who left us suddenly on the Caribbean island of Guadeloupe on 13 November 2022 of an asthma attack. Though he had never suffered from this disease, poison was suspected as the true cause. He struggled to make people aware that the history of Africa didn't start with slavery. His great inspiration is still living in my heart and I still hear his voice like the sound of my keyboard as I write these sentences.

This is why I have the privilege of placing Africa at the center of this work. Otherwise, I might as well be spinning my wheels to no avail.

I want this book to be the impetus to put the African spirit on the periphery; I have the right to take a look outside but I keep my androgenic view of real African knowledge, because Africa was confronted by a coalition of several people at the same time, who came to attack us.

So, without further ado, let's start off by asking the question, "What did black people do to become the enemy of humanity?"

In the end, in parallel with the perpetuating inferiority / superiority complex that the African is sub-human, we all know slavery and colonization are the longest crimes in the history of humanity. By deliberately imposing this misleading house of cards *ad nauseum*, it produces the opposite effect, i.e., if we hate black people, it's because they are superior.

Our ancestors were uprooted and deported to distant lands, taking only their languages, their cultures, and their spiritualties as baggage with them on their forced journey. Despite the crossing and the inhuman treatment and conditions they were subject to from the moment they landed in the New World, they opened their inner baggage and contemplated what they had left of their continent, Africa. Demonstrating plenty of determination and resilience, they thrived in those unknown lands by creating a new language and a new culture.

Through this book, I also wish to personally answer the former French President, Nicholas Sarkozy

On 26 July 2007, President Sarkozy spoke in front of students, teachers, and politicians at Cheikh Anta Diop University in Dakar / Senegal. His speech reeked of racism when he exclaimed, "The tragedy of Africa is that the African man has not made enough history. Peasants for thousands of years have lived by the seasons, who's ideal of life is to be in harmony with nature, only know the eternal beginning of time, punctuated by the endless repetition of the same gestures and the same words. In this image

where it always begins again, there is room neither for human adventure nor the idea of progress."

According to these damning words of Sarkozy, Africa has given nothing to universal human civilization. This is patently wrong and it only added fuel to the 'theory of falsification' fire. They (the West) try to reverse the current of evolution and tell the story in its favor, and are more than content to view historical development in this way. When in fact, it is Africa that has always been at the origin of the development of all civilizations. I don't need to repeat that Africa is the cradle of humanity because this debate has already been concluded with the writer Charlie Darwin, even though I may not agree with his psychoanalysis of the Theory of Evolution.

I would like to take this opportunity to bring up some exemplary names of African society that the West has categorically refused to recognize throughout history.

Listen Mr. Nicolas Sarkozy! I enjoy it when my sister Sandy Abena reminds me that, "Whenever you get up early every morning, the first thing you do is turn on the light. And whenever you're driven in your car or take public transport, you'll certainly have to stop at some traffic light that ornaments your city. When you arrive at your office in Paris, the first thing you turn on is your computer to log onto the Internet."

But I'd like to reassure you, Mr. Sarkozy that the day you just spent was possible thanks to the work of more than 100 Africans Western civilization has refused to recognize because they were sons of slaves.

1. You turned on the light, and yet this discovery wouldn't have been possible without the son of a slave, **Lewis Howard Latimer (1848 – 1928)**, who, in the early-1880's was instrumental in improving the carbon filament utilized in the **incandescent lightbulb** we all use today and is most often associated with the inventor, **Thomas Edison**, who took advantage of his so-called superior white status to bamboozle his way into getting all the intellectual credit. Nonetheless, we see that the scientific world was not so white back then, Mr. Sarkozy,

Have you ever been stopped by a red light?

2. Garrett Morgan (1877-1963): the inventor of the traffic light (1920).

Are you connected online?

3. Nigerian computer engineer, Philip Emeagwali (1954 -) is

considered one of the founding fathers of the Internet. He also invented one of the world's fastest supercomputers.

4. Due to segregation, the father of blood transfusion, **Charles Richard Drew** (1904–1950) couldn't study at schools attended by white people.

5. Granville T. Woods (1856-1910) in electricity, the multiplicity of areas of excellence, electric switch system, the boiler furnace, the telephone transmitter, the induction telegraph, and the electrification of the railway.

6. George Washington Carver (1864-1943), a chemist, devised the first plant-derived chemicals such as dyes, shoe polish, ink, laundry bleach, shaving cream, preserves, cornflakes, etc. President Franklin D. Roosevelt will approve a stamp with his likeness, a statue representing him, and a university in his name.

7. Alexander Miles, who invented the automated elevator door system, is also African. (11 October 1887)

8. **Granville T. Woods** (1856-1910) in electricity, the multiplicity of areas of excellence, electric switch system, the boiler furnace, the telephone transmitter, the induction telegraph, and the electrification of the railway.

9. **George Washington Carver** (1864-1943), a chemist, devised the first plant-derived chemicals such as dyes, shoe polish, ink, laundry bleach, shaving cream, preserves, cornflakes, etc. President Franklin Roosevelt will make a stamp with his effigy, a statue representing him, and a university in his name.

10. **Jones Frederik McKinley** (1892-1961) invented the concept of MOBILE REFRIDGERATION used by all means of transport.

11. The ELECTRIC LAMP was invented by **Joseph V. Nichols** and **Lewis H. Latimer.** (13 September 1881)

12. The PARABOLIC ANTENNA was invented by **Granville T. Woods**. (7 June 1887)

13. IMPROVED SUGAR PRODUCTION was invented by **Norbert Rilleux.** (10 December 1881)

14. The TRAIN SWITCH was invented by **William F. Burr.** (31 October 1899)

15. The POTATO DIGGER was invented by F.J. Wood. (23 April 1895)

16. CAPSULES FOR BOTTLES AND JARS were invented by Albert

A.Jones. (13 September 1898)

17. The CAN (JERRY CAN) was invented by **Albert C. Richardson.** (17 February 1891)

18. The BED GUARD was invented by **Lewis A. Russell.** (13 August 1895)

19. The AUTOMATIC RAILROAD COUPLER was invented by **Andrew J. Beard.** (1897)

20. The GAS MASK was invented by **Garett A. Morgan.** (13 October 1914)

21. The FIRE EMERGENCY HOOD was invented **by Joseph R. Winters.** (7 May 1878)

22. The SWING CHAIR was invented by **Payton Johnson.** (15 November 1881)

23. STEEL FRAMEWORK (CAR) was invented by **Carter William**. (2 February 1892)

24. The STEAM HOB was invented by **William Carter.** (26 October 1897)

25. PROTECTIVE EYE LENSES were invented by **Powell Johnson.** (2 November 1880)

26. The ELEVATOR was invented by **Alexander Miles.** (11 October 1867)

27. The PENCIL SHARPENER was invented by **John L. Love.** (11 October 1867)

28. The TRAIN CAR COUPLING DEVICE was invented by **Andrew J. Beard.** (10 October 1899)

29. AMUSEMENT PARK RIDES were invented by **Granville T. Woods**. (19 December 1899)

30. The LOCOMOTIVE CHIMNEY was improved by Landron Bell.

(23 May 1871)

31. The LANTERN or STORM LAMP was invented by **Michael C. Hamey.** (19 August 1884)

32. The MECHANICAL PIANO was invented by **Joseph H. Dickinson**. (11 June 1912)

33. The FITTING OF WAGONS-LITS was invented by **John W. West.** (8 October 1870)

34. The PORTABLE BALANCE was invented by John W. Hunter.

(3 November 1896)

35. The W.C. (TOILET) was invented by **Jerome B. Rhodes.** (19 December 1889)

36. The CARTRIDGE INK PEN was invented by **William B. Purvis.** (27 February 1883)

37. The REFRIGERATOR was invented by John Stenard. (14 July 1891)

38. The SWITCH (THE COMMUTATOR) was invented by **Granville T. Woods.** (1 January 1889)

39. The PHOTOGRAPHIC DEVELOPER was invented by **Clatonia Joaquin Dorticus.** (23 April 1895)

40. The GALOCHE (SHOE COVER) was invented by **Alvin L. Rickman**. (8 February 1898)

41. The COMPOSTER MACHINE was invented by **William Barry**. (22 June 1897)

42. The FOUNDER-MOULDER was invented by **David A. Fisher.** (14 March 1876)

43. The BROOM-WASHER was invented by **Thomas W. Steward.** (13 June 1893)

44. The TYPEWRITER was invented by **Lee S. Burridge** and **Newman R. Mashman.** (7 April 1885)

45. The PROTEGE-DOCUMENT (papers) was invented by **Henry Brown**. (2 November 1886)

46. The RECORDER HANDLE was invented by **Joseph Hunter Dickinson.** (8 January 1918)

47. The TRAIN ALARM SYSTEM was invented by **Richard A. Butler**. (15 June 1897)

48. The TERRINE (ICE-CREAM MOLD) was invented by **Alfred L. Cralle.** (2 February 1897)

49. The DRYER was invented by **George T. Sampson.** (7 June 1892)

50. PAINT AND DYES was invented by **George Washington Carver**.

(14 June 1927)

51. CAR BRAKES was invented by John V. Smith. (6 August 1872)

52. The KNEADING MACHINE was invented by Joseph H. Dickinson.

(7 August 1894)

53. The FOOTWEAR MACHINE was invented by **Jan E. Matzeliger.** (20 March 1884)

54. The RESERVOIR FOUNTAIN PEN was invented by **William B. Purvis.**

(7 January 1890)

55. The TUNNEL FOR ELECTRIC TRAIN was invented by **Granville T. Woods.** (17 July 1888)

56. The TRAFFIC LIGHT (red light) was invented by **Garett A. Morgan**. (20 November 1923)

57. The GUITAR was invented by **Robert F. Flemmings Jr.** (30 March 1886)

58. The MAILBOX was invented by **Philip B. Downing.** (27 October 1891)

59. The HAIR COMB was invented by **Walter H. Sammons.** (21 December 1920)

60. The ELECTRIC TROLLEY ON RAILS was invented by **Elbert R. Robinson.** (19 September 1893)

61. MECHANICAL COOKIE CUTTERS was invented by **Alexander Ashbourne**. (30 November 1875)

62. The EGG-BEATER WHIP was invented by **Willis Johnson**. (5 February 1884)

63. The IRONING BOARD was invented by **Sarah Boone.** (1892)

64. PRESS ROTORS (printing) was invented by **W.A. Lavalette.** (17 September 1878)

65. The ELEVATOR SAFETY SYSTEM was invented by **James Cooper**. (2 April 1895)

66. The STREET SWEEPER was invented by **Charles B. Brooks.** (17 March 1890)

67. The BIKE PARCEL CARRIER was invented by Jerry M. Certain. (26

December 1899)

68. TELEPHONE SYSTEMS AND DEVICES was invented by **Granville T. Woods.** (11 October 1887)

69. The LAWN MOWER was invented by **John Albert Burr.** (9 May 1899)

70. AUTOMATIC GEARS (vehicles) were invented by **Richard B. Spikes.** (6 December 1932)

71. GARBAGE BINS (garbage bin) were invented by **Lloyd P. Ray.** (3 August 1897)

72. The CITRUS PRESS was invented by **John T. White.** (8 December 1896)

73. SAFETY DOORS (for weighbridges) was invented by **Humphrey Reynolds.** (7 October 1890)

74. The THERMOSTAT was invented by **David N. Crosthwait Jr**. (6 March 1928)

75. BIKE FRAME was invented by Isaac R. Johnson. (10 October 1899)

76. The HORSESHOE was invented by **Oscar E. Brown.** (23 August 1892)

77. The LANDAU (stroller) was invented by **William H. Richardson**. (18 June 1889)

78. The AUTOMATIC RAT TRAP was invented by William S. Campbell.

(31 August 1881)

79. The CORN-SILKING MANCHINE was invented by **Robert P. Scott.** (7 August 1894)

70. The HORSE SADDLE was invented by William D. Davis. (1896)

81. The HORSE BIT was invented by **Lincoln F. Brown**. (25 October 1892)

82. HOOD COVER (for horses) was invented by **Robert Coates.** (19 April 1892)

83. The GOLF TEE was invented by **George F. Grant.** (12 December 1896.

84. AIR CONDITIONING (split) was invented by **Frederick M. Jones**. (12 July 1949)

85. The RIFLE TRIGGER (the detonator) was invented by **Edward R. Lewis.** (3 May 1897)

86. AUTOMATIC FISHING DEVICES were invented by **George Cook.** (30 May 1899)

87. The LAWN WATERING CAN was invented by **Joseph H. Smith.** (4 May 1897)

88. The RAILWAY TELEGRAPH was invented by **Granville T. Woods**. (28 August 1888)

89. The POSTAL MAIL TRANSFER DEVICE was invented by **J.C. Jones.** (24 May 1917)

90. The FIRE EXTINGUISHER was invented by **Thomas J. Martin.** (26 March 1872)

91. The FREIGHT TRANSPORT DEVICE was invented by **John W. Butts.** (10 October 1899)

92. The FOLDING BED was invented by L.C. Bailey. (18 July 1899)

93. CURTAIN RODS were invented by W.S Grant. (4 August 1896)

94. The CONVERTIBLE SOFA BED was invented by **J.H. Evans.** (5 October 1897)

95. ELECTRIC WINDOW WASHERS were invented by **A.L. Lewis.** (27 September 1882)

96. The HARVESTER was invented by H.L. Jones. (3 June 1890)

97. The AIRSHIP was invented by J.F. Pickering. (20 February 1900)

98. The COTTON COLLECTOR was invented by **Georges W. Murray.** (5 June 1894)

99. ENGINE LUBRICANTS were invented by **Elijah McCoy**. (15 November 1898)

100. The STEAM LUBRICATION MACHINE was invented by **Elijah McCoy.** (4 July 1876)

101. COMPUTER MAGNETIC TAPE was invented by **Larry T. Preston**. (24 August 1971)

102. The CONTROL PEDAL was invented by **Minnis Hadden**. (5 October 1886)

103. The RADAR DETECTION ANTENNA was invented by **James E. Lewis.** (11 June 1968)

104. The SUPERCHARGER SYSTEM FOR COMBUSTION ENGINE was invented by **Joseph A. Gammel.** (3 February 1976)

105. AUTOMATED LOADING AND UNLOADING OF POSTAL MAIL was invented by **Gus Burton**. (13 February 1945)

106. HOISTING AND LOADING MECHANISMS were invented by **Mary Jane Reynolds.** (2 May 1919)

107. The GAMMA ELECTRIC CELL was invented by **Henry T. Sampson**. (6 June 1971)

108. The REFRIGERATION SYSTEM (FRIDGE and FREEZER) was invented by **Thomas Elkins.** (4 November 1879)

109. SIGNALING (airport beacons, cranes, buildings, etc.) was invented by **Lewis W.W. Chubb.** (30 March 1937)



Right Madam C. J Walker, Elijah McCoy, Garret Morgan, Lewis Howard Latimer, Betty Harris22

²² Curtis Conrad Schabath, "Most of Your Favourite Inventions were Created by Black Inventors", 27 February, 2017 https://brokeassstuart.com/2017/02/27/blackhistory-months-inventions-we-all-love/

Did you ever once hear the name Thomas Fuller?

He was a mathematician slave in 1700s, his most famous feat was providing an answer to the question, "How many seconds are there in a year and a half?" After about two minutes, Tom Fuller's answer was 47,304,000. This question was posed at a time when he was 70; imagine how fast he must have been when he was younger? It is such a pain in Africa that such a great spirit has been imprisoned in slavery! Thomas Fuller died at the age of 80 in 1797. The Boston newspaper, Colombian Sentinel noted his obituary, so died Negro Tom, that self-taught arithmetician, that uneducated scholar! - If his possibilities of improvement had been equal to those of thousands of his fellows, neither the Royal Society of London, the Academy of Sciences of Paris, nor even Newton himself would have been ashamed to recognize him as a brother in science.' In conclusion, their observations of Fuller's computer skills were then submitted to the abolitionist Pennsylvania society. Pro-abolitionists and western philanthropists used his talent as proof and that African slaves were equal to western intelligence.

To get a better understanding about Thomas Fuller, you can read, <u>A</u> <u>Wizard in Any Age</u>, by Jane H. Pejsa.

You falsified history because including black African inventors in your textbooks is taboo. This dismal reality was exposed by Barcha Bauer in his documentary film about African scholars who were conveniently forgotten by historians. In short, you favored white scientists over those from other communities. Quite simply, you finally shunned them in order for them to have the same history as yours, knowing full well they were responsible for discoveries and inventions that have left an indelible mark upon your society. Today, whether you like it or not, Mr. Sarkozy, you most definitely need to adapt a scientific approach, because there's no race superior over another and there's only one sun and one moon for all humans. I mean, aren't you ashamed when you highlighted in yellow marker pens in your scholastic institutions that all great men of humanity are white, but how about the place of Chinese, Arab, or African scientists? You have marginalized the young people of the non-Western continent to the extent they view themselves as limited, worthless individuals because their predecessors did nothing. It's necessary to put an end to that, as you owe us the truth about the multi-racial world, we live in. Each time a French, German, English, American, etc. scientist or author writes a lie, it takes centuries to remove this lie, because repeating the same lie several times takes the place of the truth. From prehistoric times, Africans have recorded evidence pertaining to the ultimate development phase of universal civilization. Rest assured, Africa has brought and continues to offer much significance to humanity.

Ishango Bone

Were you ever made aware of the **Bone of Ishango, the very source of mathematics**? I insist that Africa is not only considered the cradle of humanity, but also the cradle of mathematics. Verifiable and convincing evidence is available in the form of the Ishango bone, which dates from the Upper Paleolithic era, (18,000-20,000 BCE), which was centered near the headwaters of the Nile at Lake Edward, bordering modern-day eastern DRC. This bone is found in the inventory of the Royal Belgian Institute of Natural Sciences. According to **Wikipedia**, the lakeside Ishango (Congolese) community of 20,000 years ago may have been one of the first counting societies.²³



The bone of Ishango

If you examine this bone, you will notice that it's really tallying, because it is neatly ordered, like mathematics, so it is the world's first registered count.

While it is said that the word *mathematics* comes from the ancient Greek word, *máthēma* = meaning "knowledge, study, learning," the word *mathematics* also has the same sound and meaning as a word in the Congolese Lingala language, *mateya*, meaning 'learning,' 'thinking' as well as 'advice.' Is this a mere coincidence?

^{23 &}quot;Ishango Bone", *Wikipedia*, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 16 December, 2023 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ishango_bone


Another one of its kind was found near the **Libombo Mountains** of Swaziland a few hundred kilometers east of my current location dated to approximately 11,000 years ago. There are also quartz crystals attached to the ends, and it's a baboon bone like Tehuti (**Thoth**).²⁴

The reason why scientists call Africa "the cradle of humanity" is because plenty of evidence has been brought to light at the **Blombos Cave**, located 300 km east of Cape Town, South Africa. Similar findings were also uncovered in Swaziland, Malawi, as well as Egypt. Even the ancient Greeks like **Plato, Aristos,** and the mathematical arts were first instituted in Africa, in ancient Egypt. There is also **Chinese** or **Arabic** mathematics, but particularly, Africans are the first in the world to come up with mathematic equations and the number *Pi*, as well as solutions,

^{24 &}quot;Lebombo Bone", *Wikipedia*, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 28 September, 2023 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lebombo_bone

because mathematics is a universal language. Not only do we constantly ignoring African mathematical contributions to humanity, we're also ignoring everything else. Despite pottery, weaving, medicinal plants and many board games that emerged from the continent, they want to politically isolate Africa. In recent years, they've chosen the path of contempt and denigration. It has worked on Africans, as it has bred a noticeable sense of non-confidence throughout the continent.

Throughout the entire history of humanity, there are no people who have suffered so much as those of Africa, with a total of 700 years of suffering, mourning and pain. I remember the book by Congolese Egyptologist, **Dr. Obenga** entitled **La Geometrie Egyptienne**, which states a very important scientific point; there was no paper *per se* that people used to write during antiquity. That said, the use of papyrus, from which paper would subsequently derive, was purely the invention of the Egyptians. Without papyrus, the world would've never known the writings of Plato, Aristotle, Socrates, Caesar and the Arabs, because paper didn't emerge until the Middle Ages, when Chinese paper arrived in Europe around 1100 AD.



Papyrus roll of a depiction of Qenna25

Westerners know Africans have exceptional blood and skin, which is the reason they dislike Africans. So, pointless innuendo should be avoided.

²⁵ Rijksmuseum Van Oudheden "Qenna's Book of The Dead" <u>https://www.rmo.nl/en/</u> exhibitions/temporary-exhibitions/the-papyrus-roll-of-qenna/

But how is it so that this scourge of racism survived so long through the veil of impurity and global consensus?

Is there some sort of destined community of humanity as a whole? Is it possible to even address the question as to why blacks are despised so much?

None of the reasons proposed since the beginning of time hold any water.

1. Africa holds the history of humanity in its palm because it is *the* source.

2. They say that Africans are primitive, but Africans are the ones who civilized humanity.

3 They say Africans are unsophisticated, but Africans are the ones who cultured everyone else.

All that has ever been suggested to justify African inferiority doesn't hold water, so just give me one valid reason that grants everyone the right to despise Africans. If there isn't an intangible aspect, what else might it be?

So, if we go back to the Nile Valley and the Egyptian civilization, we can see that Africans had raised self-reflection and the awareness of their fate to an unprecedented level. They were the first to pose in a civilized manner, in other words, lived with the belief that our body is a capsule that holds the spirit.

Africans were the first to say that it is good to live a life of purity to prepare for the afterlife, so when the capsule disappears, we'll become powerful on a spiritual level in order to continue the adventure of the cosmos and eternal life. The object that is synonymous with resurrection and the afterlife is the **obelisk**, examples of which are found on the Washington Mall and Central Park, Manhattan NY as well as in Westminster / London, Istanbul / Sultanahmet Square and Paris / Place du Concorde.



The genius of such a society that brought its Creator closer to God. Here is where the verse came from God created man in his image, a people who were closest and also deeply known to their Creator, this proximity is no coincidence, for herein lies the basis for hostile feelings the West harbors towards Africans.



To justify their jealousy, hostility and follies historically, Westerners invited many myths with metaphysical foundation and to assert themselves. After Napoleon conquered the Kemet (modern-day Egyptians) in 1798, his forces removed many priceless artworks and manuscripts from the local library. In confiscating much of scientific

memory of Egypt, they proceeded to auto-programed themselves as the masters of the world.

What is the crux of the matter in order to elevate one's social status? Admittedly, some will say that it is money, but money is merely a tool. Rather, it is knowledge that has had the most impact in improving one's place in society. Without knowledge, one cannot manufacture a cellphone even if you are the greatest producer of *coltan* in the world.

Allow me to expound upon this point. For instance, if you hire a mason to build your home, you'd assume this mason is competent with his job. This is valid for each sector. In other words, what separates us today from what we could become is the knowledge we must apply to get the job done. That's precisely what the new generation of Africa is trying to do today.

It is said that the more knowledge you accumulate, the higher you'll climb up the pyramid of power, and vice-versa.

As **Gregg Braden** explains in his work, <u>The Divine Matrix</u>, there is a place where all things begin, the place of pure energy that simply "is." In this quantum incubator for reality, everything is possible. In 1944, Max Planck, the father of quantum theory, shocked the world by saying that this "matrix" is where the birth of stars, the DNA of life, and everything between originates. Recent discoveries reveal dramatic evidence that Planck's matrix—The Divine Matrix—is real. It is this missing link in our understanding that provides the container for the universe, the bridge between our imagination and our reality, and the mirror in our world for what we create in our beliefs.

To unleash the power of this matrix in our lives, we must understand how it works and speak the language that it recognizes. Unfortunately, science cannot explain this to us, but it can only come from our past, our culture, and the history of those who have learned to use this language throughout the millennia.

Regarded as one who initiated workings of the Christian Church, Emperor Constantine had to decide what information would be included and what would be excluded in the Christian Bible. What we know the current version of the Bible has been modified several times, we are told that 45 Books were either completely deleted from the Bible or else drastically modified.²⁶

^{26 &}quot;The Lost Books of the Bible and the Forgotten Books of Eden", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 11 November 2023 https://en.wikipedia.org/ wiki/The_Lost_Books_of_the_Bible_and_the_Forgotten_Books_of_Eden

The difference between what today's Bible says and the analysis of my research on this point is that the Bible speaks to us only about the existing texts but not of the hidden and deleted books. So, we must attempt to comprehend the mindset of those who deleted the 45 books from the Bible in the 4th century AD.

1. In whose best interests were they removed?

2. If it is recommended to add or to remove an iota from the apostles' writings, then why the need for diversion from the original texts for falsification?

3. Who benefitted from such deletions / redactions?

For instance, in Ephesians 6:5, the Bible says, "Slaves, obey your earthly masters with respect and fear, and with the sincerity of heart, just as you would obey Christ."



This infers that the Bible accepted the practice of slavery, by saying, "Slave submit yourself to your master." When in fact, how can such an abominable act be recommended in the Holy Scriptures? Because slavery denies the very essence of unfettered humanity.

Racism fed slavery to the extent that it became philosophically and spiritually justified. Karl Marx said that the role of racism is to hide economic plundering.

In my humble opinion I would like to say that it is also true. However, this point could be the final aspect; the fundamental idea is that they (Westerners) treat being black as something inferior, and in a sub-human category.

The reasons suggested for this justification is the process of genocidal violence they have instigated and operate mechanisms of strategic violence to exterminate, and especially violent methods applied to plunder and commandeer lands that don't belong to them, replace their names, their memory, abduct their inheritance, impose languages, spiritual and religious practices.

It is with the manifestation of this hatred which transforms into megaviolence is conveyed by an essential impulse to the Western racist, it is an impulse with unshackled domination that will homogenize the economy for themselves.

From the start, there is a fundamental or primordial conflict between the human and the human as Pan-Africa's current president, Prof. Dr. Banda Kani of Cameroon, who often said, "Let's revert to the source from when it was confirmed that Africa is the cradle of humanity and the black man is the first being to live on Earth is a metaphysical confine so I explained to myself one cannot live without the other, a race can't live if it doesn't exterminate another race. Unfortunately, black is in the position as the one to be exterminated." From the start, there has been a fundamental or primordial conflict amongst humans. I'm follow Ph.D. Banda Kani from Cameroon on his YouTube Panafricanistes TV channel who says, "let's go back to the source from the moment it was confirmed that Africa is the cradle of humanity and that the black man is the first man who existed on Earth is a metaphysical confine." So, I appreciate it when he said, "We cannot live without the other. But for Westerners can't live if they don't exterminate another black man. Unfortunately, Black is in a perpetual position to be exterminated."

In the true sense of the word, the first beings on earth were of dark

complexion who had others with dark skin facing them. As the first on Earth for millions of years during which they confronted themselves, Man didn't have the will or gumption to exterminate one another, which is why the world is populated today.

In my opinion, even the idea of refuting black humanity through Darwin's 'Theory of Evolution' was enough justification for erasing Black men from the face of Earth.

You have to pass through all that to understand the source of the metaphysical conflict, which is a jumble of genetics, anthropology, history, and sociology. For the West to remain in peace, it is necessary for Blacks to disappear from the face of the planet.

The world's impunity of all criminal acts, genocide and rape committed on the African continent is the act that is shared the most with the rest of the world. Looking at all these crimes that Africa has suffered determines the heart of racism.

While the perpetrators of the Jewish Holocaust are well-documented and were also punished for this act, the countries guilty of slavery, which is recognized as a crime against humanity, have gotten off scot-free.

Let's drop the classic definition that has served its benefits.

Trivializing the tragedies that have been inflicted on the black man is enough to understand the root of racism.

If you, the West, refuse to engage with the fate of Africans because it is inhumane, then why does this practice of subjugation still persist in the 21^{st} century?

Going to China, America, Asia, and Europe without exception no one escapes, the only place the black people breathe a little is in Russia because they are also natives. Representatives of African peoples in the Russian language have been commonly called *negry*. The word *negr* comes from Spanish *negro*, which means 'black' in Spanish. In the Russian language, the word does not carry a negative connotation. There have been many notable personalities of African descent in Russia.²⁷

With the exception of Russia, everyone made a compromise that I call, "the consensus of turning the existence of blacks into **Black Code**."

According to Darwinian Theory, the Black man has been classified in the range of humanity and is considered as a gift by the West. Therefore,

^{27 &}quot;Afro-Russians", *Wikipedia*, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 10 January 2024<u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Afro-Russians</u>

the Black man gains his humanity only by chance. When we see their daily behavior, we understand they say, "We can rape them, spit on them, smack them on the buttocks." This is the daily practice of Asians, Europeans, Americans, etc. without any collective sentences or punishment for committing these heinous acts. They don't hesitate to deny the existence of the black man without understanding the real reason.

Concurrently, Africans have no name, no face, we don't know or care whether they live or die. What makes the situation more contradictory is the way they incessantly pound into our brain how much legislation, religious morality, and institutions supposed to fight racism have advanced, while testifying that contemporary 21st century human rights organizations have everything under their control.

But given the existential problem of all this global legality and these international institutions, the fact is, how many of the 54 African countries are permanent members of the UN Security Council? The answer is none.

France calls itself a country of light, but its so-called 'light' renders blacks invisible in the country of whites. The only way to see them is if they become French citizens. The most striking example of this is that France benefits from the talents of Africans in many aspects of the national football team. Whenever the team wins, the players are considered 'French,' but whenever the team loses, the same players are pushed away and are 'African.' It's hypocrisy.



The French Team - Qatar / World Cup 2022

The point of the matter is that racism that denies Africans from living as unfettered Africans in France; taking on decent job positions in France requires Africans to renounce their citizenship and take on French citizenship. On the contrary, white French people live Africa as they wish, without changing their nationality.

Racism against the African man is so chronic, the more we fight it, the more it rears up its ugly head from the ashes, because it's perpetuated by something more fundamental.

In my opinion, the road of racism is one-way. While this is a case between two humans, this should be a two-way street, but one who is oppressed is called 'black.' Look how their nations attacked ancient Egypt. In other words, racism is the result of the coalition of colonial nations, i.e., the Portuguese, the Spaniards, the French, the British, the Germans, and the Americans, who gave rise to slavery. They converged at the hotbed of colonization, the Conference of Berlin (1884-85) to attack Africa and divide it up like so many pieces of chocolate cake.

If Africa had the chance to be attacked by just a single nation, we wouldn't have arrived in this weakened situation we are in today.

Let's take me, Ikah as an example. I'm sovereign and I have an empire with 200,000 warriors at my disposal when I confront the Portuguese Army. I'll lose a good number of men even if I win, but imagine if the Spanish Army, and the French and the Germans come at me in quick succession, I'll lose control of things at some point.

I write this book with great humility, but the truth speaks louder than Hollywood films; there are no single people in the world who are physically stronger than Africans.

The first sign of mental defeat is to deprive oneself of a system for conveying knowledge, especially when this conveyance is imposed by the colonial power.

I explain to myself that after conquering the nations of Africa with the help of mechanized weapons, they contemplated other methods to ensure the people of the continent living in peace and harmony without provoking the fear of constant rebellion.

The object of the colonial game was to continue imposing their force *ad nauseam*. For this to happen, they needed to dominate African brains.

The languages, the religion, the education, and the culture made the Africans can lose the report/ ratio of force with the Westerners.

According to the mathematical spirit, the calculation 1 + 1 = 2, but, being a weak project, this can easily change in mathematics. The easiest thing in arithmetic, if you know the rules you are applying, then everything is valid. Whereas mathematics needs components such as reasoning, rigor, requirements, and consistency in order to find the truth. Everything can be coordinated once we have these components at hand, and that's the math.

Here is the real math, reflection with an equation with several unknown elements. For example, the expression "the eel hides under a rock" implies that Western powers have infiltrated the militaries and governments of Africa:

When we ask ourselves questions in depth, we must specify who is hiding behind the Rwandan nation? Because it's almost impossible to understand if you look at the numbers. In terms of territory, while Rwanda is almost a hundred times less than DR Congo, in terms of population, it is ten times less. How can such a small country have the capacity to be such a major nuisance against a behemoth on its western border? While the mouse is generally afraid of the mastodon it flees from, how is it that the tiny mouse has managed to create fear and panic in the mastodon for the past 28 years?

So, this is an anomaly that must be explained.

Herein lies the modus operandi of the Westerners...

THE EMPIRE OF DEGRADATION

We have entered a new era in which crimes will no longer be normalized because we have understood that we can no longer underestimate degradation in life or politics as it is one of the greatest mistakes our elders committed, something which have become extremely difficult to recover from.

My grandmother drew an illustration for me when I was little, saying, "If you catch a thief red-handed in our neighborhood, but he denies his crime by saying, 'I didn't do anything." Then he starts taunting you and even dares to tell the owner of the tainted goods, it becomes a matter between you and I. This means that before you have the chance to drag to the police station, he's already in your home, waiting for you, and you'll have to negotiate with him in order for you to sleep in peace." This is the logic behind the Empire of Degradation. The world today is ruled by a band of high-profile bandits, so called international organizations such as the United States, the European Union, etc., that kill and burn everywhere.

For centuries, we have not reacted, accepting the unacceptable, and pounding our eardrums with slogans from the crowds shouting the West is so powerful and always right. Through their lobbying that supports corporations and global mafia networks, billions of dollars are diverted and shared in networks that go back to the head of the UN. We're no longer naive; we already get the gist that the UN is the one holding and managing the list of conflict agendas but doesn't assume any legal responsibility.

This is my formula in politics; "Inequality + domination = plunder of resources. Essentially, he who has the power to transform abnormal effects into normal is an official swindler." Quotes from Ikah

The same so-called human rights communities prevent African states from carrying out institutional political reforms to hold elections. With their ultimate objective, the re-foundation of African States, they refuse to allow African Heads of State to foster deep and legitimate aspirations of the African people for peace, security and good governance, as well as for the continent's development and lasting institutional stability.

Before the elections they assure the next head of state will be in harmony with the West. Otherwise, they point to a second term in favor of the former president, which they will validate later, after the people vehemently protest.

This is the mindset of your human rights communities.

French authorities have themselves become deeply anti-French for reigning over moral universal values, thus betraying the proud humanist heritage of the philosophers of the Age of Enlightenment, such as Rousseau, Voltaire, Montesquieu, and Diderot, thereby reverting into cabals in the service of Darkness.

The Darkness of the French cabals is nostalgic for waning neocolonialism, partnership, not to mention revenge that sponsors and premeditates unprecedented illegal, illegitimate and inhumane sanctions against African states.

Whatever became of your state slogan, "Liberty, Equality, Fraternity"?

On the contrary, to quote from the late-George Carlin, "The only three things that matter to politicians are; "the Flag, the Bible and Children."

Several centuries of insecurity have caused the deaths of millions of

refugees and internally displaced persons alike.

Is this not sacrilege for countries held captive, the victims of slavery, colonization and neo-colonization for centuries?

After your flag, you put the Bible in the center of your satanic acts and scenes, but naturally, everyone knows that there's no way in Hell God can be a criminal, or a terrorist. So, tell me how does one justify one's satanic acts in the name of God the Benevolent?

It's time to thwart the prognosis of our invisible but direct enemy, the West.

In quoting the address of the Prime Minister of Mali to the 77th session of the UN General Assembly (Sept.2022), "The Darkness of the French cabals, which are guilty of the instrumentation of different ethnicities, forget its responsibility so quickly in the Genocide committed against the Tutsi in Rwanda.

Also, he invited France not to stop at these good paths and go back in time, without forgetting the forced conscription of thousands of Africans nicknamed *Tirailleurs Senegalais* during World War I and II, without always forgetting the slave trade which explains the economic fate of many countries."

How many Africans died for France and the Free World in which we live?

The world must be built on the serious consequences that have occurred in Africa and which are at the root of the aggravation of poverty, underdevelopment, insecurity and destabilization of the entire African continent. And yet, these acts of hostilities run counter to the Charter of the United Nations and membership in the Security Council.

As William Shakespeare put it so succinctly all those years ago, "There's something rotten in the state of Denmark." $^{\rm 28}$

Since when has the UN Secretary General acted like the Godfather of the World to intervene in legal cases when there are courts of justice in Africa? Case in point were the 46 Ivorian mercenaries arrested for staging a military takeover against the President of Mali on 10 July 2022.

Here are the UN secretary's exact remarks of 22 July 2022, in which he said, "There is no link between the 46 mercenaries and the United Nations."²⁹

²⁸ Shakespeare, W. 1600, "Hamlet", Act I, Scene 4

²⁹ United Nations Security Council 18 October, 2022, 9154th Meeting Report, pg. 21,

The intent of the aforementioned letter was to turn the victim country of Mali into the guilty party.

Wining and dining has always been an integral part of the business transactions of African countries.

But why hasn't that same UN Secretary-General, Antonio Gutierrez, found the courage to tackle the ongoing conflict in eastern DR Congo, where the death toll in past 30 years has exceeded more than 10 million. After all, he's holding the Mapping Exercise Report, which has been prepared at tremendous expense annually by UN experts since 1993.

So, let's get back to the subject and you will all ultimately understand it is mathematics that is behind my reasoning.

I got interested in history, not only to interpret what happened over the years, but to understand how it has influenced our present and also how it can guide our future choices.

For me, history is like a dashboard that allows us to avoid repeating in the same mistakes, but to take preventative measures in order to avoid worse case scenarios as well.

After wondering for many years as to why there has been so much hate and embellished lies, I ask myself why Africans have never been treated like other races. Especially in light of the fact they were the first to bring things such as; civilization, art, astronomy, physics, mathematics, medicine, spirituality, architecture, all of which have been taken for granted by the rest of the world.

Although Africa is regarded as the cradle of knowledge, particularly of the sort our ancestors so amply demonstrated in the Valley of the Nile, everything of the black persuasion is considered unlucky, even innocent animals. Everything except black coffee, has always been looked upon as strong and powerful.

Africans are nice to everyone but they're treated everywhere as subhuman.

For 300,000 years, Africans have treated their fellow humans as kings and queens of the universe but the rest of humanity treated Africans as slaves. Africans weren't included as part of the strategy to conquer the world; they were alone for 300,000 years; they had no idea any other color existed until about 6000 years ago. So, the affairs of disorder and inferiority of West turned against the Blacks.

referencing letter no. NV/226/2022 https://www.securitycouncilreport.org/atf/ cf/%7B65BFCF9B-6D27-4E9C-8CD3-CF6E4FF96FF9%7D/S_PV_9154.pdF

Without veiling their faces, I will say there is a problem in the relationship between Whites and Blacks.

It's not a slave story but there is something much more to it than meets the eye. This is exactly the job that I strive to fill with compelling real evidence and elements of the history and culture of anthropology. Undoubtedly, the whites' regard for the blacks as the most prestigious people on the planet drove them to a jealous desire to dislodge them from their African homeland. To do this, they created false stories, myths, philosophies and psychoanalysis claiming that: Eden belongs to them but with the main idea suggesting that **Africa must be without Africans**.

THE WHITE GAME

For me, my tune *Red, Black & White* (2010) is the starting point of the White and Black game. Man has never been satisfied with his own condition, and has always envied the condition of his neighbor. From this envy stemmed jealousy, which led to racism, which is the source of xenophobia and fascism.

As envy inevitably turns to hate, people worry more about others instead of concentrating on themselves, and once they realize their inadequacies, they're quick to point out the next person to make them feel better.

Don't sit around waiting for a colonizer to tell a good story about you, because that is wishful thinking.

The first contact between the Romans and Greeks with the people of Egypt (Kemet) was of great admiration. Actually, Kemet, meaning 'black land,' and pronounced 'Kumat,' was the original name of the country the Greeks called 'Egypt.' Unlike the Pharaohs, the whites didn't have symbols of greatness or prestige, the Romans and Greeks were amazed to see and admired the jewelry, costumes, perfume of the Kemet, and it wasn't long before they began to imitate all these things.

Look at the togas, robes and open sandals worn by the Roman emperors, kings, and Catholic priests; these were originally from temperate countries and were of the Kemet style. This emulation can also be found in their symbols of royalty as well as the subsequently founded church all the way up to the present.

I very solemnly invite you to read the book <u>Perfume</u>, by Patrick Süskind (1985), which tells us a smelly story of Paris between 1738 -

1767. This book mentions that everyone in Paris, including royalty and priests, stank profusely Paris during the Middle Ages. Similarly, in the Congolese Kikongo language, Mundele mputu ye nsudi, which is still used today, meaning "the race of the poor and smelly," is an expression used to describe the first group of white explorers that arrived in the Boma region to Mbanza Kongo remains of the capital of the former Kingdom of Congo, which is south of the equator which source of name Democratic Congo. Our grandparents told us that when European vessels first arrived in the harbors of Boma and Matadi around 1482, the whole area stank. I didn't understand it at the time, but after reading *Perfume*, I realized they were right, and grasped what they said by the expression, *Mundele* mputu ve nsudi. Incidentally, the word Mputu means Europe. Interestingly enough, this expression is used to this very day, as according to African culture, a woman cannot go outside her yard or greet her neighbor if she doesn't wash up in the morning. Whenever a man doesn't take his daily shower, he's directly nicknamed 'White.'

Imagine if Patrick Süskind weaves such a smelly tale from the 18th century in his book, it implies that hygienically speaking, nothing much changed over the 250 years since the first Portuguese mariner Diego Cão sailed up the Congo River in today's Angola and Namibia in 1482.

KEMET (BLACK LAND) EGYPT

Let me revert back to a new chapter regarding Egypt. My first question is, why is Egypt, rather than Greece, Italy or France generally referred to as *ancient*?

This can be an interesting starting point regardless of how clever the Western world is to deny that Egypt was dark-skinned and that there were no other modern civilizations other than the one along the Nile River. Boy, were they mistaken! While history tells us about the Kingdom of Kongo (1390-1914) and the empire of Mali with the greatest emperor named Mansa Kankan Musa (1312-1337),³⁰ who remains the richest in the history of humanity, and the Great Mosque of Djenné (Timbuktu), built in the 13th century and still remains in use today.³¹ Musa's immediate predecessor, Muhammed Qu Mansa, reportedly organized two transatlantic voyages, the first with 200 vessels and the second, with 2,000 ships. It is understood

^{30 &}quot;Mansa Musa", *Wikipedia*, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 7 January, 2024 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mansa_Musa

³¹ Brand E., "The history richlist: the 10 wealthiest people ever" *History Extra*, 25 May, 2022 https://www.historyextra.com/period/general-history/richest-person-history/

these ships made landfall in the Americas during the early-14th century, nearly 200 years before the voyages of Christopher Columbus, and over 150 years before the first Portuguese mariners navigated the shores of Africa.³²

1. What do the term 'civilization' mean?

According to the Cambridge Dictionary, *civilization* is, "human society with its well-developed social organizations, or the culture and way of life of a society or country at a particular period in time."

2. What does the term 'kingdom' mean?

According to the same dictionary, *kingdom* is "an area that is controlled by a particular person or where a particular quality is important."

3. What does the term 'empire' mean?

According to the same dictionary, an *empire* is "a group of countries ruled by a single person, government, or country."

What magic could take savages and uncivilized peoples and transform them into a society with a kingdom and an empire in the 13th century, before they arrived in Africa? Portuguese mariner **Cão** and his like sailed to Africa only after learning of Mansa Musa's pilgrimage to Mecca and of the tons of gold he showered upon those he encountered along his way.

While these two examples tell us of a kingdom and an empire that already existed before the arrival of the white man in Africa, here is another blatant lie from the western world.

EUROPEANS LIE LIKE THERE'S NO TOMORROW

In his work entitled *On Truth and Lies in a Nonmoral Sense*, moralist and philosopher **Friedrich Nietzsche** states that intent always lurks behind every lie. So, I wish to ask what motivated the West to tell all those series of lies?

For example, if we say that a person lies, whether intentionally or not, as far as I know, he lies to others but believes his own lie. In this case that person becomes the first victim of his lie.

Today the West has become a victim of its own lies...

"Life is the art of drawing sufficient conclusions from insufficient

³² Britannica, The Editors of Encyclopaedia (2023, December 18). *Kongo, Encyclopedia Britannica*. https://www.britannica.com/place/Kongo-historical-kingdom-Africa

premises."

"Starting from false premises, anything can be demonstrated. It is not because reasoning is implacable but rather that it is not delusional.

The following is a technique the West applied to disorient the world and created "The Myths of Western Civilization."

But they still forget something nobody can discuss; How can it can be scientifically impossible to have fruit without having trees that have roots? In our case, the roots (of Egypt) is the Nile River, which flows northward from its source at Jinja, Uganda, near the world's second-largest freshwater body of water, Lake Victoria and converges at Khartoum. The continental divide separating the drainage basins of the Nile and Congo rivers, the Congo-Nile Divide is about 2,000 kilometers (1,220 mi) long. Congo-Nile Divide.

Contrary to popular belief, African and thereby world civilization, began around Lake Victoria, which borders at the heart of the continent, Evidence abounds with statuettes of the Egyptian deity Osiris and other artifacts were recently brought to light in the DRC. More evidence would be uncovered, particularly in the DRC, if Western archaeologists would be given access to the ancient sites. ³³

I would also like to take this opportunity to mention that not only are there similar words in all African languages, but cultivation tools used to work the land and cut through the forests, handicrafts produced, as well as women's hair braids are the same from the South on up to the North. Moreover, regardless of where you are in Africa, one can find women dressed in loincloths with their heads covered with scarves. This is evidence we are all from the same people, which had no borders before the arrival on the continent of Western explorers.

³³ Lowes, S., Nunn, N., Robinson, J. A., Weigel, J., "The Evolution of Culture and Institutions: Evidence from the Kuba Kingdom" Harvard University, 29 September, 2016



"In addition, ancient Egyptian practices show strong similarities to modern African cultures including divine kingship, the use of headrests, body art, circumcision, and male coming-of-age rituals, all suggesting an African substratum or foundation for Egyptian civilization."³⁴

In recent years, right-wing ideologues have risen, clinging to an idea of "European classical heritage" to validate their own history as superior to others. For instance, in the hope of creating a comprehensive account of the past, historian **James Harvey Robinson**, the first proponent of western civilization-type courses as part of a core curriculum at Columbia University in the early-20th century, argued the study of history must omit "**all that was exceptional and abnormal.**" **He believed some histories are more important than others, resulting in the erasure of historically marginalized peoples.** For Robinson, it was historians' obligation to "bring the narrative into harmony with the most recent

³⁴ Redford, Donald B. (2001) "Oxford Encyclopedia of Ancient Egypt", Cilt 3. Oxford University Press. s.28

conceptions of the relative importance of past events and institutions." This homogenization of history erased the histories of those who are marginalized from normative society. To effectively understand the past, we must uplift the narratives of these buried voices by decolonizing and queering history. By critically studying a selection of textbooks about **Western Civilization** written over the last century, we can learn more about historians' own biases. By locating and including histories left out of these textbooks, we can bring to light the experiences of marginalized peoples and give life to those who have been forgotten.³⁵

In Robinson's *History of Western Europe*, he wholly ignores ancient Greece, beginning instead with Roman history, and even then, focusing predominantly on Christianity's emergence. **Robinson** believed "that it would not be difficult to prove that no single factor in European history, whether we regard the growth of the state or the development of culture, can in any way be compared in its constant, direct, and obvious influence with the **Roman Church**." He argued, "We have unwittingly permitted our modern enthusiasm for the principle of separation of church and state to effect a corresponding divorce in our historical studies." For the medievalist Robinson, the Middle Ages were important because of perceived legal, institutional and cultural legacies directly relevant to Americans, a history Gilbert Allardyce describes as "unhistorical, Whiggish, and Eurocentric."

Despite dubious origins, by the mid-20th century, textbooks on Western Civilization did include the broad ancient Mediterranean world. Western Civilization textbooks claimed the achievements of modern Europe's neighbors, while leaving them outside of Europe. For example, Western Civilizations: Their History and Their Culture (1955) begins with Paleolithic man, and dedicates chapters to Egyptian, Mesopotamian, Persian, Hebrew, Hellenic, and Roman civilizations. The text even gives credit to the legal, artistic, technology, scholarship, and engineering achievements of those civilizations. In this narrative, the Mediterranean world was the foundation of western civilization, with Hammurabi's *Code* becoming Europe's juridical inheritance. The text argues Muslims' intellectual achievements "were far superior to any of which Christian Europe could boast before the 12th century. However, even in that recognition," the author continued, "It would be foolish to suppose that very many of the Arabs themselves were able to appreciate this cultural heritage."

^{35 &}quot;The Myths of Western Civilization: Decolonizing and Queering European History", *Europe Now Journal*, 3 June, 2020 <u>https://www.europenowjournal.org/2020/06/02/</u> the-myths-of-western-civilization-decolonizing-and-queering-european-history-2/

Therefore, in concluding with **James Harvey Robinson's** various kinds of thinking, he says, "The truest and most profound observations on intelligence have in the past been made by poets, in recent times, and storywriters.³⁶ They have been keen observers and recorders and reckoned freely with emotions and sentiments. Most philosophers, on the other hand, have exhibited a grotesque ignorance of man's life and have built up systems that are elaborate and imposing but quite unrelated to actual human affairs."



The 4160-Mile Long Nile River Valley.

BLACK & WHITE PSYCHOLOGY

We hear that Africans have handed down nothing noteworthy. Can you ask your mother, "What did you do for me?" And if your mother replies, "I gave you your life," how would you react? Your reaction means everything.

When we criticize Africa, I can cope with it, but the fact of the matter is that we've been in contact with Western civilization for about 2,500 years now. To put it bluntly, Westerners are people who observe from afar with binoculars, who like to intervene, who resemble poachers facing their prey, who force us to think in methodically predetermined ways

³⁶ Robinson, James Harvey, "On Various Kinds of Thinking" <u>https://www.commonlit.org/en/texts/on-various-kinds-of-thinking</u>

by sending Africans to their rural retreats in order to prevent them to comprehend who they are and where they come from. Yes, just as game animals don't know they're being hunted, I confess few people have ever been aware of the white man's modus operandi over the millennia.

What motivates me personally is to understand the psychology of white people in general. And why the latter have become the poachers of the African continent in a very violent, or even more decisive manner. Like an eagle clutching its live meal, they have planted their claws in the flesh of Africans, and refuse to relinquish them until they are fully devoured. To counter all these wrongdoings, we have to defend ourselves with wisdom that drives us, the black man, and his knowledge of human beings, etc.

Those who hate you for no reason hate themselves as well.

Whether by treachery or by cunning, all tales told by white people put down Africa and Africans. Ultimately, they have ended up betraying the very essence of their own characters. This senseless violence and hatred gave me the grace and impetus to analyze the roots of this omnipotent jealousy embedded in white men that is akin to a pathological disease which can no longer remain hidden out of sight and mind.

I was able to read several books on sociology in order to understand where colors come from.

No one can deny that Africans have superior blood; all the explanations to the contrary are clichéd.

Jealousy is a very powerful emotion, but it comes with plenty of collateral damage. The same is valid with the ego, which is dangerous as it gives you a false sense of victory, while slowly moving you down the path of destruction. In short, it is easy to carry out evil deeds without ever realizing it.

MELANODERM AND LEUCODERMA

Once again, through this work, I've also seized the opportunity to address a certain number of realities. This is about all of us as human beings and getting back to the art of reality thinking more strategically or scientifically. It not only has to do with our past, but rather as Professor Omotunde Kalala once lectured as "superior understanding," by reading into current events.

I would just like to address this subject again for those who have not

had the chance to come across this subject of the analysis of human races and their behavior. By providing scientific evidence with certain key elements such as research backed by current events and circumstances, with the sole benefit of becoming international with everyone instantly accessing it through the Internet.

I find this chapter very interesting, as I pose myself not only as an educational psychologist, but also as a human being, hence this pursuit of the races.

If there was a mistake on my part, I wouldn't hesitate one moment to admit it, but at least I'm aware that isn't the case. The debate is already closed, as science knows quite certainly that humanity was born in the heart of Africa under the altitude of Kenya and that the DR Congo is the root of all humanity.

As the first race on earth was called 'Kemite' (dark people), the famous Senegalese scientist Cheikh Anta Diop exclaimed, "if we are worried without prejudice, let's invite our scientific counterparts to be sincere on this point to affirm it in all serenity." The adaptation of Grimaldi Man to this cold climate that gave rise to the type of race we conventionally call "White."

Before summarizing, I would like you to keep in mind that the first humans could never live in the **equatorial climate if they didn't have black pigment in their skin**. Mother Nature never does anything by chance, she never errs either. On the other hand, imagine if the first humans settled around Lake Baikal, how could they live in cold without clothes? Where is evidence of rudimentary textiles that were made hundreds of thousands of years ago?

The thing you need to know about the chessboard is that all the pieces, including that pawn, serve a purpose, and that each plays its own role. It's like the stars in the heavens in that there are no united stars; they're all part of a web that adorns the 12 main constellations in the perpetual movement of the equinoxes and the zodiac.

The challenge is not how to make history, but how to exploit it properly. So, it is scientific fact that all the races have the same intellectual capacities, no race is superior over another; scientists have studied the anatomy of the brain, they all have arrived at the same result.

I understand that a civilization that doesn't know its history or ends up losing its historical memory becomes very fragile.

Diop said once, "While it's not detrimental to learn the history of others;

you still must first learn your own history, because the only thing that deems a people strong, even in diaspora, is its historical consciousness. This consciousness must be invigorated." This is proof that the first Europeans were of the **Kemite** "African race."

CHEDDAR MAN: DNA SHOWS EARLY BRITON

HAD DARK SKIN

A cutting-edge scientific analysis shows that a Briton from 10,000 years ago had dark brown skin and blue eyes.

Researchers from London's Natural History Museum extracted DNA from Cheddar Man, Britain's oldest complete skeleton, which was discovered in 1903.

A University College London team analyzed the genome, and the results were used for a facial reconstruction. It underlines the fact that the lighter skin characteristic of modern Europeans is a relatively recent phenomenon. No prehistoric Britons of this age previously had their genomes analyzed.

The analysis provides vital information about the first people to settle in Britain after the ice age. The model made of Cheddar Man's face, which was created by sequencing the genomes, was published in articles and on a Channel 4 documentary.

Cheddar Man's remains were unearthed 115 years ago in Gough's Cave, located in Somerset's Cheddar Gorge. Subsequent examination has shown that the man was short by today's standards-about 5ft 5in, that he had probably died in his early 20s, that he was a hunter gatherer, and that his skin pigmentation was compatible with that of sub-Saharan Africa. Link have been found between the Cheddar Man's DNA and that of the people living in Spain, Hungary and Luxembourg.³⁷ The museum's research leader in human origins, Prof. Chris Stringer said: "I've been studying the skeleton of Cheddar Man for about 40 years. So, to come face-to-face with what this guy could have looked like -and that striking combination of the hair, the face, the eye color, and that dark skin: something a few years ago we couldn't have imagined, yet that's what the scientific data shows. Fractures on the surface of the skull suggest he

³⁷ Reuters, "Ancient Briton had dark skin and blue eyes, shows DNA test on 'Cheddar Man", 7 February, 2018, *Hindustan Times* https://www.hindustantimes.com/worldnews/ancient-briton-had-dark-skin-and-blue-eyes-shows-dna-test-on-cheddarman/story-FEMKbz9zhuPgKsO1TxSnlO.html

may even have met his demise in a violent manner. It's not known how he came to lie in the cave, but it's possible others placed him there in his tribe."



The Natural History Museum researchers extracted the DNA from part of the skull near the ear known as the *petrous*. At first, project scientists **Prof. Ian Barnes** and **Dr. Selina Brace** weren't sure if they'd get any DNA at all from the remains.

But they were in luck: not only was DNA preserved, but Cheddar Man has since yielded the highest coverage (a measure of the sequencing accuracy) for a genome from this period of European prehistory known as the Mesolithic, or Middle Stone Age.

They teamed up with researchers at University College London (UCL) to analyze the results, including gene variants associated with hair, eye, and skin color. For a scientific approach I refer you to an article written by <u>Science</u> editor, BBC News website by Paul Rincon - published 23 February 2018.³⁸

WHY ARE THERE SO MANY ANCIENT EGYPTIAN STATUES WITH BROKEN NOSES?

We all know that genetically African have flattened noses, big lips, and

³⁸ Rincon, Paul, Cheddar Man: DNA shows early Briton had dark skin, BBC, 23 February, 2018<u>https://www.bbc.com/news/science-environment-42939192</u>

frizzy hair.

It was a malicious act to break the noses of statues, just to question the fact that the pharaohs were Black people. So, was the nose, and not the eyes or other parts of the Sphinx statue, broken on purpose? Perhaps to hide the black African origin of the first known civilization for purely selfish and political reasons to preserve colonial legitimacy. Going further, the noses of most if not all pharaoh statuettes made from basalt or similar dark stone were also deliberately broken off, most likely for the same reason, to deny that the pharaohs were of black origin. Apart from dark complexion, the flattened nose also identifies the African trait.

These acts of this kind for other scientists qualify it as scientific trickery; the pathological whiteness of the heirs of Egypt is the denial of white people. I can clearly say that cultural genocide and conventional history is to ignore African debates and related countermeasures for human history, even math and mummification. It is nothing more than the systematic denial of the contributions of Africans to the world. According to several historians, said nose-related tragedies were deliberately carried out for purely political as well as religious reasons during Napoleon's invasion of Egypt at the end of the 18th century.



It's a shame because there's only one race called "Humanity", so what's the point? Enter into race wars, encourage people to acquire their sciences on the sly? Just as a lion does not claim his lioness, it is the same if a black man does not claim his negritude. From this standpoint, we have an interest in rehabilitating black people in relation to the history of our continent, which is what I'm trying to do. At this juncture, I would like to give a shout out to Franceinfo writer **Jacques Devaux** who wrote a remarkable article about broken-nosed Egyptian pharaoh statuettes.

"While the treasure of Tutankhamen will be exhibited in Paris between 23 March -15 September 2019, the Pulitzer Arts Foundation Museum in Saint-Louis, Missouri, will also be exhibiting the mutilated works of art from Ancient Egypt (22 March -11 August). Because these aren't accidents, but deliberate acts. This is called 'Iconoclasm,' which means 'the deliberate deterioration of religious representations of the figurative type,' during Egyptian Antiquity.

The curator of Egyptian antiquities at New York's Brooklyn Museum, Edward Bleiberg, is a specialist in Iconoclasm. 40 artifacts dated between the 25th century BCE and 1st century CE, will be on display at the Saint-Louis exhibition.

"The similarity of the damage caused to the statues proves that it was a voluntary act," explains Edward Bleiberg. "Admittedly, a nose can easily break, but how to explain the splinters on the bas-reliefs in a precise and unique place? We are indeed facing a desired degradation. And the motivations were not lacking. Political, religious acts, or simple personal resentment. The ancient Egyptians attached great importance to the representation of a deity or a human being. They believed they possessed the strength of divinity. For a human being, part of one's soul dwelt in their statue. And this justifies these campaigns of vandalism, carried out to "deactivate the force of the image," according to Bleiberg's expression.

With the state religion of Pharaonic Egypt, there was agreement between the kings and deities in that the pharaohs venerated deities, who, in return, protected Egypt. Statuettes and bas-reliefs were the meeting point of the supernatural and real worlds, whereas any iconoclastic act could sever this power. "The damaged part of the body can no longer do its job," explains Edward Bleiberg. "Without a nose, the spirit statue can't breathe, it's dead."

Every vandalism has its meaning. Breaking the nose, we have just seen, kills the divinity. The ears are also broken so that the statue remains deaf to prayers. In human representations, it is the right arm that provides the

offering to the gods that are broken. Belief is so present in society that the grave robber will also ransack the representations. Admittedly, he seeks valuable goods, but by mutilating the statue of a rich man, he protects himself from the latter's revenge.

As Bleiberg points out, Iconoclasm was largely a political act, allowing leaders and future leaders to rewrite history to their advantage. Pharaoh Thutmose III thus removed all traces of his mother-in-law, Hatshepsut, who, while reigning for seven years, called into question the legitimacy of the pharaoh.

Thutmose's son and successor, Akhenaton will have images of the old deities destroyed to impose his new cult, which was dedicated to Aten. But in turn, his wife Nefertiti and his daughters were also victims of Iconoclastic acts.

Iconoclasm had become so commonplace that the ancient Egyptians housed their sculptures. In the temples, the statues were placed in niches and thus protected on three sides.

When Christianity arrived in Egypt, between the 1st and 3rd centuries, the local gods were perceived as demons and their representations were attacked.

Then, and especially the vestiges of the Pharaonic times were even recycled in other constructions. A way to wipe the slate clean.

And this is how the most famous Egyptian statue, the Sphinx, no longer has a nose. No, it wasn't Obelix who broke it. The Sphinx was also the victim of an Iconoclast, this time, from a 14th century Sufi who wanted to destroy what he considered an idol. Sign of the times, he was hanged for his gesture!"

All scientific studies prove that the African continent is an area of greater genetic diversity than lineage and we speak of the oldest haplotypes are all African finally. All non-African haplotypes derive from African lineages, as **Jean-Jacques Hublin** said, "Homo sapiens, an invasive species on the analysis of nuclear DNA which is more complicated to study later, also reinforces the image of a tree rooted in Africa, part of the branches of which passed over the wall of the Euro-Asiatic garden."³⁹

These works have sounded the death knell of the multi-regional model, all the more so the paleontological discoveries and the progress made in terms of dating only confirmed the older presence of form close

³⁹ Callaway, E., "Oldest Homo sapiens fossil claim rewrites our species' history", *Nature*, 2017 https://www.nature.com/articles/nature.2017.22114

to current men in Africa or the southwestern corners of Asia.

Once we put aside this biblical background, the emergence of an African Adam and Eve, the location somewhere south of the Sahara of a garden of Eden, we can see today these models rest largely in fact on an absence of data.

The slice of time which immediately precedes 200,000 years on the immense African continent had only delivered a handful of fossils rather enigmatic and badly dated, I quote, "it is like a drunkard who seeks these keys in a very dark street only in the light of the only street lamp which is still lit, so archeologists and paleontologists can only find where they are looking."

I found something very simple that helped me answer this question myself. The first thing I learned growing up in the **Bantu culture**, my grandmother taught me that anyone who doesn't share the love of life cannot claim to love others, and that in order to be loved by your neighbor or others in general, you must first love yourself. Thus, the sanctity of all living beings is equally the same.

Noticing racism amongst my people brought me to a heightened awareness from that moment on.

My Bantu culture not only taught me to love life, other living beings, but also to love myself (Ubuntu). Such are the teachings my wise ancestors have bequeathed upon me, which is why I am different, knowing that conveying life is a work of divinity.

Matriarchy is not only a system established by men within the framework of a humane society, but is also the recognition of the divinity of woman, in other words, her capacity to bear and give life. Without a woman there is no more life.

I will say that even if there is no tangible God, for me, my mother is a divine character as she has the ability to carry and give life. When we learn to communicate through the language that a mother transmits to her baby, we call that the mother tongue and when we have returned the love she has received, we call that maternal love.

I just want to say here that Africa is the mother of humanity; that is why she cannot hate her children despite all the trouble they cause her.

The problem is that the Westerners have always wanted to rip Egypt away from its Nilotic tropical Africa or Central Africa. This is why they sought new epistemologies based on the Sahara, investing tons of finances on this project. Nevertheless, despite their efforts, the impact of blood ties between the Egyptians and the rest of Africa has proven to be overwhelming.

They created or even abruptly claim that extraterrestrials built the Egyptian civilization, even while they have the heads of pharaohs with African physical features in their museums. Isn't that the most ridiculous thing you have ever heard?

I can take the example of Pharaoh Akhenaten and his queen Nefertiti, who reigned between 1353 - 1336 B.C., because you have their statues in your museums. It doesn't matter whether they were black or white, the important thing is those statues were crafted by humans.

If you have a hard time accepting the fact that western civilizations are nothing more than warrior civilizations that haven't built anything beneficial since the advent of the first Man and have nothing to glorify but the creations of other civilizations, all you need to do is conduct a tour of their museums containing the spoils of war.

EMBELLISHMENT

I would also like to quote a few quotations; "The handling of the past is an instrument of power; the winners to legitimize his conquests, the oppressor to justify his violence, and disguise the past of their victims." ⁴⁰

"There are two Histories; the official, lying History; then the Secret History, which harbors the true causes of the events." (Honoré de Balzac, writer)

What did these two writers mean through their quotes? In my opinion, they were aware their people were taught history of false origin.

In Bob Marley's song **Get Up, Stand Up,** "You can fool people some time, but you cannot fool all the people all the time, as we see the light, we got to stand up in our rights."

⁴⁰ Saint-Sernin, B, "L'action politique selon Simone Weil", pg. 53

CHAPTER II

RELIGIONS PRESENTED AS THE TRUTH

Before developing my analysis with all humility, I would like to say that I know I don't have a monopoly of wisdom and intellect. What I do is share my thoughts with you and offer suggestions that may not necessarily be true. But they constitute my opinion on the subject at hand that I don't claim expertise but which is scientifically provable.

"To control a people, you must first control what they think about themselves and appreciate their history and culture. And when your conqueror renders you ashamed of your culture and your story, he needs no prison walls and chains to hold you." John Henrik Clarke

This is exactly why I'm calling this work, **Invisible Chains**. It is a story that is not particular to me because it's one that has been told countlessly before: "When the missionaries came, we had land and they had the Bible and they said let us pray and we dutifully shut our eyes; when they said "Amen," we opened our eyes in shattered ruins, they had our land and we had their Bible."

By looking at the past to foresee the future, I will be aware of the fact that the element of **religion lies at the heart of all misery of Africa**. It is the unique key that opens the door to slavery, colonization, and neocolonialism. In my village, they say if you see a Devil at night, scream before the it neutralizes your voice, so people run out of their homes, which makes the evil spirit fly away.



Let us compare the Ancient Egyptian and Greek temples. The both had the same conception.



I don't know if you pondered this matter before as I do today, but the moment we understand what we once were and where we are now, we'll understand what we have to become and how far we still have to go.

We Africans believe we are in the minority when in fact we are in

the majority. Therefore, we give minorities the opportunity to enslave, mistreat, deceive and transform us into a thinking majority. We are controlled by a minority that endears itself to other minorities and demonstrate its ability to control us by manipulating political, religious images through social media.

The reality is we forget we are the true believers who believe in love as a whole. We believe in nature and in things in their purest form, but also, exactly as they are explained and are meant to be because in the end, we are human.

Africa will never be a lone wolf because, contrary to popular belief, the West doesn't represent the entire the world. It is, as it is a minority of the world, it is something that we forget when we look in the world at the scale of humanity, we are told that the country of the South is a third of the world. Indeed, while the population of the West is only one-tenth compared to the majority of the world's population that is comprised of dark-skinned people. So, detaching oneself from the West doesn't necessarily mean cutting oneself off from the rest of the world.

Many of us know that Africa is a continent with a glamorous history. Indeed, its history is recorded and it cannot be denied that **Africa is the cradle of human civilization** and that's why the continent has always been attractive to all civilizations.

I take this moment to pay tribute to the late great pan-Africanist, **Kwame Nkrumah**, the father of Ghana with his immortal quote that says: "I am not African because I was born in Africa, but because Africa is born in me."

The Arabs who are here, the Chinese who are here, the Turks who are here, the Indians who are here, the British who are here, the French who are here, the Portuguese who are here, the Belgians who are here, and the Germans and Spanish who are here are here because Africa is a magnet of undeniable proportions.

That said, the continent's tragedy is that those who have looked towards it are still looking towards short-term plunder. They came here to enslave us and when slavery lost its luster, the colonial project took root, then neo-colonialism. This is what gives legitimacy to the subject of our engagement today, which is the re-emergence of Africa.

The defeat of vampire politics destroyed the confidence of the African people.

Everyone knows the answer to the question, "Who turned Africa into

a dark continent?"

While the perpetrators were busy converting Africa into the image of a barbaric continent with uncivilized, backward, and disorganized people, we couldn't take care of ourselves because we were primitive.

Suppose you live your life peacefully and one day someone barges into your home and commands you, "From now on, this is how you will operate."

By obscuring your identity, denying your uniqueness, your religion, your natural economy, your culture, and your societal way of life until it clouds your vision of life.

After all the centuries, the moment you realize that the dominated have decided to change their status to free men, this passionate transition will always be violent.

This is the stage we're experiencing today, with the West becoming pessimistic as it lost its dominance in Burkina Faso, Mali, Republic of Central Africa and Niger in 2023.

As my valiant brother **Kemi Seba** always says, "to distance oneself from Africa is to distance oneself from the plantation to find oneself in a realm the slave master calls the savage state."

But for us Africans, the forest symbolizes real life, because it constitutes a relationship to the land, the relationship of harmony with our environment, science, know-how and surpassing oneself. So, we will accelerate this pro-African awakening in such a manner that will strike the conscience of all Africans.

Many people use the word *revolution* without really understanding the true meaning of the word. Everyone abuses this term today, which essentially, means, 'taking the abnormal and turning into the normal, to return to what conforms with the society that allows the harmony of the population with its environment is imposed upon us.'

This matter if you look at the story of revolution in Turkey, it was always the young people who rallied to rise up against the dictatorial regime as early as 1908. We even remember it was young people who revolted during the Bolshevik Revolution of 1917. We remember during the American civilian rights movement of the 1950's and 1960's, which was led by Martin Luther King and Ralph Abernathy among others. It was the young people who carried out revolutions when there was a problem in France, initially in 1958, then in and 1968, in Tiananmen Square in 1989, during the Arab Spring of 2011, in South Korea in 1982, as well as in South Africa during the Shopville Massacre of 1968 and in Soweto in 1976. Unfortunately, our young men in today's African society are held captive by Arsenal and Manchester United, Real Madrid and Barcelona, and our young girls are stuck in a quagmire of South American soap operas and Beyonce, which offer no way out of our present situation, let alone the future.

John F. Kennedy said in 1960, "A society whose young men and young women are in a constant state of sleep will never realize our potential.

Let us pose a few questions here;

1. How would you feel if a stranger came into your house and started telling you how long you should watch television or even stay on your phone?

2. Did Africa invite the British, French, German, and Portuguese to come and civilize us in 1885?

3. I would like to ask the West a question. Those tribes you called "micro-nations" after all the chronic fratricide, did they decide to write you a letter with the following content?

"Dear Westerner,

With this collective letter of ours, we would be grateful to ask a favor of you. We are convinced that only you can solve our problem that has dragged on for more than 300,000 years since the sun came into view, since the beginning of time. We need to form nations into new nations but unfortunately, we cannot because we are poor, primitive and witches and warlocks, we need a white new model god to update the one we received back in 1885.

We cordially invite you, the West, to civilize us. Oh, and by the way, don't forget to bring your prayer beads, a notebook and pencil to redefine our borders.

In thanking you in advance for the attention you'll give our request,

Please accept our sun's warm and pleasant greetings.

Best regards,

Your faithful uncivilized African.

P.S. Did you ever come around to civilize the Kalahari Bushmen? No! Why are they still running around half-naked? Maybe it's because they don't have any natural resources under their ground to speak of." Just as you shouldn't expect another man to give you clothes to cover your body, you shouldn't accept the West to give you an education that would allow you question its monopoly and supremacy, and to grant what they want for themselves too.

In his work entitled *The Court of African Philosophy*, Marcus Garvey said, "If you don't trust a man because he is known to be dishonest, then you should maintain this same attitude in all areas because, if he's dishonest in great things, then he's dishonest with everything. If he can steal your salary, he will also deprive you of the education that would enable you to understand that he stealing your salary from you."

We have yet to study those people who didn't sell us off as slaves but as human objects of property. Case in point, I invite you to take a look at Articles Two through Five of **Roy-Code Noire** of 23 April 1685, the first document that established the main lines for policing slavery right up to 1789;

Article II. All slaves that shall be in our islands shall be baptized and instructed in the Roman, Catholic, and Apostolic Faith. We enjoin the inhabitants who shall purchase newly arrived Negroes to inform the Governor and Intendant of said islands of this fact within no more than eight days, or risk being fined an arbitrary amount. They shall give the necessary orders to have them instructed and baptized within a suitable amount of time.

Article III. We forbid any religion other than the Roman, Catholic, and Apostolic Faith from being practiced in public. We desire that offenders be punished as rebels disobedient of our orders. We forbid any gathering to that end, which we declare to be conventicle, illegal, and seditious, and subject to the same punishment as would be applicable to the masters who permit it or accept it from their slaves.

Article IV. No persons assigned to positions of authority over Negroes shall be other than a member of the Roman, Catholic, and Apostolic Faith, and the master who assigned these persons shall risk having said Negroes confiscated, and arbitrary punishment levied against the persons who accepted said position of authority.

Article V. We forbid our subjects who belong to the so-called "reformed" religion from causing any trouble or unforeseen difficulties for our other subjects or even for their own slaves in the free exercise of the Roman, Catholic, and Apostolic Faith, at the risk of exemplary punishment.

Here, religion is no longer just a matter of faith and intimate
relations between the Believer and God, but according to Louis Althusser, it is also an ideology in the strict sense of the word. In his work entitled *For March*, the following sentence which I quote from memory; "Religion is a hegemonic political institution which comes under the category of ideological apparatuses of state."

In analyzing the aforementioned four articles of the **Black Code**, what God were they referring to, an imperialist one, or the gods of evil?

Because, according to Genesis 1:26-27, I don't think for an instant that a loving and righteous God who created Adam in his own image once upon a time, could repent for his humanly creation and delegate you the task of treating descendants of Adam as objects of property 300,000 years later.

For as far as I know, God has always been presented in all the holy books as a symbol of power, mercy, love and patience. But to me, He was also the first democrat; he never proselyted his divine supremacy over anyone, so who are we to do it for him?

To my knowledge, 'good' and 'bad' is the voice of conscience inhabiting every being; it means that life becomes a choice which is influenced by the decision made by Man. So, we become the fruit of the tree we plant with our own decision. Does this mean we are the product of all the choices we make?

Just as an apple falls off the tree when it is ripe, all that happens to us in life represents the fruit that we bring to maturity.

My grandma used to tell me, "The Earth can give you back later what you sow, don't wait for tomatoes while you sow chili peppers." I can say life is like in a movie sometimes, with the bad people who often finish it badly.

If all that we know is that nobody has been able to represent His image since the beginning of Creation, and no prophet took a selfie with Him, as nobody has seen God. They were simply inspired by Him, which automatically deems us all equal.

How can you love one you've never seen before and yet hate one you can see? It makes me reflect inwardly in this human life how often that our idols are people we've never seen. But our enemies are people we encounter in our daily lives?

(Nobel Peace Prize recipient Anglican bishop Desmond Tutu) bellowing from his pulpit during the days of brutal apartheid, "We cannot delude ourselves by pretending that we are singing Hallelujah while our kids and parents are being judged on of the color of their skin."

Life is sacred and is always a divine act, if you believe in God's Love, why are you committing acts of evil'? They stayed neutral in a time of slave's genocide?

I love this parabolic Biblical verse of the **Good Samaritan** Luke 10:25-37, "The first question which the Levite priest asked the Good Samaritan, "If I stop to help this man, what will happen to me?" But the Good Samaritan reversed the question, "If I don't stop to help this man, what will happen to him?"

In my opinion, if the Good Samaritan, for example, answered in silence, it would be better than not answering at all. But what silence is this? It's the silence of betraying their true God? The ultimate tragedy is not the oppression and cruelty of the Evil, but the silence of the Good.

As **Martin L. King** said, "He who passively accepts Evil is as much involved in it as he who helps to perpetrate it (...) He who accepts Evil without protesting against it cooperates with it."

What has happened is that nothing has changed since then until now. Let's watch and see that there's no justice in what you have preached in the name of the true God. You see people out there with their hands chained and when you say you care, it'll be a big lie in the name of the true God you've presented to the world. Bluntly speaking, this situation is not a momentary lapse of reason and self-control, but rather something that stretches back centuries, continuing unabated to the present day.

I read that the Lord Jesus said, "Blessed are the poor in spirit: for theirs is the kingdom of Heaven" (Matthew 5:3). But you preach more jewels than the justice of the true God that you yourself betrayed. This is why we Africans only remember the Black Code instead of the Holy Bible at the end of the service. And the sound of our oppressors is higher than the true gods you introduced to us who remain silent like a golden statue of the Virgin Mary on the road **from Selcuk to Izmir**.

I really like this quote of Gandhi, who said, "Long before you can defeat that white man who has come to defeat us, you have to find yourself again, find your confidence in your courage again."

In adding to that, I say, "**Understanding systems of oppression is the key to being able to resist oppression.**"

This is proof that *Res publica*, or 'the people's affair' implies the ability to impose authority upon a diverse nation. Thereby, religion is necessary

to serve them as a catalyst, hence, it became a tranquilizer injected into the people. By inaugurating the formation of his empire, **Constantine I**, depicted below presenting a model of the city of Constantinople to The Virgin Mary, felt the need for a strong and **dogmatic religion.**¹



THE UNIVERSE

I would love to give more details on this subject of spirituality according to my analyses but let's start with the Universe.

I do not argue nor do I dispute the faith of others, so what's the meaning of being Moslem, Christian, Orthodox Buddha, or Hindu if you're a dog? The answer won't matter, there's no way you can be religious without being human first, but today some people pretend to be more religious than human. That said, people's faith should be strictly an act of intimacy. This allows us to put a being directly in relation with its creator. It means it's something I can't modify because we're in the order of intimacy or

¹ Flesher, P. V. M., UW Religion Today: How Constantine Created the Christian Church, *University of Wyoming News*, 4 February, 2015 https://www.uwyo.edu/news/2015/02/uw-religion-today-how-constantine-created-the-christian-church. html

free choice.

I follow the **Prof. Librairie Tamery Sematawy Maât** on his YouTube channel, who once said, "Existence is the only true origin of the Cosmos and Nature, but we're seeking for our metaphysical quest of existence. Can it preserve us from death because we refuse to think as finite beings although we contemplate the infinite and the indefinite? Although we're confined to finitude, we think ourselves as infinite and we project ourselves into the horizon of the indefinite, which is the formula of 'immortality.'"

While the Imagination is only the activity of thought within the structure framework that makes us think about our mortality, the Soul is a relic of intelligence, which Africans also call *Ba*, which keeps moving even when the body becomes immobile and unfolds in space in search of a new source of air. Hence, pharaonic corpses were mummified to keep in the soul.

This universe is not perceived by the material senses only by the only sense beyond the material that humans possess: intelligence. It still needs to be an efficient *meta* material.

We cannot view the depths of the universe of matter with simple binoculars. One cannot understand the universe of meta-matter with standard intelligence. The nature of meta-matter granted me a surplus of intelligence so that I may discover an additional part of its environment. Without this smart boost, neither myself nor anyone else would've ever discovered this second universe.



The Ankh Kemet Life symbol; the source of the Catholic cross.



Wait, why is there an Egyptian ankh in a Catholic church?

The Coptic Cross, or *ankh* was absorbed into Egyptian Christianity (where it was known as the 'crux ansata' – the 'eyed' or 'handled' cross) in the 3rd/4th centuries.^{2 3}

FAITH & DOUBT

Most people assume that "faith" is belief and "doubt" is the absence of belief. On the contrary, "faith" is not the absence of belief, but rather a belief in the outcome you desire. Further, "doubt" is an outcome you do not desire, and especially when you believe more in an outcome you do not desire and vice-versa when you don't believe in the outcome you desire. In other words, when you have doubt, you don't have faith, but both are beliefs.

Belief evolves like its partner, science. They both evolve through discoveries made by researchers who become geniuses. Einstein, Galileo, etc. are geniuses of Science. According to the Bible and Quran, Abraham and Moses and the latest Prophet Mohamed (S.A.W) are geniuses of Belief.

But while 'science' requires material evidence to gain credibility in order to advance human evolution, 'belief' needs only dogma to rely upon

² Kosloski, P., "Wait, why is there an Egyptian ankh in a Catholic church?", Aleteia, 7 July, 2017 https://aleteia.org/2017/07/07/wait-why-is-there-an-egyptian-ankh-ina-catholic-church/

³ Humphreys, Kenneth, *Egyptian Roots of Catholics*, 25 October, 2011 https://www. jesusneverexisted.com/relics.html

and see far to guide human evolution.

Meta-matter theory is the **evolution of Belief.** A new dogma is given to us to replace **the dogma of the belief** in God, which becomes obsolete over time.

In his book, <u>To Finally End with God</u>, Richard Dawkins stated, "The most absurd thing as is that religions prevent men from thinking. Religious dogma is dangerous because it prevents thinking, it prevents criticism, it prevents the own referee, and you just have to believe and above all not to question the texts."

If for example, I ask myself the question as to why the 1st Testament (Moses's 10 Commandments) is expounds upon **Maat**, (the rule of law and moral justice among the ancient Kemet people during the reign of Pharaoh Menes, around 2925 BCE), as well as the **Hammurabi Code**, which was elaborated a millennium before the apparition of Judaism by a Sumerian king who had nothing to do with divinity?⁴

In Chapter 125 of the **Papyrus of Ani**, we encounter a petitioner led by Anubis into *duat* and proclaiming the following 42 affirmative declarations; ⁵

The 42 Laws of Maat Under Kemet (Egyptian) Law

1. I have not committed sin; 2. I have not committed robbery with violence; 3. I have not stolen; 4. I have not slain men or women; 5. I have not stolen food; 6. I have not swindled offerings; 7. I have not stolen from God/Goddess; 8. I have not told lies; 9. I have not carried away food; 10. I have not cursed; 11.I have not closed my ears to truth; 12. I have not committed adultery; 13. I have not made anyone cry; 14.I have not felt sorrow without reason; 15. I have not assaulted anyone; 16. I am not deceitful; 17. I have not stolen anyone's land; 18. I have not been an eavesdropper; 19. I have not falsely accused anyone; 20. I have not been angry without reason; 21. I have not seduced anyone's wife; 22. I have not polluted myself; 13. I have not terrorized anyone; 24. I have not disobeyed the Law; 25. I have not been exclusively angry; 26. I have not cursed God/Goddess; 27. I have not behaved with violence; 28. I have not caused disruption of peace; 29. I have not acted hastily or without thought; 30. I have not overstepped my boundaries of concern; 31. I have not exaggerated my words when speaking; 32. I have not committed evil; 33. I have not used evil thoughts, words or deeds; 34. I have not polluted the water; 35. I have not spoken angrily or arrogantly; 36. I have not

⁴ Karenga, M., "Maat the Moral Ideal in Ancient Egypt", Sankore Publisher, 2006

^{5 &}quot;The Book of the Dead", ed. by E.A. Wallis Budge, Gramercy Publisher, 1995

cursed anyone in thought, word or deeds; 37. I have not placed myself on a pedestal; 38. I have not stolen what belongs to God/Goddess; 39. I have not stolen from or disrespected the deceased; 40. I have not taken food from a child; 41. I have not acted with insolence; 42. I have not destroyed property belonging to God/Goddess.

Compared to *Exodus*, the story of the liberation of the Israelites from Egyptian slavery dates only between 13th - 16th centuries BCE, according to some scholars.

For those who regard the 10 Commandments to be the epitome of prophetic teachings, the date would be sometime after Amos and Hosea (after 750 BCE). These same scholars mention that while the 10 Commandments were only a summary of the legal and priestly traditions of Israel, they belong to an even later period.⁶

The 10 Commandments of Moses & Their Meanings

1. You shall have no other gods before Me; 2. You shall make no idols, 3. You shall not take the name of the Lord your God in vain; 4. Keep the Sabbath day holy; 5. Honor your father and your mother; 6. You shall not murder; 7. You shall not commit adultery; 8. You shall not steal; 9. You shall not bear false witness against your neighbor; 10. You shall not covet.⁷

While we can say that a father never takes the name of his own son, what can we derive from a comparison of the 42 Laws of Maat (ca. 2925 B.C.E) to the 10 Commandments of Moses (ca. 750 BCE)? I wonder who plagiarized whom, because the contents of both lists convey the same exact meanings.

Here, I also want to ask myself this question; How was it that a people who lived 430 years in Egypt as slaves couldn't even recognize the name of one Pharaoh? For some inexplicable reason, the Bible doesn't even mention under which dynasties the Israelites were enslaved in Egypt.

While Laws 13, 15, 41 and 27 of the *Maat* was against slavery, nowhere in the papyrus records, the pyramids of Pharaohs, statues, and sphinx, which are still extant and they didn't mention the passages of Israelites and Moses, in Egypt. On the contrary, the Egyptians had a habit of recording important events that marked each dynasty. For instance, the historical passage of the Nubians through Egypt was mentioned in the depiction of the *okapi* at Persepolis.

⁶ Cross, Vanessa, "42 Laws of Maat Under Kemet Law" http://www.blackhistoryheroes. com/2013/02/42-laws-of-maat-under-kemet-law-and.html

⁷ *The Hebrew Bible*: at Exodus 20:2–17 and Deuteronomy 5:6–21. <u>https://www.britannica.com/topic/Ten-Commandments</u>

It's like my personal situation. Imagine I've been living in Turkey for 15 years and I don't hear the name of Turkish President Recep Tayyip Erdoğan? In my case, I even learned that Erdoğan's predecessor was Abdullah Gül, while I can speak and understand the Turkish language very well.

THE MYTH OF NOAH'S CURSE

They fact they believe an ark got wedged up on Mt. Ararat and that it's still there, it's indeed quite ironic as humans have succeeded in travelling to the Moon and Sun and have satellite imagery that can tell what brand underwear you're wearing, but they still haven't found the rest of Noah's Ark. Maybe because it wasn't the HMS *Titanic*.

I have the right to wonder after reading Genesis 5:32-10:1, why the story of Noah's curse, weighed on the Canaanites and all descendants of Shem himself, the strange thing about this story is its similarity to the Mesopotamia *Gilgamesh* myth cuneiform tablet and even more so, to the *Atrahasis* tablet uncovered in the 19th century, which dates to the reign of the Sumerian King *Ammisaduqa* (ca. 1635 BCE)? I want to emphasize the theme of the accursed people whose history mentions are *Black*; on the other hand, the blessed, *White*, chosen people of God constituted the society that the Bible refers to as *Hebrews*. As I previously mentioned several times in this book, it cannot be denied that Africa is the cradle of human civilization. So how is it possible that Africans lived alone on Earth for about 300,000 years without any other race or clash, only to have Noah curse the son of his son Ham, Canaan, for seeing him naked after he was drunk on wine.

While science tells us that white skin appeared on Earth around 6,000 years ago, the Bible interprets Ham as the father of all blacks (Canaanites or modern-day Palestinians). So how can someone who supposedly lived 6,000 years ago be considered the father of black Africa? Why doesn't the Bible mention how the cursed land of Canaan all of a sudden became the Promised Land of Canaan with milk and honey? This is completely ambiguous.

1. How could Noah, who was supposedly white, with a white wife, have a black grandson named Ham? Since when? Show me five white couples that had black children.

2. How do you prove scientifically that a son can curse his father or his mother millions of years before his birth? Or we have to reverse the

curse.

I don't deny the existence of Noah either; don't misunderstand me, it's just a personal reflection, I don't need an answer either, just think about it and keep your answer too.

3. Who decided the permanent Security Council members of the institution we call The United Nations back in 1945? Did this institution just materialize out of thin air? Did all the countries of the world sit around the same table and decide together after lengthy discussions that henceforth the Americans would be heading the United Nations? No, of course not!

When you are "the chosen people of God," this implies that it's okay not to practice the divine 10 Commandments, particularly the **6**th **Commandment** via God, "Thou shall not kill." Or is it that the chosen people of have a God given right to brandish swords and kill everyone living soul in the land of Canaan (modern-day Palestine)? Is this God who handed down the 6th commandment the same who sponsors crimes against humanity, massacres, and theft? Because the very apology for murder is a central theme of the Bible; let's check the *Book of Joshua* as proof in which the killing of Canaanites inflicted by the Levites is described in great detail. From an ethical point of view, do these murders confirm it is the Almighty God who symbolizes the eternal hosts who promised the Israelites the land of Canaan? Words like 'promise' or 'hidden' are acts that can be legally qualified as 'stealing land that does not belong to you.' I wonder if the creator of all that exists, the Almighty God, needs this fraudulent approach that leads to generational wars until today.

So here are some striking correlations of my concern, which scientifically leads me to ask myself questions. I haven't come up with any answers yet, but that means what it means.

Indeed, even a mere mortal human like Garrett Morgan, the inventor of the red light, could stop his car at a red light respecting his code, but why couldn't a God who is honest be the first to violate his commandments and punish those who disobey the same commandments? Maybe He is an ambulance... I apologize if I'm wrong.

If the Democratic Republic of Congo is home to more than 450 languages include ethnics groups, how many are there in the rest of the world?

I would love to end this topic with the Book of Genesis. For example, I quote from page 21 of the TOB version of the Bible, "By telling the origins

of the world and humanity." Thus, the authors of this version of the Bible did not hesitate to glean directly or indirectly the texts of the ancient Near East.

Although there are common points, archaeological discoveries in the 19th century indicate there are several pages between the first page of Genesis and the sapiential or liturgical lyrical texts of **Sumer, Babylon, Thebes, or Ugarit**.

This fact is not surprising when we know that the countries where Israel was founded were largely open to foreign influences and that the 'Chosen People of God' were themselves in contact with their neighbors.

But the progress of archaeology has also revealed that the Biblical writers were responsible for the first chapters of Genesis. Far from being servile imitators, they knew how to rework their sources according to the specific traditions of their peoples, while underlining the originalities of the Jahwist faith. The comparison between Biblical text and stories relating to the origin of the world and the heroes of antiquity remains to be a very popular topic.

So, the word 'glean,' which means 'plagiarism,' or 'copying,' falls into place with the quote of **Prof, Omotunde Kalala**; "They whitewashed us black people."

1. Here it is written far from being servile, we therefore make a matriarchal tradition transgressing in the patriarchy. "I explain a tradition " God created the Man (Adam) and the Woman (Eve), it goes in the tradition of the patriarchy that the woman came out from the side the man."

2. There are many points in common between the first page of Genesis and the Sapiential and liturgic lyrical texts of Sumer, Babylon, Thebes, or Ugarit.

Let's me explain myself, except to not give us the original texts of Kemet's blacks and blacks of the people of Canaanites.

LANGUAGE

As far as I know, belief is also a culture that includes language; We don't share the same culture are a common thing. We all belong to the same human race, regardless of our different colors. For instance, even though Hindu customs and traditions, i.e., sacred cows on Indian streets,

scorpions in Chinese restaurants, iguanas in Mexican restaurants, *nohut pilav* in Turkey, in the end we still are human. People throughout the world have their own foods, cultures, customs, beliefs and traditions, all elements that originate from their own lands.

In my opinion, life itself is a very strong phenomenon, and this is one of the main reasons why we humans have evolved into what we are today compared to other species. It gives people a sense of identification and trust with others because they now share something in common. It all starts with developing a small group, then a community, then a society, and finally a nation. It's pretty amazing how a simple way of talking can have such a big impact on society.

Linguistics are also fascinating, with the way our brain learns to recognize and articulate sounds that mean something in our local language, but 'forgets' meaningless sounds; it's very interesting and challenging when we struggle to learn a new language in our adult life because of certain obligations.

Thinking without going through the language filter is futile because thought is conveyed via a language, which invariably leads to culture. So, thought is the energy springing from the heart, which means those we see through sight, one of our most valuable senses as human beings.

According to ancient Egyptian hieroglyphics, the being dwells in a temple called the body, but the man who inhabits this body doesn't identify himself with the appearance of this body. He is the reflection of the consciousness that is in the heart. The African ancestors said it is not the brain that thinks but rather the heart, because the brain is a channel that transmits thought as energy, and according to one's heartbeat. The reason why our ancestors said a pure heart leads to true speech is because it brings balance and harmony to the life in harmony with itself, with nature, with the cosmos, with the universe, and also with one's own life. In one word, I'll say that a committed man's *esprit de corps* comes from the heart through language.

THOUGHT AND IMAGINATION

There is a huge difference between the concepts of 'thought' and 'imagination.' Thought takes a step that precipitates an appropriation of reality and renders tangible by an activity of the mind that is merely an abstraction of thought leading to a transformation of nature via a technique that is an order of a return to the tangible. Man discovers himself in an immense universe that is only the idea of the perceptible horizon. We can define a universe as a space that projects itself onto the horizon of the indefinite.

With the humanities, it is exceptional to find entirely true or entirely false reconstructions or hypotheses. Instead of castigating others with opinions contrary to ours, one should take a more flexible approach through developed observations.

A man looks up to the sky, seeing it as a world of catastrophe, because it projects out towards infinity, while the cosmos is an open space unfolding towards an infinite horizon. Then he sees nature and realizes that it is an open space projecting itself towards the horizon of the finite. This, during the indefinite, the infinite and the finite, is of conceptual reality, with entities such as trees, animals or humans are what we call 'beings.' But the real problem is what links beings to what we call the origin of the universe. Being is the origin. During my academic career, I learned that the combination of models, that at first seem to clash with each other, can actually advance research.

The purpose of history is to study objectively past sources in order to better illuminate the obscurities of the present and therefore meet future challenges.

In my opinion, the problem isn't the race war that's important, but rather, with the true history of humanity, we can forget the psyche, mentality and all the mythos created around the races. The most crucial thing here is the history of human civilization. All humans have the right to know the truth of the journey.

For researchers, in other words, scientists, the 'truth' doesn't exist because the research is constantly in progress. They proceed forward by asking more questions than providing answers; that's the rule of the researcher. Above all, they have the courage to question things because nothing is stable.

RELIGION (revisited)

The following sentence which I quote from memory a little-known passage from an article. An article **by Cheikh Anta Diop** entitled *A Continent in Search of its History* mentions, "In order to adapt to today's circumstances, all the world religions are in the process of re-organizing themselves on new foundations. As long as certain metaphysical problems

concerning the origin of matter remain unsettled, even the scientists of tomorrow will continue to maintain a religious faith in large numbers."⁸

Marxists will have to reckon with religion for a long time to come if they want to be realistic and effective. We're not witnessing the impoverishment phase of the latter, as it's not surprising to note all the external forces from various origins which have so far sought to digest black Africa on the worldly level. In other words, we're talking about the material politics which attempting to measure and withdraw into the religious field. Some top-level members of the Church think in good faith that black Africa has the right or even the duty to aspire to genuine national independence, but with the condition of accepting Christianity as the national religion. They don't realize that they are trying to colonize souls after having failed with the colonization of weapons, if the partisans of each religion resonate like this in their inner depths.

Personally if I revert back to **page 2 of the Black Code or edit de Roy**, I can confirm in this case that religion is not only a matter of faith and intimate relations between the Believer and God, but also an ideology in the strict sense of the term.

In quoting **Louis Althusser**'s work entitled *For Marx* (a collection of works published in 1965), *"Christianity is a hegemonic political institution which comes under the category of ideological apparatuses of state."*

When they go to church, I think a lot of believers often imagine they're performing an act of sublimation of their relationship with God, that is, an act of faith. They believe this is an act of their free will, but what they don't realize is that the Christian institution they attend is one that was officially accepted on a state level by Roman Emperor Theodosius I in the year 395 AD with the **Hagia Sophia in Constantinople (**today's Istanbul) representing the religion as the largest edifice in the world.

Many pious Africans claim that the **Cathedral of Saint Mary of Burgos (Spain), as well as the Cathedral Madeleine and the Notre-Dame de Paris** and were created by God, claiming they're places where faithful congregations gather and those who don't gather are referred as 'infidels.' That said, I can't just walk into any church and start shouting, "Hey, Christianity is the ideology of Constantinople," because everyone in this church agrees on two points.

1. God is living in this church.

⁸ Diop, Cheikh Anta, Horizon issue 74-75 La Revue de la Paix, "Clefs pour L'Afrique Noire" July-August, 1957 pp 85-91

2. According to the popular dogma, the church building is the holy place to meet God. So, I would say that this notion is crucial because not everyone is familiar with dogma. While dogma cannot be a transmission mode of faith, church membership was not really a prerequisite for all those who were familiar with God before the Hebrew scripture.

THE IMPOSING IMPOSTER

I would like to take this opportunity to talk about the phenomenon of Christianity as a whole, but there is a dispute based on a misinterpretation. The greatest problem here is the 'Imposing Imposter,' which is the church itself. I apologize for the harsh terminology, but 'imposter' means "one who isn't what he thinks he is" and "one who doesn't bring what that he claims to bring."

We can tell when a person is telling unintentional lies. As Yvon Quiniou said, "He who lies to others while believing one's own lie becomes the first victim of his own lie."

So according to our assessment of **Articles II, III, IV and V of the The Code Noir (The Black Code)**, which first appeared in 1687, Catholicism is presented as an imposter at three levels. The first of which is an antiscience power at the intellectual level. Catholicism opposed scientific truth for many centuries. For instance, scientific theories put forward by **Galileo Galilei** (1564-1642) and **Giordano-Bruno**, who was burned alive in Rome on 16 February 1600, were rejected by the church.

Religion contradicts science by claiming to bring us the truth about the evolution of the world. But the realm of religion, which is beyond the reach of science, brings metaphysics into a nonphysical universe, and then claims to know that its role is limited to belief. Religion also passes off beliefs as knowledge. So while metaphysics cannot be the goal of knowledge, only science encompasses the field of knowledge. I like this quote I once heard from **Yvon Quiniou**, "You have to know that you believe, and not think you know, when you claim to know but you don't know, it becomes dogmatism, which is easy to give way to tolerance."

According to these examples cited, religions haven't conveyed the truth they claim to have borne since they came onto the scene. 2) From a moral standpoint, while religions claim to bring good and happiness to the living, one doesn't have to be rocket scientist to see that wars fought in the name of religion have been bloodier throughout history. 3) On a political level, religions unite, carrying messages of peace and love and respect for all races. But according to the constant, religions pacify while dividing the interior. In other words, while it connects men internally, it opposes externally, continuing to create chronic conflicts and wars between fierce enemies, i.e., the ongoing Palestinian – Israeli conflict.

According to Christian Gaudin, who wrote a remarkable book on religion, "religions are imperialist because their goal is to impose themselves on everyone. Although they differ from each other, their beliefs, their mode of worship, etc., are wars for domination and monopoly."

I am not anti-religious, I repeat, I am a Humanist, all my analyses have scientific approaches because I speak of the consequence of religions that has enslaved millions of Africans far from their homeland. Karl Marx also spoke of religion but didn't analyze their causes and their true foundation.

The reason for their existence is not because they render the unbearable bearable. We see they aided and continue to aid the domination of the richest, by making the people fear a life of eternal suffering. Nevertheless, while religion hasn't always been weaponized in this manner, this form of domination is not implied in the texts.

We note the very shared injunction of religions, even in the Scriptures themselves, to dominate non-believers, and even women. Religions are not the opium of the people by default but undoubtedly powerful instruments of social and political domination.

Come on, the only question you need to ask you who call yourselves **African-Christians**, what do you know about the life of the prophets. My answer will be "nothing at all." Any answer we provide is nothing other than confusing trivialities, simply implying that we've been equipped with mere bits and pieces of fables ranging from catechism to complete lies.

THE HOUR OF TRUTH

We say things are in motion, without mincing my words concretely, we've lived in a world full of lies for the past two millennia, so a lot of precise work is needed to deconstruct these lies once the truth is rooted back in place.

The hour of truth will truly come, but for that, we need our African colleagues who have conducted significant studies to bring revive our experiences and expectations so that we ourselves are capable of defending our circumstances.

"That's when the lion will have its history, and history will no longer be written by the hunter," as I mentioned twice before.

I do not disagree, as I didn't study theology, except knowing I'm not wrong on the following point; while discussing such important personalities who defy time, who transform and who matter in the lives of half of the people on the planet, it would obviously be most appropriate for these people to be outfitted with the most accurate information, so they would then be qualified to make their choices.

I don't wish to be misconstrued on this subject. I'm not saying that the Biblical personalities never existed, I'm not saying they didn't have any powers, and I'm not saying that the Bible is a book of fables. I repeat that it's not my cup of tea to debate a subject so complex, but humbly speaking, it's a subject that deserves a lot of reflection, because it's not at all clear. In fact, everything is blurry; the reality for me is that the legend is a bit veiled.

For example, when the Catholic and Protestant faith celebrates the birth of Jesus on 25 December, and the Orthodox world celebrates on 6 January, the gospels of the Bible specify there was a star that signaled the birth of the **Messiah**, and that shepherds were grazing their flocks in Israel. As we all know, it is very cold in Israel in December, too cold for the shepherds to tend their flocks; if so; this would most likely happen in the spring. It is possible that Catholics took a date already celebrated for another event to commemorate the birth of Christ.

"Whoever controls your past will also control your present as well as your future" is a largely true quote by John Henrik Clarke

History of humanity has been hidden in a labyrinth. In mathematics, we may call it an equation, but with a thousand unknowns. To solve it, you have to make a half-turn in the past. The reality is that the real story has been falsified and tuned like a lute since Westerners entered the annals of history, sometime around 2,000 years ago. No historian (except Christian!) can say that Jesus existed and that he is the son of God.

I still wonder what the ancient archives contained before the time of Jesus. In this instance, the Cheops pyramids at Giza (circa 2570 BCE) and the Code of Hammurabi, written a millennium before the Israelites appeared on the scene, have left traces of their existence. Other than the scriptures, there is no evidence of this kind, scientific or otherwise, to prove the existence of these great biblical characters.



Let's face it, history does not recognize Jesus; He was completely non-existent for centuries. Archaeologists have combed through the biographies of all those who left indelible marks upon Palestine and Israel at that time, and not one has a profile resembling that of Jesus. Especially if we stick to the gospel, which tell us he moved whole crowds during the time Roman authorities dominated Palestine. The Jewish historian, Flavius Josephus and governor general Tiberius Julius Alexander of Alexandria would have mentioned Him, but they simply never heard of Jesus. Let's be serious, according to the Gospels, he was a man who miraculously cured the sick and infirm, who had large crowds follow him as he travelled through Galilee, Decapolis, Jerusalem, Judea and Transjordan. Lest we forget Lazarus, who not only purportedly resurrected by Jesus, when the subjugated people glorified him, He also resurrected the dead, and changed water into wine. As incredible as these events may seem, why did the most serious historians of his time prefer to skip all this in silence? Not to mention his compatriots and fellow Jews? No, rather than a historical character, Jesus is but a fictitious character as real as Santa Claus.

I just want to repeat this sentence to support my analyses: For a researcher, in other words, a scientist, the truth doesn't exist because they

never stop conducting research; they move forward but by cultivating doubt, that's the rule of the researcher. I, on the other hand, am not the Antichrist.

CHILD ABUSE IN THE CATHOLIC CHURCH

"... Pope Francis expressed his personal shame and that of the Church regarding sexual abuse of children by French Catholic clergy, after the scale of the problem was laid bare in a devastating report. "I wish to express to the victims my sadness and pain for the trauma they have suffered," he said during his weekly audience at the Vatican. "And also, my shame, our shame, my shame for the inability of the Church for too long to put them at the center of its concerns. I pray and we all pray together -- to you Lord the glory, to us the shame. This is the time for shame." An independent commission on Tuesday revealed that French Catholic clergy sexually abused around 216,000 minors over seven decades since 1950, a "massive phenomenon" that was covered up by a "veil of silence." The commission's two-and-a-half-year inquiry and subsequent 2,500-page report prompted outrage as the Catholic Church in France and around the world, as it faces a growing number of abuse claims and prosecutions. Dealing with the avalanche of revelations about sexual abuse by the clergy was one of the biggest challenges that Francis faced when he was elected pope in 2013. He declared an end to impunity and changed the Vatican laws to make reporting abuse mandatory, but victims have since warned it's not enough.9

I don't have any comment to add because everything related to Pope Francis in to these two interviews supports my analyses about the creation of this church, which was corrupted since its creation. This is truly scandalous for those who are supposed to the model of the true God, while at same time betraying him by abusing children. Those people live by axioms such as, "Forgive and Forget" and "Time heals all wounds." Well, all I can say is, when you've had your childhood ripped away from you, to satisfy the lust of predatory adults, you can never forget it and no matter how much time that has elapsed, you still imagine it in your mind like it was yesterday.

I was raised in the Vatican from the time I was four months old until I was five years old. Later on, I studied for nearly eight years at Pantheon

^{9 (}Editorial Board), "The Catholic Church's Sex Abuse Scandal Continues", *Washington Post*, 13 November, 2022 <u>https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2022/11/13/</u> <u>catholic-church-sex-abuse-france/</u>

1 Paris / Sorbonne University graduating from the Psychology Dept. MA degree" on a scholarship from the Vatican, residing in Catholic Apartment in the 7th Precinct, near the Eiffel Tower. Why aren't these perpetrators publicly identified? Nothing can be done to bring these people to justice if the names are hushed up. They need to be publicly accused and indicted by authorities. Report names to the police, media, Online social media... anywhere where names will be publicly broadcast. Push for your own justice!

I promised myself I'd never remain silent again. These abuses need to stop. Children need to be protected at all cost. It's our duty and responsibility, especially as Catholics, to report any and all abuses immediately to the pertaining authorities, and not only bishops, as many of them unfortunately aren't willing to protect innocent people, preferring to cover up sins instead of doing their jobs to defend the innocent and correct the sinner. It's about the salvation of souls (victims and sinners). Enough is enough!

WITCHCRAFT AND SORCERY

My fellow people, we must ask ourselves is this question; If the benevolent spirituality of Indians, Arabs, Chinese or Europeans is highly respected there, why are harmful tendencies always evoked, such as witchcraft, magic, voodoo, animist, etc., whenever spirituality in black Africa is mentioned?

While my African ancestors once said, "God is One as a spiritual energy; He is in everyone's soul, He is the omnipresent energy concerning all life. If this is the case, why do European spiritual ideologies refer to us generally as *Animists*, which conveys a harmful connotation. This means that the energy of God is in everything that exists. In other words, I am a divine being, this energy is in you, therefore, you are also a divine being.



And our African ancestors believed in God as the Creator of all things, they also believed God lived in them. They just didn't believe in the idea of evolution, which Darwin invented in the 19th century, perhaps to remove the idea of the Creator. But as **there is no perfect crime, I will also say that there is no such thing as a perfect lie**. I repeat, Darwin simply wanted to denigrate the black man because science had already confirmed that Central Africa was the cradle of humanity. In any case, African ancestors didn't write anywhere that they descended from **apes**. So if anyone thinks they descended from primates, then that's up to them and I can't intercede. As Pierre Nillon, whom I also pay homage in this book, put it so succinctly, "This reveals psychoanalysis and I'm not a psychoanalyst."

As it was **Darwin**, who originated this theory, said, "Fossils yet to be discovered will support my theory." Nevertheless, no researcher has discovered fossils that uphold his thesis since Darwin's passing 140 years ago.

As usual, there are quite simply other ideological issues to blacken the black and whiten the white. Here is the principle of his theory; "We descend from *apes*, as the first man appeared in Africa, so this monkey comes from the Great Lakes region in Africa and when this same monkey arrives in Eurasia, it automatically becomes the intelligent *Homo-sapiens*. The longer it remains in Africa, the less intelligent it becomes. So, for me, the Theory of Evolution is a psychoanalytical theory concocted by a psychoanalyst.

Darwin's white supremacism is revealed here. Over the course of his work, Darwin describes Australians, Mongolians, Africans, Indians, South Americans, Polynesians, and even Eskimos as "savages:" It becomes clear that he considers every population that is not white and European to be savage. The word savage is disdainful, and Darwin constantly elevates white Europeans above the savages. Darwin explains that the "highest races and the lowest savages" differ in "moral disposition ... and in intellect" (36). The idea that white people are more intelligent and moral persists throughout. At one point, Darwin says that sayages have "low morality," "insufficient powers of reasoning," and "weak power of selfcommand" (97). Darwin's specific consideration of intellectual capacities is especially alarming. He begins with animals: "No one supposes that one of the lower animals reflects whence he comes or whither he goes, what is death or what is life, and so forth" (62). His remarks soon expand to humans. "How little can the hard-worked wife of a degraded Australian savage, who uses hardly any abstract words and cannot count above four, exert her self-consciousness, or reflect on the nature of her own existence" (62). Darwin writes that Australians are incapable of complex thought, and insinuates that they are akin to lower animals: His perspective on non-European races is incredibly prejudiced and absurd. Modern evolutionary scholars and teachers tend to ignore or omit that component of Darwin's theory, but it hasn't gone completely unnoticed. For example, Rutledge Dennis examined Darwin's role in scientific racism for The Journal of Negro Education and found that in Darwin's worldview, "talent and virtue were features to be identified solely with Europeans." White supremacy is clearly embedded in The Descent of Man, regardless of Darwin's brilliance or the accuracy of the rest of his theory.¹⁰

¹⁰ Anderson, A., "The Dark Side of Darwinism", Williams College: Philosophy for the Many, 16 November, 2016 https://sites.williams.edu/engl-209-fall16/uncategorized/thedark-side-of-darwinism/

CHAPTER III

AMONGST US AFRICANS

"When you think you're rid of it, we still haven't completed it." Cheikh Anta Diop

Often, the colonized or a formerly colonized somewhat resembles a 19th century slave, who, freed, goes to the doorstep and then comes home because he doesn't know where to turn to anymore. Since the time he lost his freedom, since the time he acquired reflexes of subservience. Since the time he thought, as learned, to think through his master.

Everyone is free to make his choice, on this point I think there is nothing wrong with being a Christian as long as it is a personal choice. Nevertheless, you must at least be enlightened when but immersed in a form of darkness. Know the past of Christianity and the role that have played for slavery and colonization and also pedophilia. If you conscientiously know how the Catholic Church imposed itself on our ancestors and today you consider that it brings back good despite their betrayal and you want to keep your Christian faith. I would say that it engages only yourself.

But on the other hand, if you are in revenge Christianity by habit, you do not ask yourself questions about its origin or the history of this religion and you foolishly believe all that you are told without asking consistency of the church or other, then it does not make sense, I asked myself only questions very personally.

Understanding who you are and where you are from is very important that is why that's one of the first things, we as black people were denied, knowledge of self is important you don't know you're a prince if you don't know your father is the king, and if they change your language you can't understand the king when he speaks.

Truth, Power, and majesty come from knowing who and where you are from.

I will lay money on it that these same people that are saying the past does not matter want their children to know of them and their journey to becoming who there are and how they got wherever they have achieved.

As BLACK People, we are the foundation of the world, that's why we are chosen by God. If you call him 'Allah,' 'Yahweh,' etc.,' understand he is the Great I AM. He is my God, He is my savior. He is my life and I AM his chosen.

I am submitting to you that this is the time for choice now, if God is God, let's praise God, but if Europe and the US are Paradise, I recommend you to pray to the West.

Choose now, you are Christian, and salvation shall come to the white man

There is an uncompromising message in the Bible saying, Jesus Christ is the same yesterday, today, and tomorrow, so there is no question of humoring you in the church, it is telling you as it is and I am saying that even as we are waiting for heaven and heaven term will come in the fullness of time but the intervening period, we must eat well, go to school and make also Africa Great and we can't make Africa great what pains me most when I am seeing my people dying in the Mediterranean Sea in their attempt to find a better life for themselves.

The Portuguese began forcibly shipping African slaves to the New World in 1509. Film Director Alex Haley, who was able to trace his African roots, dramatized these events in his 1970's television series, *Roots*. It centered around the life of a young man named Kunta Kinte, who was abducted from the Gambia. Upon his arrival in the New World, we see how his new owners tried to call him 'Toby,' but he refused by saying, "I am Kunta Kinte." Finally, for strategic reasons, he accepted the name *Toby*, but because he also didn't give up his original name *Kunta Kinte*, Alex Haley was able to trace his roots in Gambia two centuries later.

Unlike the 16th century, what we see today is sad. We travel voluntarily to Europe only to be enslaved under another name. That's because we only receive subsistence wages that barely keep us alive, but we're losing our roots in the process.

As *Professor Lumumba* once said, "Africa is the land of action, I summarize here that Europeans will not respect you if you do not respect yourself." The thing we understand is that respect is earned and not granted. This is why we are not sitting at the table of civilization as equal partners. Unless you show me that we are worthy of being a diner rather than a waiter, the choice is up to us.

As you now know the truth, for years after the creation of Man, they were all black, Westerners appear to murder them and subsequently take their land. Then they made the natives work their land and build up their **empire**.

Then, adding insult to injury, they created taxation, forcing them to pay for something that was already theirs.

The history of white me is nothing but terror and if you check out these spiritual laws they broke them all. After they stole a few and called them the 10 Commandments. How does it feel to be a worker of Satan?

Through this work, I must remind and also warn all Africans, 'the descendants of Kemet,' **that if we continue to do the bidding of the West, we'll end up where the West will end and we'll remain obliged to continue to do whatever they desire.**

We must refuse to be the kind of child a mother often warns against. Otherwise, we can merely continue to be *Mouton de Panurge* "flock of sheep."

Today we don't have a good reputation because we live so far below our potential, which is why we're still sleeping in Mother Nature's cradle of humanity. But now we're 300,000 years old, broken, busted, and the most disgusting population on the planet. We know we have to change, but not by copying and pasting whatever the people that have hounded us for centuries.

To become our own boss, we have to make the decision to stop following the West. Where we are today is due to all the decisions we made yesterday.

Answer me now, who tells us how to make these decisions amongst us Africans?

If it was only those who gave us their names, those who taught us their languages, those who sold us as goods and stole our science legacy, those who make us despise our own culture and also ourselves, if it's them who decide on our place on the continent, where do you think we will be for the rest of the 21st century and beyond?

We had Obama, the first Black man in the White House and we were all happy until we understood he was there to speak the language and act out the act of the West.

We, the new generation of Africa will no longer authorize a position of slavery by denying our rights as they denied our ancestors. The founder of Ghana, **Kwame Krumah** once said, **"Ghana is free when the rest of Africa is free,"** and I say, "I'll stop fighting when I'm reassured African children eat well and also go to school while we're waiting for the Paradise promised by Jesus Christ." Let's wear the spirit of Nkrumah to make African affairs our common affair because our trouble is our skin color.

Everybody wants to live together but everybody pretends to live alone. "**The library of life holds the same book but not the same story**" İkah's quotes.

My dear Africans, I would like to tell three stories that will be the basis of my analysis, criticisms that can help us recover after seeing the light.

1. Father World and His Two Children

The first story is about a father named *World* who becomes blind with age, but he had two children, the first called *Water* and the second *Fire*, since the two **bro**thers had lived together since their birth, Water was a gentle docile child who grew up with respect and love. On the other hand, Fire was contrary to his brother, he burned everywhere, homes, fields and forests. His big brother Water tried several times to give him advice but to no avail.

One day, the elder son Water decides to go and complain about the conflagrations to his father, World. "Father, I'm fed up and tired of your son Fire, he sows disasters everywhere he goes, burning everything in his way, particularly, farmlands.

Father World recognizes Water's voice and listens carefully to all the claims made by his first son. Afterward, he asks a couple of questions, "What is your first name my son," He answered, "Water," whereupon

World asks a second question, "what is your role, and he answered again spread the fire, World says to him why you whine instead of doing your role?

I knew the behavior before he was born, the reason why I fathered you first, let your brother Fire do his part and you do yours too.

2. Six Kids

There were once six kids who lived on the same cul-de-sac in an idle town. They all thought the world was beautiful a place where beautiful things would happen if they were just good people who worked hard and played by the rules. Then one day, they watched as everyone they loved got sick and died; the interesting thing is the killers were claimed innocent and never held responsible.

Do you know what those idealistic kids did? They went out into the world to try to change things and make it a better place, pursuing careers to help the powerless unearth the truth and expose the bad guys, and then tried to see the good in the world, and you know what they learned, that it didn't work. The world hadn't changed, they hadn't made it a better place and one of the six heroes died of the same bone cancer that took his parents. The other five met up after years later at his funeral and there, standing over the coffin, a plan emerged. A new plan to change the world, only this time around, being as ruthless with the world as it had been with them "Black list series"

Sometimes I catch myself saying, "I'm done figuring out what this world needs!" And they ask one of them, "Why are you doing all those ruthless things?" He replied, "I'll die knowing I did what I could; just because something is legal doesn't mean it's right, or that it shouldn't be punished."

3. The Unloved Princess

The third story is about a rich and gorgeous princess and her less materially wealthy and violenthusband, who's been beating her up so much that she can no longer recall the beginning of this imposed relationship. He doesn't just beat her, he humiliates her in all circumstances, and he doesn't even recognize any humility in her.

For him, she is not endowed with any intelligence, he took her like an

empty jug. In treating her like an object less than an animal, he snatches away her immense fortune and her entire inheritance.

He has monopolized most of her property by making her believe that he's taking care of it in her best interest and that she doesn't have the intellectual capacity to take care of it itself. He's crushed her so much that over time she ends up not believing in him anymore, doubting her own intellectual abilities by hating and being ashamed of herself. She's developed such an inferiority complex to the extent that she even comes to admire her executioner companion, and she does everything to look like him, and adopt his ways and lifestyle. While her tyrant becomes her idol, some speak of the Stockholm Hostage / Bank Robber Syndrome of 1973.

Despite all the blows inflicted upon her by her husband, this immensely beautiful princess remains seductive, with her ogling neighbors making advances on her. For the first time, she is spoken to with gestures of respect, without insults, with sweet words, with less condescension. They tell her she is beautiful, that she has charm; she previously didn't know she could ever benefit from such treatment, compliments, and attention. Having never been courted like this before, she was invited to dine at fine restaurants. They even calling her Madame, giving her kisses and flirting with her, in short, pulling out all the stops and even the checkbook.

She listens to her couriers, and accepts their invitations while being naive, she knows that all these charmers are eyeing her fortune, but it's better than the torture and abject humiliation that her husband subjected her to.

Suddenly, her old companion, who discovers that others court his partner and that she's not insensitive to their approach, loses his temper, and threatens her severely. He lets her know in no uncertain terms that she has no interest in getting together with any of their neighbors. The princess begins to regain her confidence, and realizing she was exploitation of which is the victim, no longer listens to him. She no longer accepts being told what to eat, go to drink, what time to go to bed at night and what time to get up in the morning. In short, she wants to take her destiny into her own hands.

Instead of using convincing arguments to win her back, her tyrannical companion is surprised by her sudden awakening. Instead of negotiating with her, he threatens to leave her and cut her off, but she's now aware that she'll no longer face demise, and that she has the potential to do everything without this lover who understands nothing. And more seriously, she realizes that despite his incompetence, this partner can't make it without her.

He needs her to continue living to maintain the lifestyle he has adopted, otherwise his life turns chaotic.

While the palace courtesans who comprehend quite well what is going on in her home, redouble their efforts to seduce her. Meanwhile, her husband pleads with her to give him another chance in their relationship instead of apologizing and negotiating to regain his place in the princess's heart.

He persists in the den, grating with flirtations, especially the most charming, the most enterprising. He admonishes her, making it clear he'll become fiercer and more violent, and that she's going to experience Hell, from which she must urgently flee.

At first, he even threatens to leave the house before changing his mind when he realizes the beautiful princess is unafraid to let him go. He decides to stay to sling mud at his competitors, a strategy that his partner, who now is no longer ready for any exclusive marriage, found quite hilarious. She has broken free of her shackles, and now deals with the highest bidder, as the huckster is no longer a part of her life.

Does this story mean anything to you? Doesn't ring a bell to you?

And in the end, *Cameroonian Journalist Alain Foka* says, "I know you understand very quickly, that it is about the history of Africa, France and Russia."

1st Story: The World is on fire, but I'm sure our generation now understands our role of being the Water element, in that we don't need to incessantly complain. We need to assume responsibility, after knowing where we've come from and where we're at today. We were born free, our decision shouldn't be detected by any master. Our parents were reduced to slavery and the impact of colonization is still felt today, so we have no choice but to break the neck of colonization. What are we anticipating after all the centuries of slavery and colonization? What shall we do after realized that we are cradles of science, architecture, math, art, religion, etc. It's high time to re-appropriate our legacy, we are the Water to start irrigating the garden, so let's begin.

2nd **Story:** People believe memory works like a video recording; the mind records events, then at the right time it plays back an exact replica. Actually, memories are built up; they're more like putting together an ever-changing puzzle and then replaying the video. This is the reality of

the story and these are major issues. Today, the mere idea of colonization hinders many people's ability to think, because they continue to project the past in the present rendering their unable to envision a bright future because they have locked in their vision of the past.

So many specialists have said it. One of these is Professor of Psychiatry, **Otto F. Kernberg,** who stated, "the effect of harming your past is like the goal of the game, it quite simply stunts your present and nullifies your future."

By falsifying the history of Mankind, Africa is akin to someone driving countless miles in a car with no dashboard and no way to check the amount of oil, water and gasoline, with nothing but dead reckoning to guide her. The first humans roamed free in Africa in the midst of wild animals; they were accustomed to observing them and understanding their cycles.

At present, Africans do not have this metaphorical dashboard, that is to say, a verification system. Without it, it's hard to confirm the many great ideas people amongst us have to come up with and implement. However, these ideas are rooted in blunt reality, and without the verification system everything is murky. When animals go to drink, they have a watch system to ensure predators don't instinctively devour them.

Among us Africans, how long will we continue to hate each other to curry favor with the West? When will this disunity cease to exist between us? While they say slavery has been officially abolished, as many in the West claim, small nations continue to suffer like ants crushed in a battle between elephants. In short, we have lived enough in Creation. It is high time that we return to school, not with a paradigm that is foreign to our reality, but rather with a goal that helps us see our way of seeing things.

3rd **Story**: Why did the Russian and Chinese influence gain such a strong foothold in Africa to the detriment of France?

The reason is simple. Apart from its arrogance and its ideology of squeezing Africa's lemon until the last drop, France has done nothing since 17 countries, including 14 former French colonies, gained their independence in sub-Saharan Africa between 1 January and 31 December 1960. In a nutshell, French policy is synonymous with looting mineral resources, preferring to leave remnants of the population starving, and imposing its will upon national leaders it can handle quietly to generate coups.

These days, Russia and Chinese are pursuing a policy of polite dialogue

vis-à-vis Africa in helping it to build its infrastructure, while France multiplies her arrogance, instead of repenting for all the evils it openly sponsored throughout the years. Nowadays, it finances jihadists in order to foment terror in several regions of Africa.

These are the reasons why France retreats while Russia advances in Africa.

As we know very well from the Holy Roman Empire, the story of a selfconstrained Russian empire wants to push further south doesn't even make sense. In other words, the time for the highest bidder has arrived and not for the markets of the sympathizers.

The Africans have already vomited out France in total rejection; nobody wants her anymore. Russia has nothing to do but seized the opportunity to fill the void, by wooing the African princess, showing her a modicum of respect and lots of love.

We are no longer fooled because we know that every country wants to develop by offering a better life and security to its people. It's all about economic globalization by respecting the 'win-win' agreement.

As the **Congolese spiritual leader Nfumu-Kimbangu** once said in 1921, "When Africa rumbles, the world trembles." Because peace is the first ingredient of development, a free and sovereign Africa wants to develop, and it has the right to choose its partners by safeguarding peace.

The intriguing thing is that the United States of America has suddenly awoken from a deep slumber to propose a summit and make more proposals in Africa.

While I think it's great to know we have a myriad of proposals, in the end, it's up to Africa to choose the best proposals for its content.

I note that this is the position of African states in the face of the Russo-Ukrainian crisis. This is no coincidence because the Americans do nothing by chance. I just mentioned that Africa being in a 'win-win' situation. Well, it's up to us to take the best offers. The time has come for Africa not to be on one side of the fence or the other, because our needs are so enormous that no bloc can meet its needs. We want all blocs to mobilize around the African continent. We are all ready to move forward, because we're determined to remain pro-African. My only regret for the US – Africa Leaders' Summit held 13 – 15 December, 2022, was that the African leaders missed a golden opportunity to demonstrate their maturity by uniting to travel to and from the US, as a coordinated group, thereby showing we're firmly in the 21st century.

Moreover, in betraying the four countries (Mali, Burkina Faso, Guinea and Sudan), which were not cordially invited to partake in this summit, they implied that there is no meaningful solidarity among the continent's leaders of today. Said nations were not invited due to their close military cooperation with Russia.

I believe that if Russia organizes a similar summit in '23, as it has every year for the past several years, those countries that participated in the American summit will be there too. This is nothing short of betrayal to the African body.

History tells us that the Soviet Union once had a slogan "produced for need," but true clientelism only developed during Putin's tenure and what the West calls 'oligarchy.' This same clientelism is organized to deal with the international market. For the moment it can also be an opportunity to undertake this adventure together with the anti-colonial struggle. Even if Russia's political weight in Africa is still quite weak, we have no choice. In my humble opinion, we would want it to expand, as we want human and not robotic partners. Nonetheless, if Russia ends up behaving in the same abominable fashion that France has over the years, inevitably it will suffer the same fate as France.

Africa's first priority is to secure its borders and territory. The second priority is for the Francophone countries to remove themselves from the CFA franc monetary zone, while the third priority is to set up a single federation governing system. We are the generation that can look Westerners straight in the eye, without frustrating ourselves. I personally feel that Africa's exit from the tunnel of colonization won't be too far in the future.

The following is the contents of the America-Africa Summit held in Washington D.C. in December, 2022.¹

PRESIDENT BIDEN: Well, good morning, everyone. I realized last night, when our dinner ended and the entertainment ended, it was five o'clock in the morning for most of you. So, I admire your collective stamina. Thank you very much. And I promise my comments will not take you to tomorrow morning. My friends, I'm honored to host you all here in Washington for the U.S.-African Leaders' Summit. It's wonderful to spend time with you and your spouses last night at dinner. And I truly enjoyed it, and thank you for making the time. And let me also convey my condolences to the people of the *Democratic Republic of the Congo* for the tragic loss of life and the communities impacted due to the flooding.

¹ Biden, J., December 2022, Washington D.C.: U.S. -Africa Leaders Summit

Mr. President, we missed you last night, but if there's anything the United States can do to help in this effort, please, please let us know. We'll do whatever we can. Today, I'm looking forward to hearing more from all of you about the issues and priorities that matter most to Africa and how we can deepen our cooperation. And I emphasize "cooperation." Our nations have worked closely together for a long time. We've improved the lives of countless people in all our countries in meaningful ways, on both sides of the Atlantic.

And with this summit, and with the African Union's Agenda 2063, our eyes are fixed squarely on the future. We're now in the early years that will be a decisive decade.

The choices that we make today and the remainder of this decade and how we tackle these challenges, in my view, will determine the direction the entire world takes in the decades to come.

Now we've crafted this summit and this agenda in close cooperation with the African Union and focus on African priorities. The United States fully supports the blueprint you laid out in Agenda 2063 to build an integrated quote, "integrated, prosperous, and peaceful Africa" that is driven by African people, centered in inclusive and sustainable development and where Africa is an indispensable global partner. I'm eager to hear from all of you how can the United States deepen our partnerships with you and better work with African nations and the AU to fulfill the aspirations of Agenda 2063. And I want to thank you all again."

I was really astonished when President Biden began his speech by relating to the Coltan-Technology war going on in the eastern region of the Democratic Republic of Congo, apologizing 29 years after a total of more than 12,000,000 people, 70% of whom were children, have died in this fight over our mineral resources. Isn't this ironic mockery?

My personal analysis of his speech makes me recall La Fontaine's fable, <u>The Fox and The Crow</u>, which my grandmother used to tell me. The allegoric dog can never change its sitting position. In other words, contrary to its alluring words and promises, America will never change its predatory political stance.



A child working in a coltan mine. [Photo Credit: National Institute for Africa]



Coltan (Columbite-Tantalates) [Photo Credit: Wikipedia]



[Photo Credit: Nasir Ayitogo / Premium Times]

The Eastern Congo project began on 6 April 1994 with the Belgian and French-sponsored assassination of the former Rwandan President Juvenal Habyarimana in order to install the current dictator, Paul Kagame. The sole purpose of this murder was to commandeer the coltan mining operations in eastern Congo. Former French President Nicolas Sarkozy himself officially declared that the DRC was too large of a country and that part of it needed to be shared with Rwanda. Although 30 years have passed since these sponsors carried out this horrific false-flag operation, they remain unpunished, because the West, and particularly America, is behind these atrocities.

According to classified documents made available for the first time, while President Bill Clinton himself confessed he knew Rwanda was being engulfed by genocide in April 1994, this information was buried to justify his inaction. It took Hutu death squads three months from April 6 to murder an estimated 800,000 Tutsis and moderate Hutus and at each stage accurate, detailed reports reached Washington's top policymakers. The documents undermine claims by Mr. Clinton and his senior officials that they did not fully appreciate the scale and speed of the killings.

"It's powerful proof that they knew," said Alison des Forges, a Human Rights Watch researcher and authority on the genocide." $^{\rm 2}$

² Carroll, R., "US chose to ignore Rwandan Genocide", *The Guardian*, 31 March, 2004 https://www.theguardian.com/world/2004/mar/31/usa.rwanda

So, I wonder why Biden was so apologetic to the African leaders during the December, 2022 Summit.

My dear fellow Africans, I beseech to you that now is the time to make a choice; if God is God let's praise God, but if Europe and the US are Paradise, then I recommend you to praise the West.

UN Secretary-General Antonio Guterres said the Rwandan M23 rebels had weapons that the UN Organization Stabilization Mission in DR Congo (MONUSCO) could neither possess nor use. How can we understand that a group of rebels with sophisticated weapons, without condemning any country or the rebels in question? with the declaration of Antonio Guterres proves that the assailants are known. In addition, the most astonishing point the UN asked the DRC to negotiate with the M23. My God, it's amazing! Who is behind all this?



Marked in red, is the conflict zone in Eastern DRC, which I name "blood river".

The answer is the West. If America couldn't do anything to halt the Rwandan-Congolese conflict of 1994, it also means this body was and is still powerless today, to intervene. And the reason for this is because the UN is a body limb of the America, so it is meaningless to expect a solution from the UN. With the exception of South Africa, I don't know of any country on the African continent that manufactures sophisticated Weapons. Some countries only manufacture bullets. So, if it's West which is supplying weapons to the M23, what are the reasons for this? My answer is so simple, the eastern part of Congo has become a jungle over the past 30+years. It remains so uncontrollably lax that anyone can enter and exit without any consequences.

Tangible proof of this is the fact that Rwanda has become the leading producer of coltan when there is not a single gram of coltan beneath the soil of the Republic of Rwanda.

Each time a group of rebels dies and others arise to take their place, it becomes a vicious cycle. This news is no longer covered by the world's press agencies and everyone pretends to forget the conflicts that persist in Africa. The West is fully aware that it is the only actor in collaboration with the main treacherous African nations conducting aggressions against the DR Congo, namely Rwanda, Uganda and Burundi. What I mean by that is, as we cannot physically see the West committing genocide, in this case, Africa has automatically become its own worst enemy.

"Even those African nations which pretend to be at peace are not, they merely remain reticent as they don't have the things that interest the West." Prof. P.L.O. Lumumba



Kenyan lawyer and Pan-African activist Prof. Patrick Loch Otieno Lumumba
Have you ever thought how we can silence the guns in Africa? Otherwise our farmers cannot cultivate their fields. If the guns don't fall silent, our women cannot go to market to buy produce. If the guns are not silenced, our resources won't be utilized in the right direction in Africa. To make Africa work, we have to do our utmost to silence the guns that are the voice of the West. Don't ask me if it's possible, because my answer will always be "Yes, and we have to!" But certain ingredients can be implemented to get Africa to work in the proper path towards development, the first one being peace.

WE MUST DREAM FOR AFRICA

I love this quote from Martin Luther King; "I have a dream" is true, but I would like to pose a couple of questions here. How did he know that he dreamt? Did King tell you of his dream while he was asleep or awake?

After dreaming, you need to wake up and work on your dream to make it come true. These days, Africans are waking up from their deep sleep and working in the free trade zones. This situation is a positive demonstration in the direction of the 'win-win' dream, whereas only action will give shape to our dreams. This operation to ensure the African continent does something great and starts taking advantage of innovation when protocols are signed to lower tariff barriers. Africa lost out in the First and Second Industry Revolutions, we're now in the Fourth, the world talking about intelligence, talking about robotic engineers, talking about the internet, and now it's time for Africa to find our place in those areas.

Africa can be great in agriculture.

Africa can be great in education.

Africa can be great in value-added goods.

If we found a place in those areas, the African youth will never have a reason again to leave Paradise to cross the Mediterranean Sea in flimsy dinghies to become slaves in Hellish Western countries.

And the last thing we have to decolonize our minds and liberalize ourselves From INVISIBLE CHAINS with misguided views that we cannot become master, by working together yes, we can lead again.



Omotunde Kalala with Cheihk Anta Diop behind him.

THE ELEPHANT THEORY

What is the Elephant Theory? Before the Iron Age, one simply took a small rope and tied small ropes to the elephant's leg and the baby elephant grew to adulthood, screaming bloody murder that he was a slave to this rope. Nevertheless, we all know the strength and intelligence of elephants; they are symbols of strength and memory. In a way, this rope of slavery and colonization still exists in many non-Western countries. Even today, as we continue to tie elephants to ropes, the principles of slavery and colonization still mentally fetter African and non-Western minds.

To assert the hegemony of its supremacy, the West has created countless myths and silly philosophies and imposed them on the rest of the world. Those nations imitating them inadvertently and unknowingly fall into their absurd game of racial classification, thereby, indirectly acting and obeying the West. The birth certificate of every living person was already signed by Mother Nature from the moment they were born. If human nature has made everyone mortal, then tell me, how does anyone have the right to bestow human rights upon their neighbor? The words 'Human Rights' seems absurd to me. If indeed this is the case, I'd say, "it's like a living entity that was born to an animal parent and the latter wants to be naturalized as a human." In essence, a European can hitchhike around the world visa-free, while a citizen of a non-Western country needs visas to go anywhere. That's why I call it 'Invisible Chains.'

INVISIBLE CHAINS is a general overview I wrote to assess how we may rectify the current geopolitical situation. I plan to go into much more detail in my following work, entitled <u>Coltan of Blood</u>, which I hope will be published in the near future.



With my dear friends Marina (Ukraine) and Alex (Russia). In war only the strongest wins, but with peace, both sides win. Yet there can be true peace without justice. (18 January 2023)

SPECIAL THANKS

Ethnokino

Dr. Eda Elif Tibet, Dr. Rama & Alexander Schieffer (All Home for Humanity Community Dr. Paul Fokam, Prof. P.L.O. Lumumba, Juliette Sméralda, Dr. Jean Paul Mbelek, the Turkish-African Friendship Association (TADD), my brother from another mother, editor Mr. Stuart Kline, Miss Jacqueline, Cem Talat, Vladimir Katanosov, Prof. Dr. Nevzat Tarhan, Prof. Dr. Nazife Güngör, Prof. Dr. Havva Kök Arslan, Dr. Güler Kalay, Assoc. Prof. Feride Zeynep Güder, Yard Doç. Dr. Mehmet Yalçin Yilmaz, Prof. Dr. Selcen Öner, Derya Duman, Elif Selen Ay, Dr. Bilgehan Güntekin, Prof. Ibrahima Thioub, Natalie Yamb, Kemi Seba, Pr. Mbanda Kani, Mutabaruka, Panafricanistes TV, Maat Librairie, Alain Foka, Ibrahim Kaya, Montana Kamenga, Vildan Çiçek, Diğdem Karaca, Hasan Güney Arslan, Özhan & Çağdaş Önder, Emiyra Yilmaz & Adalet, J. Londala, Afa Kivala Onan, Canaan Ikah, Ada Kamba, Julia Londala, Vildan Gül, Ekrem Özkarpat, the Şeker Family, Özgün Zaman, Gökhan Erdağ, and Doğucan Güler (creative digital designer), Fatih Pehlivan, Said Ercan, Lemi and Vanessa Tunçer.

The world does not belong to leaders or any particular color, it belongs to all humanity.

Let's all do our part as human beings to make this world a better place

for future generations.

We all need to do good.

In concluding this book, I'm well aware it is bound to raise the ire of many folks who might not agreed with me, which is natural, of course. But instead of insults, I would appreciate receiving constructive analyses or scientific approaches which may contradict my work.

Thus, I realized as James Baldwin once said, "Each time you try to stand up and look the world in the face, like you're right to be on this planet, you automatically start attacking the entire power structure of the Western world." While insults and violence are weapons of the weak so, prove me that I'm wrong. I will continue to look at myself in a mirror so as not to be ashamed of being African. Otherwise, I will blow myself up, I will feel less than nothing, and I don't want to feel this way.

İf Africa does wrong, this world could be wrong, as without Africa, there could never be France, America, Russia, China, etc.

I am certain that the problem of Africa is not wealth, because we already have enough of that, but rather it is ideals. While Black people do not stake a claim to all the suffering on this planet, this book will serve as a hammer to aid them in breaking free of their **INVISIBLE CHAINS**.



Enzo İkah & Dr. Bilgehan Güntekin

REFERENCES

- "Afro-Russians", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 10 January 2024 <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Afro-Russians</u>
- Anderson, A., "The Dark Side of Darwinism", Williams College: Philosophy for the Many, 16 November, 2016 <u>https://sites.williams.edu/engl-</u>209-fall16/uncategorized/the-dark-side-of-darwinism/
- Bhalla, N., "African wars killed five million sick children in 20 years: study", *Reuters*, August 31, 2018 <u>https://www.reuters.com/article/idUSKCN1LF2R3/</u>
- Biden, J., December 2022, Washington D.C.: U.S. -Africa Leaders Summit
- Brand E., "The history rich list: the 10 wealthiest people ever" History Extra, 25 May, 2022 <u>https://www.historyextra.com/period/general-history/rich-est-person-history/</u>
- Britannica, The Editors of Encyclopaedia (2023, December 18). *Kongo, Encyclopedia Britannica*. <u>https://www.britannica.com/place/Kongo-historical-kingdom-Africa</u>
- Callaway, E., "Oldest *Homo sapiens* fossil claim rewrites our species' history", Nature, 2017 <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/na-ture.2017.22114</u>

Carroll, R., US chose to ignore Rwandan genocide, The Guardian, 31

March, 2004 <u>https://www.theguardian.com/world/2004/mar/31/</u> usa.rwanda

- Chirac, J., "l'argent de l'Afrique", 2007 <u>https://www.francetvinfo.fr/monde/</u> afrique/politique-africaine/jacques-chirac-nous-avons-saigne-lafriquependant-quatre-siecles-et-demi_3633009.html https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xaFmoTxmZng
- Cross, Vanessa, "42 Laws of Maat Under Kemet Law" <u>http://www.blackh-istoryheroes.com/2013/02/42-laws-of-maat-under-kemet-law-and.html</u>
- Curtis Conrad Schabath, "Most of Your Favourite Inventions were Created by Black Inventors", 27 February, 2017 <u>https://brokeassstuart.</u> com/2017/02/27/black-history-months-inventions-we-all-love/,
- Diop, Cheikh Anta, Horizon issue 74-75 La Revue de la Paix, "Clefs pour L'Afrique Noire" July-August, 1957 pp 85-91
- DRC: Mapping human rights violations 1993-2003, UN Mapping Report https://www.ohchr.org/en/countries/africa/2010-drc-mapping-report
- Dubois, C., "Le fils Mitterrand écroué hier soir", le Parisien, 22 December, 2000 <u>https://www.leparisien.fr/archives/le-fils-mitterrand-ecroue-hier-soir-22-12-2000-2001843297.php</u>
- DW News, "La France et ses Anciennes Colonies", DW News, 14 July, 2016 <u>https://www.dw.com/fr/la-france-et-ses-anciennes-colonies/a-19400946</u>
- (Editorial Board), "The Catholic Church's Sex Abuse Scandal Continues", Washington Post, 13 November, 2022 https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2022/11/13/catholic-churchsex-abuse-france/
- Etiyopya Kralı Haile Selassie, 1963, *Birleşmiş Milletler* / Bob Marley, "War" 1976 tarihli şarkısında söylemiştir.
- Flesher, P. V. M., UW Religion Today: How Constantine Created the Christian Church, University of Wyoming News, 4 February, 2015 <u>https://www.uwyo.edu/news/2015/02/uw-religion-today-how-constantine-created-the-christian-church.html</u>
- Hornby, C., "Des Italiennes manifestent contre le machisme et Berlusconi", BFMTV News, 11 Feb, 2011 <u>https://www.bfmtv.com/international/</u> <u>des-italiennes-manifestent-contre-le-machisme-et berlusconi_AN-</u> <u>201102130005.html</u>

Humphreys, Kenneth, Egyptian Roots of Catholics, 25 October, 2011

https://www.jesusneverexisted.com/relics.html

- "Ishango Bone", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 16 December, 2023 <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ishango_bone</u>
- Karenga, M., "Maat the Moral Ideal in Ancient Egypt", Sankore Publisher, 2006
- Kosloski, P., "Wait, why is there an Egyptian ankh in a Catholic church?", Aleteia, 7 July, 2017 <u>https://aleteia.org/2017/07/07/wait-why-is-there-an-</u><u>egyptian-ankh-in-a-catholic-church/</u>
- "Lebombo Bone", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 28 September, 2023 <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lebombo_bone</u>
- Lowes, S., Nunn, N., Robinson, J. A., Weigel, J., "The Evolution of Culture and Institutions: Evidence from the Kuba Kingdom" Harvard University, 29 September, 2016
- Luka 5:37 (Kral James Versiyonu)
- "Mansa Musa", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 7 January, 2024 <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mansa_Musa</u>
- News Wires, Rebel crisis in eastern DR Congo threatens endangered mountain gorillas, *France 24*, 22 December, 2022 <u>https://www.france24.com/en/africa/20221220-rebel-crisis-in-eastern-drcongo-threatens-endangered-mountain-gorillas</u>
- Newsroom, "Pfizer, Ursela Von Der Leyen, and €35 billion corruption", *Modern Diplomacy*, 21 October 21, 2022 <u>https://moderndiplomacy.eu/2022/10/21/pfizer-ursula-von-der-leyen-and-e35-billion-corruption/</u>
- Nicholas J S Davies, "How Many Millions Have Been Killed in America's Post-9/11 Wars? Part 3: Libya, Syria, Somalia and Yemen", *Consortium News*, April 25, 2018 <u>https://consortiumnews.com/2018/04/25/how-many-millions-have-beenkilled-in-americas</u>
- Prof. Ibrahima Thioub, 2018, Cheikh Anta Diop University, Dakar, Senegal
- "QAnon", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 9 January, 2024 <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/QAnon</u>

Raymond Reddington character in "The Blacklist" series

Redford, Donald B. (2001) "Oxford Encyclopedia of Ancient Egypt", Cilt

3. Oxford University Press. s.28

Renan, E., "İsrail Halkının Tarihi" önsöz, Boston: Roberts Bros., 1896

- Reuters, "Ancient Briton had dark skin and blue eyes, shows DNA test on 'Cheddar Man'', 7 February, 2018, *HindustanTimes* https://www. hindustantimes.com/world-news/ancient-briton-had-dark-skin-andblue-eyes-shows-dna-test-on-cheddar-man/story-FEMKbz9zhuPgKs01TxSnl0.html
- Rice, D., "Universe is 13.8 billion years old, scientists confirm", USA Today News, <u>https://www.usatoday.com/story/news/nation/2020/07/15/age-</u> universe-13-8-billion-years-scientists confirm/3287409001/
- Rijksmuseum Van Oudheden "Qenna's Book of The Dead" <u>https://www.rmo.nl/en/exhibitions/temporary-exhibitions/the-papyrus-</u><u>roll-of-qenna/</u>
- Rincon, Paul, Cheddar Man: DNA shows early Briton had dark skin, BBC, 23 February, 2018 <u>https://www.bbc.com/news/science-environment-42939192</u>
- Robinson, James Harvey, "On Various Kinds of Thinking" <u>https://www.</u> <u>commonlit.org/en/texts/on-various-kinds-of-thinking</u>
- Saint-Sernin, B, L'action politique selon Simone Weil, pg. 53
- Saleh, Z., "The Human Cost of U.S. Interventions in Iraq: A History from The 60s Through The Post -9/11 Wars", Watson Institute Brown University, October 13, 2020 <u>https://watson.brown.edu/costsofwar/papers/2020/IraqHistory</u>
- Shakespeare, W. 1600, "Hamlet", Act I, Scene 4
- Shakespeare, W. 1606, "Macbeth", Act V Scene V
- Stevenson, B., "Just Mercy; A Story of Justice and Redemption", One World Publishing, 2015
- "The Book of the Dead", ed. by E.A. Wallis Budge, Gramercy Publisher, 1995
- The **Hebrew Bible**: at **Exodus** 20:2–17 and **Deuteronomy** 5:6–21. <u>https://www.britannica.com/topic/Ten-Commandments</u>
- "The Lost Books of the Bible and the Forgotten Books of Eden", Wikipedia, The Free Encyclopedia, Wikimedia Foundation, 11 November 2023 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/The_Lost_Books_of_the_Bible_ and_the_Forgotten_Books_of_Eden

- "The Myths of Western Civilization: Decolonizing and Queering European History", *Europe Now Journal*, 3 June, 2020 <u>https://www.europenowjournal.org/2020/06/02/the-myths-of-western-civilization-decolonizing-and-queering-european-history-2/</u>
- United Nations Security Council, 18 October, 2022, 9154th Meeting Report, pg. 21, referencing letter no. NV/226/2022 <u>https://www.securitycouncilreport.org/atf/cf/%7B65BFCF9B-6D27-4E9C-8CD3-CF6E4FF96FF9%7D/S_PV_9154.pdf</u>
- Vadim Kamenka, "Ukraine: Volodymyr Zelensky piégé par les pandora papers", l'humanité news, 7 October, 2021 https://www.humanite. fr/monde/ukraine/ukraine-volodymyr-zelensky-piege-par-lespandora-papers 723110
- Vogel, G., "German defense minister accused of plagiarism", Science Insider, 28 September, 2015 <u>https://www.science.org/content/article/</u> <u>german-defense-minister-accused-plagiarism</u>

Wonder, Stevie & McCartney, Paul "Ebony & Ivory", Tug of War, 1982.

MANY PEOPLE THINK THE OPPOSITE OF POVERTY IS WEALTH, WICH MAKES NO SENCE TO ME, FOR AS FAR AS I KNOW, WE CANNOT JUSTIFY THE POVERTY OF AFRICA, WHICH IS THE LARG EST RICH CONTINENT IN THE WORLD, BY AN ABSENCE OF WEALTH.

IN THAT CASE, WE MAY SAY THAT THE OPPOSITE OF POVERTY IS NOT WEALTH, BUT JUSTICE.

-ENZO IKAH





ÜSKÜDAR UNIVERSITY PRESS - 84